ADVICE FOR INVESTORS

INVESTORS ARE STRONGLY ADVISED IN THEIR OWN INTEREST TO CAREFULLY READ THE CONTENTS OF THIS PROSPECTUS, ESPECIALLY THE RISK FACTORS GIVEN AT
SECTION 5 AND SEEK PROFESSIONAL ADVICE, BEFORE MAKING ANY INVESTMENT DECISION.

SUBMISSION OF FALSE AND FICTITIOUS APPLICATIONS IS PROHIBITED AND SUCH APPLICATIONS’ MONEY MAY BE FORFEITED UNDER SECTION 87(8) OF THE SECURITIES
ACT, 2015.

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SECURITIES INVOLVES A DEGREE OF RISK AND INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFER UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO TAKE THE
RISK OF LOSING THEIR INVESTMENT. INVESTORS ARE ADVISED TO READ THE RISK FACTORS CAREFULLY BEFORE TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION IN THIS OFFERING. FOR
TAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THE EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER AND THE OFFER INCLUDING THE RISKS INVOLVED AS DISCLOSED AT
SECTION 5 OF THE PROSPECTUS.

ADVICE FOR INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS AND HIGH NET WORTH INDIVIDUAL INVESTORS

SUBMISSION OF CONSOLIDATED BID AND MULTIPLE BID IS NOT ALLOWED AS PER PUBLIC OFFERING REGULATIONS, 2017.

PLEASE NOTE THAT A SUPPLEMENT TO THE PROSPECTUS SHALL BE PUBLISHED WITHIN ONE WORKING DAY OF THE CLOSING OF THE BIDDING PERIOD WHICH SHALL
CONTAIN INFORMATION RELATING TO THE STRIKE PRICE, THE ISSUE PRICE, COMMITMENT BY THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDERS FOR SUBSCRIBING THE UNDERSUBSCRIBED RETAIL
PORTION IN CASE OF HUNDRED PERCENT BOOK BUILDING, CATEGORY WISE BREAKUP OF THE SUCCESSFUL BIDDERS ALONG WITH NUMBER OF SHARES ALLOCATED TO
THEM, DATES OF PUBLIC SUBSCRIPTION AND SUCH OTHER INFORMATION AS SPECIFIED BY THE COMMISSION.

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Pvt) Limited)
PROSPECTUS FOR INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
Date and place of incorporation: 5" January 2017, Karachi, Incorporation number: 0104739, Registered & Corporate Office: Office No: 601, 6th Floor, Balad
Trade Center-lll (BTC-3), Plot No. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan, Contact No: +92 21 3348 0833 , Website:
https://barkatfrisian.com/, Email: corporate@barkatfrisian.com, Contact Persons: Mr. Muhammad Adil Ali (Chief Executive Officer), Phone: 021-33480833,
Email: adil@barkatfrisian.com;, Mr. Muhammad Farooq Zafar (Chief Financial Officer), Phone: 021-33480833 Mobile: 0309-2225990, Email:
faroog.zafar@barkatfrisian.com, Mr. Ali Ansari (Company Secretary), Phone: 021-32574668, Email: company.secretary@barkatfrisian.com

Issue Size: The Issue consists of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares (i.e. 21.85% of the total post-IPO paid up capital of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited) of face value of
PKR 1.00/- each.

Method of Offering: 100% Book Building Method

Book Building Method and Floor Price: The entire Issue will be offered through Book Building Method at a Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share (including
premium of PKR 12.00/- per share) with a maximum price band of up to 40% (Rs. 18.2). Justification of premium is given under “Valuation section ”, i.e.
Section 4A). The Bidders shall be allowed to place Bids for hundred percent (100%) of the Issue size and the Strike Price shall be the price at which the
hundred percent (100%) of the Issue is subscribed. However, the successful Bidders shall be provisionally allotted only seventy-five percent (75%) of the
Issue size i.e. 50,801,250 shares and the remaining twenty-five percent (25%) i.e. 16,933,750 shares shall be offered to the retail investors through General
Public portion.

Retail/General Public Portion: General Public portion of the Issue comprises of 16,933,750 ordinary shares (25% of the total issue) at the Strike Price. In
case retail portion of the Issue remains unsubscribed, the unsubscribed shares will be allotted to the successful Bidders of book building on a pro rata basis.

Public Comments: Draft Prospectus was placed on PSX’s website for seeking public comments starting from 06t January 2025 to 13t January 2025 and No
public comments were received.

REGISTRATION OF ELIGIBLE INVESTORS: The registration of eligible investors will commence at 9:00 am on February 13, 2025 and will close at 3:00 pm
on February 18t, 2025
BIDDING PERIOD DATES: From February 17t", 2025 to February 18t, 2025, From: 9:00 am to 5:00 pm
DATE OF PUBLIC SUBSCRIPTION: From February 24t, 2025 to February 25, 2025 (both days inclusive) From: 9:00 am to 5:00 pm

Lead Manager & Book Runner Book Building Portion will be Credit Underwritten By
A ARIF HABIB A ARIF HAEIB
hd | I MITED hd L IMITED

Bankers to the Book Building Portion of the Issue:

(]

Meezan Bank Limited

Bankers for the Retail Portion of the Issue:
Habib Bank Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank AL Habib

For retail portion/general public portion, investors can submit application(s) through both electronic and physical mode. Electronic/online applications can
be submitted through PSX’s e-IPO system (PES) and CDC’s Centralized E-IPO system (CES). PES and CES can be accessed via the web links
https://eipo.psx.com.pk, and www.cdceipo.com. There is no transaction limit on making payment through e- banking channels. 1Link through Memo dated
August 22, 2024 has instructed all its member banks to remove the limits on transfer of funds for transactions executed through e - IPO platforms For
details, please refer to Section 13.1.4 of the Prospectus.

Date of Publication of this Prospectus: February 11t, 2025
Prospectus, Bidding Form and Subscription Form can be downloaded from the following websites: https://barkatfrisian.com, http://www.psx.com.pk,
www.cdceipo.com and http://www.arifhabibltd.com

For Further Queries you may Contact
Barkat Frisian Agro Limited: Mr. Muhammad Farooq Zafar (Chief Financial Officer), Phone: 021-33480833 Mobile: 0309-2225990, | Email:
faroog.zafar@barkatfrisian.com, Mr. Ali Ansari (Company Secretary), Phone: 021-32574668 | Email: company.secretary@barkatfrisian.com; Arif Habib
Limited: Hamza Rehan (Associate — Investment Banking), Phone:+92(21)38280273 | Email: hamza.rehan@arifhabibltd.com; Usama Hanif (Analyst —
Investment Banking), Phone: +92 (21) 3828 0226 | Email: usama.hanif@arifhabibltd.com; Faizan Qureshi (Analyst — Investment Banking), Phone: +92 (21)
3828 0276 | Email: faizan.qureshi@arifhabibltd.com

The Company is proposed to be listed at the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
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UNDERTAKING BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Sy
THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO=LI D (FORMERLY BARKAT
FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED) (THE *ISSUER™) CERTIFY THAT:

1. THE PROSPECTUS CONTAINS ALL INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO THE ISSUER AND THE
ISSUE, WHICH IS MATERIAL IN THE CONTEXT OF THE iSSUE AND NOTHING HAS BEEN
CONCEALED IN THIS RESPECT;

2. THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE PROSPECTUS IS TRUE AND CCRRECT TO THE BEST
OF OUR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF;

3. THE OPINIONS AND INTENTIONS EXPRESSELD THEREIN ARE HONESTLY HELD:!

-

. (=]

Page 2 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

&

~ -
-

E-STAMP

CONTINUATION SHERT
Government of Sindh

4. THERE ARE NO OTHER FACTS, THE OMISSION OF WHICH MAKES THIS PROSPECTUS AS A
WHOLE OR ANY PART THEREOF MISLEADING:

5. ALLREQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT 2015; THE DISCLOSURES IN PUBLIC OFFERING
REGULATICNS 2017 FOR PREPARATION OF PROSPECTUS, RELATING TG APPROVAL AND
DISCLOSURES HAVE BEEN FULFILLED; AND

6. NO CHARGES, FEE, EXPENSES, PAYMENTS ETC. HAVE BEEN COMMITTED TO BE PAID TO
ANY PERSON IN RELATION TO THIS PUBLIC OFFERING EXCEST FOR THOSE AS DISCLOSED
IN THE PROSPECTUS. FLEM v

FOR AND BEHALF OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED (FORMERLY
PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED)

) =
>
MUHAMMAD ADIL ALI MUHAMMAD FAROOQ ZAFAR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

& NOTARY P
Katach akistan

CVOCATE & OATH C

YARAC HI.DA VietTan
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Note: This Supplement shall be published within 1 working day of the close of Bidding Period in at least all those newspapers in
which the Prospectus of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited is published.

SUPPLEMENT TO THE PROSPECTUS
This Supplement is being published pursuant to The Public Offering Regulations, 2017 and in continuation of the Prospectus of
Barkat Frisian Agro Limited earlier published on February 11t, 2025
Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

=  FLOOR PRICE: PKR 13.00/- PER SHARE

= STRIKE PRICE: PKR [.]/- PER SHARE

= ISSUE PRICE: PKR [.]/- PER SHARE

=  PRICE BAND (MAXIMUM 40%): PKR 18.20/- PER SHARE

Category Wise Breakup of Successful Bidders

S.No | Category No. of Bidders No. of Shares Provisionally Allocated
1 Commercial Banks . .
2 Development Financial Institutions (] (]
3 Mutual Funds (] (]
4 Insurance Companies . °
5 Investment Banks (] (]
6 Employees’ Provident / Pension Funds . °
7 Leasing Companies . .
8 Modarabas ° .
9 Securities Brokers [ .
10 Foreign Institutional Investors . .
11 Any other Institutional Investors (] (]
Total Institutional Investors i hd
Individual Investors: ° .
12 Foreign Investors . .
13 Local . .
Total Individual Investors . °
GRAND TOTAL

Page 4 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

Glossary of Technical Terms

ACT Securities Act, 2015

AHL Arif Habib Limited

BFAL Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

Bn Billion

BVPS Book Value Per Share

CAGR Compound Annualized Growth Rate

CAPEX Capital Expenditure

CCP Critical Control Point

CDC/ CDCPL Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
CDS Central Depository System

CES Centralized e-IPO System

Commission/SECP The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
Companies Act Companies Act, 2017

CPI Consumer Price Index

CcY Calendar Year

EBITDA Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization
EPS Earnings Per Share

FSSC Food Safety Certification Scheme

FY Financial Year

GDP Gross Domestic Product

HoReCa Hotels, Restaurants and Café/Catering

IBC Intermediate Bulk Container

IPO Initial Public Offering

ISO International Organization for Standardization
Y Joint Venture

LC Letter of Credit

LG Letter of Guarantee

Mn Million

MW Mega Watt

NICOP National Identity Card for Overseas Pakistani
NIP National Industrial Park

NOC No Objection Certificates

OEC Observatory of Economic Complexity

OPRP Operational Prerequisite Program

P.A. Per Annum

PEB Pre-Engineered Building
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PES PSX’s e-IPO System

PKR or Rs. Pakistan Rupee(s)

PPE Property, Plant and Equipment

PSX / Exchange Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

QCP Quality Control Point

SBP State Bank of Pakistan

SLA Straight-line amortization

TERF Temporary Economic Refinance Facility
T™M Trailing Twelve Months

UIN Unique Identification Number

usD United States Dollar

USDA United States Department of Agriculture
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Application Money

Banker to the Book Building

Bid

Bid Amount

Bid Collection Center

Bid Price

Bid Revision

Bidder

Bidding Form

DEFINITIONS

In case of bidding for shares out of the Book Building portion, the total
amount of money paid by a Bidder which is equivalent to the product
of the Bid Price and the number of shares.

Any bank(s) with whom an account is opened and maintained by the
Issuer for keeping the bid amount/bid money.

Meezan Bank Limited has been appointed, in this IPO, as the Bankers to
the Book Building.

An indication to make an offer during the Bidding Period by a Bidder to
subscribe to the Ordinary Shares of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited at a price
at or above the floor price, including upward revisions thereto. An
Eligible Investor shall not make a bid with price variation of more than
10% of the prevailing indicative strike price subject to a maximum price
band of 40% of the Floor Price. Please refer to Section 12.1.2 for details.

The amount equal to the product of the number of shares Bid for and
the Bid price.

Designated offices of the Book Runner and specified branches of any of
the Scheduled Bank where bids are received and processed. For this
Issue, addresses of the Bid Collection Centers are provided in Section
12.1.6 of this Prospectus.

The price at which bid is made for a specified number of shares.

The Eligible Investors can revise their bids upward subject to the
provision of regulation 10(2)(iii) of the PO Regulations. The bids can be
revised with a price variation of not more than 10% from the prevailing
indicative Strike Price in compliance with Regulation10(2)(iii) of the PO
Regulations.

As per regulation 10(2)(vi) of the PO Regulations, the bidder shall not
make downward revision both in terms of Bid Price and Bid Volume;
Provided that in case of upward revision of the Bid Price, the number
of shares Bid for i.e. Bid Volume may be adjusted ensuring that the bid
amount or bid money remains the same.

As per regulation 10(2)(vii) of the PO Regulations, the bidder shall not
withdraw their bids.

An Eligible Investor who makes bids for shares in the Book Building
process.

The form prepared by the Issuer for the purpose of making bids.
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Book Building

Book Building Account

Book Building Portion

Book Building System

Book Runner

Collection Banks for General
Public/retail portion

Company

Company’s Legal Advisor

Commission

Consolidated Bids

Critical Control Point

Designated Institution

Dutch Auction Method

A process undertaken to elicit demand for shares offered through which
bids are collected from the Bidders and a book is built which depicts
demand for the shares at different price levels.

An account opened by the Issuer with the Banker to the Book Building.

The part of the total Issue allocated for subscription through the Book
Building.

An online electronic system operated by the Designated Institution for
conducting Book Building.

A securities broker or a scheduled bank who holds a valid license from
the Commission to act as an Underwriter and has been appointed as
Book Runner by the Issuer.

Arif Habib Limited has been appointed as Book Runner for this Issue.

Mentioned below are the Collection Banks for the General Public/retail
portion. Account details for Collection banks are mentioned in section
13.1.7 of the Prospectus:

Habib Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

Bank AL Habib

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (the “Company” or “BFAL” or the “Issuer”).
A.Qadir & Company
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”).

A bid which is fully or partially beneficially owned by persons other than
the one named therein.

Critical Control Point is a procedure/practice (control) in food
handling/preparation that will reduce, eliminate or prevent hazards.

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (“PSX”) is acting as the Designated
Institution for this Issue and its Book Building System will be used for
price discovery.

The method through which Strike Price is determined by arranging all
the Bid Prices in descending order along with the number of shares and
the cumulative number of shares bid for at each Bid Price. The Strike
Price is determined by lowering the price to the extent that the total
number of shares Issued under the Book Building Portion are subscribed.
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e-IPO Facility

E-IPO refers to the electronic subscription of applications for
subscription of securities offered in retail portion of an IPO. The
following systems are available for e-IPO:

(i) PSX’s e-IPO System (PES): To facilitate investors, the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (“PSX”) has developed an e-IPO System (“PES”)
through which applications for subscription of securities offered to
the General Public/retail portion can be made electronically. PES has
been made available in this Issue and can be accessed through the
web link (https://eipo.psx.com.pk). Payment of subscription money
can be made through 1LINK’s and NIFT’s member banks available for
PES. 1 Link through Memo dated August 22, 2024 has instructed all
its member banks to remove the limits on transfer of funds for
transactions executed through e - IPO platforms. There is no
transaction limit on making payment through e — banking channels

For making application though PES, investors must be registered
with PES. The PES registration form is available 24/7, all throughout
the year. Registration is free of cost and can be done by:

e the investor himself, or

e the TREC Holder with whom the investor has a sub-account, or
e the Bank with whom the investor has a bank account.
Similarly, an e-IPO application can be filed by:

e the investor himself, or

e the TREC Holder with whom the investor has a sub-account, or
e the Bank with whom the investor has a bank account.

In case of queries regarding PES, investors may contact Mr. Farrukh
Shahzad, Deputy General Manager - IT Division at phone number:
111-001-122 or (021)-35274401-10, or email: itss@psx.com.pk.

Investors who are registered with PES can submit their applications
through the web link, https://eipo.psx.com.pk, 24 hours a day
during the subscription period which will close at midnight on
February 25%2025.

(ii) Centralized e-IPO System (CES): To facilitate investors, the Central
Depository Company of Pakistan (“CDC”) has developed a
Centralized e-IPO System (“CES”) through which applications for
subscription of securities offered to the General Public/retail portion
can be made electronically. CES can be accessed through the web
link (www.cdceipo.com). Payment of subscription money can be
made through 1LINK’s member banks available for CES. There is no
transaction limit on making payment through e — banking channels.
For making application though CES, investors must be registered
with CES. Registration with CES is free of cost and can be done under
a self-registration process by filling the CES registration form, which
is available 24/7 all throughout the year.

In addition to the above, sub-account holder(s) can request their
respective TREC Holders who are Participants in Central Depository
System (CDS) to make electronic subscription on their behalf for
subscription of securities of a specific Company by authorizing
(adding the details of) their respective Participant(s) in CES.
Consequently, authorized Participants can electronically subscribe
on behalf of their sub-account holder(s) in securities offered through
Initial Public Offerings (IPOs) and can also make payment against
such electronic subscriptions through all the available channels
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Eligible Investor

FSSC

GDP

General Public

mentioned on CES only after receiving the subscription amount from
the sub-account holder(s). To enable this feature, the CDS Participant
may request CDC to activate his ID on the CES portal. The securities
will be credited directly in Investors’ subaccount. In case the sub-
account of the investor has been blocked or closed, after the
subscription, then securities shall be parked into the CDC's IPO
Facilitation Account and investor can contact CDC for credit of shares
in its respective account

Investors who do not have CDS account may visit
www.cdcpakistan.com for information and details.

For further guidance and queries regarding CES and opening of CDS
account, investors may contact CDC at phone number: 0800 — 23275
(CDCPL) and e-mail: info@cdcpak.com or contact Mr. Farooq Ahmed
Butt, Senior Manager — Operations, at Phone 021-34326030 and
email: farooq_butt@cdcpak.com.

Investors who are registered with CES can submit their applications
through the web link www.cdceipo.com 24 hours a day during the
subscription period which will close at midnight on February 25%, 2025.

IPO Facilitation Account (IFA):

Investors not having investor account or sub account can subscribe IPO
application by opting for the IPO facilitation account. IPO Facilitation
Account is an account to be maintained by CDC separately for each IPO
wherein securities of such successful applicants who do not have CDS
Accounts at the time of making subscription application, shall be parked
for a certain period of time. Subsequent to parking, all the successful
applicants shall be intimated via email to open an Investor Account with
CDC or Sub-Account with any of the CDS Participants (i.e. licensed
securities brokers or commercial banks). Upon opening of CDS Account,
successful applicants shall approach CDC Investor Account Services and
securities of such successful applicants shall be moved from the IFA to
their respective CDS Accounts.

An Individual or Institutional Investor whose Bid Amount is not less than
the minimum bid size of PKR 1,000,000 (One Million Rupees only).

FSSC 22000 Definition: FSSC 22000 is a Food Safety Management
Certification Scheme, managed by Foundation FSSC 22000 and governed
by an independent Board of Stakeholders which consists of
representatives from several sectors in the food industry. FSSC 22000 is
used to control food safety risks.

Gross domestic product (GDP) is the total monetary or market value of
all the finished goods and services produced within a country’s borders
in a specific time period.

All Individual and Institutional Investors including both Pakistani
(residents & non-residents) and foreign investors.
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HALAL

Homogenization

Initial Public Offer (IPO)

Institutional Investors

Issue

Issue Price

Issuer

Key Employees

Lead Manager

Limit Bid

Limit Price

Listing Regulations

HALAL Certification is issued by Pakistan Halal Authority to ascertain the
halal status of products.

Homogenization is a process that breaks down eggs into smaller pieces
to create a smooth, consistent texture

Initial Public Offering or IPO means first time offer of securities to the
general public.

Any of the following entities:

= A financial institution;

= A company as defined in the Companies Act, 2017;

=  Aninsurance company established under the Insurance Ordinance,
2000;

= Asecurities broker;

= Afund established as Collective Investment Scheme under the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008;

= A fund established as Voluntary Pension Scheme under the
Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005;

= A private fund established under Private Fund Regulations, 2015;

= Any employee’s fund established for the benefit of employees;

= Any other fund established under any special enactment;

=  Aforeign company or any other foreign legal person; and

= Any other entity as specified by the Commission.

The Issue comprises of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares representing 21.85%
of total post-IPO paid-up capital having a Face Value of PKR 1/- each.

The price at which Ordinary Shares of the Company are issued to the
General Public/retail portion. The Issue Price will be the Strike Price.

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited.

Chief Executive Officer, Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company.

Any person licensed by the Commission to act as Consultant to the Issue.

Arif Habib Limited has been appointed as Lead Manager/Consultant to
the Issue by the Issuer.

The bid at a Limit Price.

The maximum price (up to 40% of the Floor Price) a prospective Bidder
is willing to pay for a share under Book Building.

Chapter 5 of the Rule Book of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, titled
‘Listing of Companies and Securities Regulation’.

The aforementioned regulations can be found at the following link;
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Margin Money

Minimum Bid Size

OPRP

Ordinary Shares

PO Regulations

Price Band

Prospectus

Qce

Registration Form

Registration Period

https://psx.com.pk/psx/themes/psx/uploads/PSX-Rulebook-October-
17-2024.pdf

The partial or total amount, as the case may be, paid by a bidder at the
time of registration as an Eligible Investor. The Book Runner shall collect
full amount of the bid money as Margin Money in respect of bids placed
by an individual investor and not less than twenty five percent (25%) of
the bid money as Margin Money in respect of bids placed by an
institutional investor.

Book Runner can waive the margin money for Institutional Investors at
its own discretion.

The Bid amount equal to One Million Rupees (PKR 1,000,000/-).

An OPRP is a control measure that is used to minimize the risk of food
safety hazards.

Ordinary Shares of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited having face value of PKR
1/- each.

The Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

https://www.secp.gov.pk/document/public-offering-regulations-2017-
updated-september-15-
2021/?wpdmdI=43440&refresh=63ce67a067fd21674471328

Floor Price with an upper limit of 40% above the Floor Price, i.e. PKR
13.00/- and PKR 18.20/-, allowing Bidder to make Bid at Floor Price or
within the Price Band.

Prospectus means any document described or issued as a prospectus
and includes any document, notice, circular, material, advertisement,
and offer for sale document, publication or other invitation offering to
the public (or any section of the public) or inviting offers from the public
for the subscription or purchase of any securities of a Company or body
corporate or entity.

Quality Control Points: Quality control points are steps in the production
process that, if not properly controlled, can lead to poor or spoiled
products.

The form which is to be submitted by the Eligible Investors for
registration to participate in the Book Building process.

The period during which registration of bidders is carried out. The
registration period shall commence two days before the start of the
Bidding Period and shall remain open till 3:00 pm on the last day of the
Bidding Period.

Page 12 of 196


https://psx.com.pk/psx/themes/psx/uploads/PSX-Rulebook-October-17-2024.pdf
https://psx.com.pk/psx/themes/psx/uploads/PSX-Rulebook-October-17-2024.pdf
https://www.secp.gov.pk/document/public-offering-regulations-2017-updated-september-15-2021/?wpdmdl=43440&refresh=63ce67a067fd21674471328
https://www.secp.gov.pk/document/public-offering-regulations-2017-updated-september-15-2021/?wpdmdl=43440&refresh=63ce67a067fd21674471328
https://www.secp.gov.pk/document/public-offering-regulations-2017-updated-september-15-2021/?wpdmdl=43440&refresh=63ce67a067fd21674471328
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Related Employees

SMETA

Sponsor

Step Bid

Strike Price

Supplement to the Prospectus

System

Interpretation:

Related Employees mean such employees of the Issuer, the Book Runner
and the Consultant to the Issue, who are involved in the Issue. Please
refer to Section 3A (vi) for further details.

SMETA is an audit designed to help protect workers from unsafe
conditions, overwork, discrimination, low pay, and forced labour.

A person who has contributed initial capital in the issuing company or
has the right to appoint majority of the directors on the board of the
issuing company directly or indirectly;

A person who replaces the person referred to above; and

A person or group of persons who has control of the issuing company
whether directly or indirectly.

Step Bid means a series of limit bids at increasing prices. In case of a step
bid the amount of each step will not be less than Rupees One Million
(PKR 1,000,000/-).

The price per ordinary share of the Issue determined / discovered on the
basis of Book Building process in the manner provided in the Public
Offering Regulations 2017, at which the shares are Issued to the
successful bidders.

The Supplement to the Prospectus shall be published within One (1)
working day of the close of the Bidding Period at least in all those
newspapers in which the Prospectus was earlier published and
disseminated through the Securities Exchange where shares are to be
listed.

An online electronic system operated by the Designated Institution for
conducting Book Building.

ANY CAPITALIZED TERM CONTAINED IN THIS PROSPECTUS, WHICH IS IDENTICAL TO A CAPITALIZED TERM
DEFINED HEREIN, SHALL, UNLESS THE CONTEXT EXPRESSLY INDICATES OR REQUIRES OTHERWISE AND TO THE
EXTENT AS MAY BE APPLICABLE GIVEN THE CONTEXT, HAVE THE SAME MEANING AS THE CAPITALIZED /

DEFINED TERM PROVIDED HEREIN.
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1. APPROVALS AND LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

1.1 Approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan

Approval of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the "Commission" or the "SECP") under Section
87(2) of the Securities Act, 2015 read with Section 88(1) thereof, has been obtained by Barkat Frisian Agro
Limited (“BFAL” or the “Company”) for the issue, circulation and publication of this offering document
(hereinafter referred to as the “Prospectus”) vide their letter No SMD/PO/SA-88/05/2024 dated January 31%,
2025

DISCLAIMER:

IT MUST BE DISTINCTLY UNDERSTOOD THAT IN GIVING THIS APPROVAL, SECP DOES NOT TAKE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS OF THE COMPANY AND ANY OF ITS SCHEMES STATED
HEREIN OR FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF ANY OF THE STATEMENTS MADE OR OPINIONS EXPRESSED WITH
REGARD TO THEM BY THE COMPANY IN THIS PROSPECTUS.

SECP HAS NOT EVALUATED QUALITY OF THE ISSUE AND ITS APPROVAL FOR ISSUE, CIRCULATION AND
PUBLICATION OF THE PROSPECTUS SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS ANY COMMITMENT OF THE SAME. THE
PUBLIC / INVESTORS SHOULD CONDUCT THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT DUE DILIGENCE AND ANALYSIS
REGARDING THE QUALITY OF THE ISSUE BEFORE SUBSCRIBING.

1.2. Approval of the Prospectus by PSX
The Prospectus of the Company has been approved by PSX vide letter No. GEN - 168 dated January 22"Y, 2025
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations.

DISCLAIMER:

PSX HAS NOT EVALUATED THE QUALITY OF THE ISSUE AND ITS APPROVAL SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS
ANY COMMITMENT OF THE SAME. THE PUBLIC / INVESTORS SHOULD CONDUCT THEIR OWN INDEPENDENT
INVESTIGATION AND ANALYSIS REGARDING THE QUALITY OF THE ISSUE BEFORE SUBSCRIBING.

THE PUBLICATION OF THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT REPRESENT SOLICITATION BY PSX.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE INVITATION TO INVEST IN SHARES OR SUBSCRIBE
FOR ANY SECURITIES OR OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY PSX, NOR SHOULD IT OR ANY PART OF IT FORM
THE BASIS OF, OR BE RELIED UPON IN ANY CONNECTION WITH ANY CONTRACT OR COMMITMENT
WHATSOEVER OF PSX.

IT IS CLARIFIED THAT INFORMATION IN THIS PROSPECTUS SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS ADVICE ON ANY
PARTICULAR MATTER BY PSX AND MUST NOT BE TREATED AS A SUBSTITUTE FOR SPECIFIC ADVICE.

PSX DISCLAIMS ANY LIABILITY WHATSOEVER FOR ANY LOSS, HOWEVER ARISING FROM OR IN RELIANCE UPON
THIS DOCUMENT TO ANYONE, ARISING FROM ANY REASON, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO,
INACCURACIES, INCOMPLETENESS AND / OR MISTAKES, FOR DECISIONS AND /OR ACTIONS TAKEN, BASED ON
THIS DOCUMENT.

PSX NEITHER TAKES RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CORRECTNESS OF CONTENTS OF THIS DOCUMENT NOR THE
ABILITY OF THE COMPANY TO FULFILL ITS OBLIGATIONS THEREUNDER.

ADVICE FROM A SUITABLY QUALIFIED PROFESSIONAL SHOULD ALWAYS BE SOUGHT BY INVESTORS IN
RELATION TO ANY PARTICULAR INVESTMENT.

1.3. Filing of Prospectus and other Documents with the Registrar of Companies

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited has filed with the Registrar of Companies as required under Section 57 (1) of the Act,
a copy of this Prospectus signed by all the Directors of the Company.
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1.4. Listing on PSX

Application has been made to PSX for permission to deal in and for quotation of the shares of the Company.

If for any reason the application for formal listing is not accepted by PSX or approval for formal listing is not
granted by PSX before the expiration of twenty-one days from the date of closing of the subscription period /
list or such longer period not exceeding forty-two days as may, within the said twenty-one days, be notified to
the applicants for permission by the PSX, the Issuer undertakes that a notice to that effect will immediately be
published in the press and will refund Application Money to the applicants without surcharge as required under
the provisions of Section 69 of the Companies Act.

If any such money is not repaid within eight (08) days after the Company becomes liable to repay it, the Directors
of the Company shall be jointly and severally liable to repay that money from the expiration of the eighth day
together with surcharge at the rate of two percent (2.0%) for every month or part thereof from the expiration
of the eighth day and, in addition, shall be liable to a penalty of level 3 on the standard scale of up to PKR 100
Mn and per day penalty of Rs. 500,000 during which the default continues, as defined in Section 479 of the
Companies Act, 2017 in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 69 of the Companies Act.

As required under sub-section (3) of Section 69 of the Companies Act, the Application Money including the Bid
Money, in case of Book Building, shall be deposited and kept in a separate bank account in a scheduled bank as
long as the Company may become liable to repay it under sub-section (2) of Section 69 of the Companies Act;
and, if default is made in complying with the said sub-section (3), the Company and every officer of the Company
who authorizes or permits the default shall be liable to a penalty of level 2 on the standard scale.
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2. SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS

2.1. PRIMARY BUSINESS OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED (FORMERLY BARKAT FRISIAN
PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED)

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL), established in January 2017, is Pakistan's only producer of pasteurized egg
products. BFAL is Pakistani — Dutch joint venture between the Buksh Group and the Frisian Egg Group. The joint
venture was signed in January 2017.

Beginning operations in 2019, the company operates in the food processing, food manufacturing and poultry
sector, offering a range of pasteurized egg products—whole eggs, egg yolk, egg white in frozen, liquid and dried
form along with its derivates—tailored for large- and small-scale food manufacturers.

These products are essential ingredients for baking, cooking, protein supplements, sauces and mayonnaise,
providing increased shelf life, hygiene and enhanced nutritional value.

BFAL’s production facility, located in the Bin Qasim Industrial Park in Karachi, has an annual processing capacity
of 17,000 tons and is operating at 74.59% capacity as of FY 2024.

Plant Location Production Actual Production Capacity
Capacity (Tons) in FY24 (Tons) Utilization
WL 36 —37, Bin im In rial Park
,36 37, Qas . dustrial Park, 17,000 12,680 74.59%
Pakistan Steel, Karachi

The company’s first-mover advantage has allowed it to monopolize the market for pasteurized eggs in Pakistan,
with no direct competitors in this niche industry. Certified with 1ISO 9001:2015, FSSC 22000, HALAL and SMETA,
BFAL has built a reputation for quality, serving a mix of local and global clients.

The joint venture was signed in January 2017 and commenced operations in 2019. The Company benefits from
the synergy of its sponsors: the Buksh Group brings extensive experience in Pakistan's poultry and textile sectors,
with specialized operations in poultry feed production, eggs, and textile exports. Frisian Egg Group brings over
30 years of global experience in egg farming and processing, setting up and operating egg processing plants with
established operations in the Netherlands, China, and Egypt, a leader in egg processing with over 30 years of
experience adds its technical and operational expertise to BFAL. Frisian Egg International B.V. commenced
operations and is incorporated in Kingdom of Netherlands. The Frisian Egg Group has built a strong presence in
liquid egg products and egg powders, processing millions of eggs and contributing significant know-how to
BFAL’s growth. Please refer to Section 3.2. for more details regarding the Sponsors.

The Company plans to further expand into the local and global market by setting up a new plant in M-3 Industrial
City, Faisalabad. BFAL is currently exporting to UAE, Qatar, Kuwait, KSA, Bahrain, Egypt, and Oman. As of FY
2024, export sales only account for 10.4% of total sales amounting PKR 631 Mn. The new plant will support the
Company’s operations by lowering the capacity utilization of its existing facility to better serve the local market,
while the freed-up capacity at the Karachi plant will be utilized to expand into global markets. BFAL is also in
process of establishing a subsidiary in United Arab Emirates bolstering its presence in the Middle Eastern market.

2.2. SPONSORS OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED:

The Sponsors of the Company are:

1. Frisian Egg International B.V.
B&Z Enterprise (Pvt) Ltd.
Wagqas Gulzar

Muhammad Adil Ali
Muhammad Ali Ansari
Naheed Ali Ansari

owu ks wLN
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2.3. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE ISSUE

The Issue comprises of 67,735,000 Ordinary shares of face value worth PKR 1/- each, which constitutes 21.85%
of the total post-IPO paid up capital of the Company.

This Issue of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares will be offered through the 100% Book Building process at a Floor Price
of PKR 13.00/- per share. Initially, 75% of the issue size i.e., 50,801,250 Ordinary Shares will be allotted to
Successful Bidders and 25% of the issue i.e., 16,933,750 Ordinary Shares will be offered to Retail Investors.
Unsubscribed shares, if any, of the General Subscription portion will be allocated to Successful Bidders of the
Book Building portion on a pro-rata basis.

The proceeds from the IPO at the Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- are expected to be as follows:

Aggregate Proceeds Number of Shares Price/Share Total Proceeds (Rs.)

Public Issue 67,735,000 13.00 880,555,000

2.4. PRE AND POST ISSUE SHAREHOLDING OF THE SPONSORS

Post IPO, Shareholding pattern and Dilution is provided in the table below:

Shareholder Pre-Issue Shareholding Post-Issue Shareholding

Sponsors /Directors Number of Shares % Holding Number of Shares % Holding
rr:ijf:aiigognal - 121,127,492 50.00% 121,127,492 39.07%
Eii]zitizterprise (Pvt) 79,941,585 33.00% 79,941,585 25.79%
Wagas Gulzar 24,225,538 10.00% 24,225,538 7.81%
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 4.00% 9,690,212 3.13%
Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 1.61% 3,901,000 1.26%
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1.39% 3,369,354 1.09%
Johan Stuiver 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Paul Ettema 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Mehmood Arshad 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Nadia Ishtiaq 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Anwar Al 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Public Offering - - 67,735,000 21.85%
Total 242,255,384 100% 309,990,384 100%

*Naheed Ali Ansari is the mother of Muhammad Adil Ali and Muhammad Ali Ansari is the father of Muhammad
Adil Ali. These three individuals are a part of Buksh Group.

2.5. PRINCIPAL PURPOSE OF THE EQUITY CAPITAL RAISING

The Company plans to raise PKR 880,555,000/- at a Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share through IPO.

The principal purpose of the issue is to set up a new production facility at M-3 Industrial City, Faisalabad to
increase its current production capacity by 12,000 tons to meet the increasing demand in local and global
markets. The Company has taken a short term, interest free, loan of PKR 73,150,000 from its sponsors to begin
construction. The proceeds from Initial Public Offering will be utilized to repay this loan. As foreseen in its long-
term planning, the Company has now reached capacity utilization of 74.59% at its egg pasteurization plant. To
serve the growing demand of pasteurized egg both in local and export markets, the Company has to further
expand its existing capacity. The new plant will be located at Plot No. 51, Phase Il, M3 Industrial City in
Faisalabad. The current production capacity of BFAL is 17,000 tons and will increase by 71% to 29,000 tons. The
new plant will be located at Plot No. 51, Phase Il, M3 Industrial City in Faisalabad. This facility will focus
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exclusively on local customers, alleviating pressure on the existing plant and enabling the company to expand
its global customer portfolio. The global portfolio includes Kerry Group, Mondelez International, Sri Lankan
Airlines and Areej Vegetable Oil & Derivatives etc.

2.5.1. Sources of Funding:

The source of funding will be proceeds from the IPO and internally generated cash. The Company plans to issue
a total of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares through IPO at a floor price of PKR 13.00/- per share to raise PKR
880,555,000/-.

L Paials | Cost(PKRMn) | Percentage (%)

Proceeds from Initial Public Offering 881 94%
Internally Generated Cash 63 6%
Total 944 100%

For a detailed breakdown of utilization of funds please refer to Section 4.3

2.5.2. Utilization of IPO Proceeds:

The IPO proceeds will be primarily used for setting up the new production facility in Faisalabad and finance
working capital requirements for post expansion needs.! The principal purpose of the issue is to set up a new
production facility at M-3 Industrial City, Faisalabad to increase its current production capacity by 12,000 tons
to meet the increasing demand in local and global markets. The Company has taken a short term, interest free,
loan of PKR 73.15 Mn from its sponsors to ensure continued progress on the project and to ensure timely
completion. The proceeds from Initial Public Offering will be utilized to repay this loan.

L paticls | Cost(PKR) Percentage (%)

Plant, Machinery, Civil work and Land etc. 807,405,000 91.69%
Loan Repayment 73,150,000 8.31%
Total 880,555,000 100%

Detailed breakdown of IPO proceeds:

% of Total
Cost (PKR) Percentage (%) IPO

Proceeds
Plant & Machinery 446,280,335 55.27% 50.68%
Civil work & Land development charges 166,624,612 20.65% 18.92%
Mechanical and Electrical Installation 75,000,000 9.29% 8.52%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 119,500,053 14.79% 13.57%
Total A 807,405,000 100% 91.69%

Loan Repayment:

Plant & Machinery 24,115,229 32.97% 2.74%
Civil work & Land development charges 46,021,460 62.96% 5.23%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 3,013,311 4.08% 0.34%
Total B 73,150,000 100% 8.31%
Total IPO Proceeds C=(A+B) 880,555,000 100% 100%

For a detailed breakup of utilization of proceeds, please refer to Section 4.3

L Any cost overrun due to exchange rate fluctuations or otherwise will be financed by the Company through its internal cash
generation
Page 19 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

2.6. JUSTIFICATON GIVEN BY THE LEAD MANAGER/CONSULTANT TO THE ISSUE IN FAVOR OF
FLOOR PRICE OF PKR 13.00/- PER SHARE MAY BE SEEN AT SECTION 4A OF THE PROSPECTUS,
TITLED VALUATON SECTION

2.7. QUALIFIED OPINION, IF ANY, GIVEN BY THE AUDITOR DURING THE LAST THREE FINANCIAL
YEARS

No qualified opinion was given on the financial statements of the Company during the last three financial years,
i.e. FY24, FY23, FY22, by the Company’s Auditors, i.e. Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. Chartered Accountants.

2.8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION — (PLEASE REFER TO SECTION 6.7 FOR FURTHER DETAILS AND
RATIOS ANALYSIS)

The audited financials of the Company can be downloaded from the following link:
https://barkatfrisian.com/financial-reports/

I ™ ™ N

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

capital®

Net Worth 250 398 1,107 1,592
Revenue 2,470 4,325 6,068 3,790
Gross Profit/(Loss) 279 448 700 439
Gross Margin 11% 10% 12% 12%
Operating Profit/(Loss) 212 349 549 327
Operating Margin 9% 8% 9% 9%
Profit After Tax/(Loss) 138 148 380 323
Net Margin 6% 3% 6% 9%
No of Shares Outstanding

(Corresponding Period) 0.9 0.9 0.9 0.9
Earnings per Share

(Corresponding Period) (PKR) 153.23 164.63 421.96 369.39
No of Shares at year End 2422 2422 2422 242.2
adjusted

Earnings per Share adjusted

(PKR)* 0.57 0.61 1.57 1.37
Break-up value per share

without revaluation surplus 277.65 422.28 873.93 1,420.80

(Corresponding Period) (PKR)

Break-up value per share with

revaluation surplus N/A 1,230.28 1,768.83
(Corresponding Period) (PKR)

2 Post 1QFY25 the company performed a stock split of and rights issue detailed in the footnote below therefore changing the
Paid-up capital to 242.25Mn

3 This company did a stock split in 1:100 ratio and then issued 152.25 Mn shares after Q1 FY25.

4The Company issued 152.25 Mn shares after Q1 FY25, with total paid up capital standing at 242.25 Mn. Earnings per
share were calculated on the quantity of these new shares
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Break-up value per share (PKR)

without revaluation surplus 1.03 1.64 3.25 5.27
adjusted®

Break-up value per share with

revaluation surplus (PKR) N/A 4.6 6.57
adjusted ®

Total Borrowings 528 733 659 491
Total Debt to Equity - % 211% 184% 60% 31%
Total Debt to Capital- % 68% 65% 37% 24%
Cashflow from Operations (8.8) (17.6) 58.8 38

2.9. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There is only routine litigation incidental to business operations to which the Company is a party. However, said
litigation is expected not to have any material impact on the Company or its shareholders in the future.
Moreover, the company has recently challenged the minimum tax it was charged in FY23 and FY24.

The company is established in Special Economic Zone and has started commercial operations from Financial Year
ended June 30, 2019. Hence income of company is exempt from Income Tax and minimum tax for ten years from
the date of commencement of operations. The Company is now fully exempt from income tax till tax year 2029.
Furthermore, even after 2029, the minimum turnover tax, which the company will be charged is 0.75% due to
its business operations in the poultry sector. ’

However, the company was charged with minimum tax levy in FY 24. This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied
by the Government for tax year 2023 and onwards. The Company, is a SEZ entity and together with other SEZ
entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-6752/2022 before the Sindh High Court. The aforesaid matter is still
pending adjudication and company has good arguable case on the merits with chance of favorable outcome.
However, company has made provision for this minimum tax in the year ended June 30, 2024. This minimum tax
u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 is now repealed through Finance Act 2024. The
aforesaid would be nil in the year ended June 30, 2025.

Order Dated Issum-g Tax Period Financial Current Status Management
Authority Impact Stance

This
First Order minimum
Date: tax u/s 113,
Minimum which was As law has
1°t— Nov — levied by been
2022 Tax for the repealed
. . TY 2023 TY2024: P
CPD- Sindh High and TY 40 78mn government the need of
6752/2022 Court ) for the tax = legal action
2024 and
Last Order TY2023: year 2023 does not
Date: 30 57m|.1 and tax exist
' year 2024is  anymore
19t - Dec - now
2024 repealed
through

5 The Company executed a rights issue of 152,255,384 shares on 17th December, 2024. The company previously had a paid-
up capital of 90,000,000 shares and after the rights issue the paid-up capital stood at 242,255,384 shares. The
rights issue was executed by converting a foreign loan from the sponsors, repaying the local loan, and utilizing the
proceeds in the rights issue.

6 Same as outlined in the footnote number 5 above.

7 https://www.kcci.com.pk/ https://download1.fbr.gov.pk/Docs/20217118751147CircularNo.20f2021-22.pdf page 8
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Finance Act
2024

Note: There are no other pending litigations against the Company, Sponsors, Substantial Shareholders and
Directors other than those already mentioned above.

2.10. RISK FACTORS

For key risk factors that include Business, Operational, Finance, Legal and Other Risks, and that may have an
impact on the Company, its business operations and the IPO, please refer to Section 5 of the Prospectus.

2.11. SUMMARY OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are incurred in ordinary course of business only, and these are duly disclosed in
financial statements. All transactions with related party are carried out at arm’s length basis. The related parties
comprise associated undertakings, directors of the Company, key management personnel and post-employment
benefit plans. The Company, in its normal course of business, carries out transactions with various related
parties. Transactions entered with related parties are as follows:

Relationship

Nature

FY 2022

FY 2023

FY 2024

Purchases - Raw

PKR Mn

PKR Mn

Associate - o 84.9 93.8 51.2 36.0
Adil Poultry  Common ownership Materia
Farm / shareholding / Payable balance - 5.0 6.4 -
Control Advance to supplier 16.2 - - -
P“rtc hésles - Raw - 9.8 103.2 160.5
Adorn Associate - materia
| . Common ownership  Payable balance - 0.5 0.0 23.0
nternationa .
| / shareholding /
Control
ontro Sales - 0.0 - -
Amna Assoclate- | Purchases - Raw 14.9 35.0 27.7 26.1
Common ownership  material
Poultry .
Farm / shareholding /
Control Payable balance 5.5 - 2.6
. Purche.lses - Raw i 75 15
B&Z Farms Associate material
Payable balance - 7.5 -
Purchases - Raw
Associate - material 191 1.6 -
Buksh Farms Common own.ershlp Payable balance 33 3.3 3.3
/ shareholding / ,
Control Purchases - Packing 12.0 i i
material
Payable balance 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
Loan received during 437
Frisian E :
InrtI::‘ir;tigiz Associate Company  the year
50% Shareholder
I B.V.
Loan transferred to 76.1

equity
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Loan paid during the
year

15.8

Loan adjusted during
the year (FX 62.8
difference)

Loan payable to

201.9 229.2 154.8 43.7
related party

Received against
fresh capital
Loan received during
the year
Loan paid during the
year
Loan payable to
related party
Received against
fresh capital
Loan received during
the year
Muhammad CEO / Director / Loan paid during the
Adil Ali Shareholder year
Loan payable to
related party

52.9

B&Z Associated 42.2

Enterprise Company 33%
(Pvt) Limited Shareholding

59.0
38.0 38.0 38.0 211
6.0
12.2
6.0
1.2 1.2 1.2 7.4

Remuneration 2.3 2.3 2.7

Purchases - Vehicle 1.3 - -

Received against
fresh capital

Associate person | 53n received during
Naheed Ali lineal Ascendant of the year

CEO holds 1.39%

1.8

2.8

Loan paid during the
year

4.3

Loan payable to

1.5 1.5 1.5 -
related party

Sultan Payable balance 1.8 1.8 1.8
Poultry Associate Purchases - Raw
Farm material
Loan received during
the year
M;::‘:r:sr:sd Company Secretary \l;Z:: paid during the 5.8
Loan payable to
related party
Received against
fresh capital
Wagqas Director, has 10% Loan received during
Gulzar shareholding the year
Loan paid during the 15.2
year

11.0 35 -

15.2

- - - 4.4
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Loan payable to
related party

13.3 133 133 2.5

Note:
Adil Poultry Farm: Owned by Chief Executive

Adorn International: Owned by Sponsors of B&Z Enterprise (for details, kindly refer to Section 3.2)
Amna Poultry Farm: Owned by spouse of Chief Executive

Buksh Farms and Sultan Poultry Farm were merged to form Adorn International and are owned by the Sponsors of B&Z
Enterprise
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3. OVERVIEW, HISTORY AND PROSPECTS

3.1. COMPANY HISTORY & OVERVIEW

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian

Name Pasteurized Egg Company (Pvt) Limited)
Incorporation Number 0104739

Date of Incorporation and Place 5t January 2017, Karachi

Date of Commencement of Business October 2019

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (“BFAL”, “Company” or the “Issuer”) was incorporated on 5% January, 2017, as a
private limited company under the Companies Ordinance 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017) and was converted
into a public limited company on 27™ December, 2024. BFAL commenced operations in October 2019 and
operates in food processing, manufacturing industry and poultry sector. Barkat Frisian Agro Limited is a Pakistan
— Dutch Joint Venture Company and was formed in January 2017. It was established to cater the Hotels,
Restaurants and Catering, dressing and sauces, baking and cooking industry and FMCGs locally and globally. The
company’s core operations include manufacturing and sale of pasteurized eggs, egg yolk, egg whites, and
customized egg-based products to large- and small-scale food manufacturers.

The Company essentially has three primary products, extracted from natural eggs:

e Pasteurized Whole Egg: Pasteurized whole eggs are egg products that have been heat-treated to
eliminate bacteria.

e Pasteurized Egg Yolk: Pasteurized egg yolk is the rich, nutrient-dense portion of the egg, pasteurized to
remove pathogens.

e Pasteurized Egg White: Pasteurized egg whites are a fat-free, protein-rich product that undergoes
pasteurization to ensure safety.

The pasteurized egg products are extensively used in baking products (cakes, cookies, pastries), cooking (eggs,
omelets), protein supplements, sauces and mayonnaise. They not only enrich and enhance the taste of the
products but also ensures hygiene, retains the nutritional value of the eggs, and increases the overall shelf life
of the eggs.

BFAL is a leading innovator in the Pakistani industry for manufacturing of pasteurized eggs and egg products.
BFAL has state of the art, European standard, production facility which enabled the Company to achieve
staggering growth and business expansion over the years reaping the benefits of monopoly. The company has
already acquired multiple certifications including IS0 9001:2015, FSSC 22000, HALAL and SMETA. The production
facility is situated at WL 36 — 37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi and has the capacity to process
17,000 tons of eggs annually. As of FY 2024, BFAL's actual production stands at 12,680 tons with a capacity
utilization of 74.59%.

BFAL is a joint venture between Buksh Group and Frisian Egg Group. Buksh Group has deep routed presence in
Pakistan’s poultry and textile sector, producing poultry feed, eggs and textile products. Frisian Egg group brings
over 30 years of global experience in egg farming and processing, with established operationsin the Netherlands,
China, and Egypt. Frisian Egg International B.V. is incorporated in Kingdom of Netherlands and commenced its
operations from Kingdom of Netherlands as well.

Since its inception, BFAL has experienced remarkable growth, reflecting the increasing demand for pasteurized
egg products in Pakistan. Sales volume surged from 1,286 tons in FY20 to 12,680 tons in FY24, highlighting the
growing market demand. To keep pace with its rapid expansion and cater to both local and international
customers, BFAL plans to increase production capacity by constructing a second plant in Faisalabad increasing
the production capacity by 12,000 tons totaling to 29,000. The current production capacity of BFAL is 17,000
tons and is operating at 74.59% capacity utilization. The Company is actively targeting export opportunities,
including the Central Asian markets, and targeting major potential customers, which the company previously
did not due to existing capacity constraints. Furthermore, the Company intends to target other customers in
the bakery chain. The new facility in Faisalabad is strategically located to strengthen the Company’s
geographical presence in the egg market and provides significant cost advantages. This new facility will focus
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on meeting domestic demand, which will allow the Karachi plant to concentrate on expanding international
sales, thereby further solidifying BFAL’s presence in the global market. BFAL is currently exporting to UAE, KSA,
Bahrain, Oman, Qatar, Kuwait and Egypt. The Company is in agreement with a distribution company, Bakery
Line Catering, based in Kuwait for export distribution. Additionally, for local distribution, BFAL manages its
distribution with the help of two transport service providers, namely, Shah Transport and M. Fayyaz Goods
Transport Company. BFAL is also setting up a subsidiary in United Arab Emirates to further boost its export
potential in the Middle Eastern market.

Furthermore, the Company is exploring opportunities to set up a production line for egg powder in Karachi. This
strategic expansion will not only enhance the company’s product offerings but also strengthen its position in the
competitive landscape, allowing for increased flexibility and responsiveness to market demands. Moreover, the
Company is Shariah Compliant as well.

3.2. PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding (pre and post IPO) of BFAL is as follows:

Shareholder Pre-Issue Shareholding Post-Issue Shareholding

Sponsors / Directors Number of Shares % Holding Number of Shares % Holding
rr:lseif:afigognal By 121,127,492 50.00% 121,127,492 39.07%
fii‘qzitizterprise (Pvt.) 79,941,585 33.00% 79,941,585 25.79%
Wagqas Gulzar 24,225,538 10.00% 24,225,538 7.81%
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 4.00% 9,690,212 3.13%
Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 1.61% 3,901,000 1.26%
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1.39% 3,369,354 1.09%
Johan Stuiver 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Paul Ettema 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Mehmood Arshad 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Nadia Ishtiag 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Anwar Ali 1 0.00% 1 0.00%
Public Offering = = 67,735,000 21.85%
Total 242,255,384 100% 309,990,384 100%

The detail of major shareholders is as follows:
Frisian Egg International B.V.:

Frisian Egg International B.V. brings over 30 years of global experience in egg farming and processing, setting up
and operating egg processing plants with established operations in the Netherlands, China, and Egypt. Founded
by Jappie Stuiver in 1981 in Kingdom of Netherlands. Frisian Egg International B.V. initially focused on egg
packing before expanding into egg breaking and processing in 1992. Under the leadership of his sons, Johan and
Rolf, the company has grown to process millions of eggs daily, specializing in liquid egg products and egg
powders, thereby positioning itself as a leader in the egg processing industry. (Website: www.frisianegg.com)

Frisian Egg International B.V.’s subsidiaries include:

Country .
Incorporation
Egyptian Pasteurized 7t December, Producer of Pasteurized egg

E
Egg Co gypt 2004 products
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Chengdu Frisian Egg . 18" October, Producer of Pasteurized egg
2 China
Company 2010 products
Kingdom of Producer of Pasteurized egg

3 | Frisian Egg B.V. 4t July, 2001

Netherlands products
4 Inter'natlonal Egg Kingdom of the 14 June, 2017 Suppller and installer of egg
Trading Netherlands processing plants
5 Dutch Egg membrane Kingdom of the 5t September, Producer of egg shell membranes
Protein Powder Netherlands 2016 and products

B&Z Enterprise (Pvt) Limited:

B&Z Enterprise (Pvt) Ltd is a holding company with a 33% shareholding in BFAL. The company plays a critical role
in facilitating the Buksh Group’s strategic involvement in BFAL.

Buksh Group Overview

The Buksh Group, established in 1989, is a consortium of family-owned businesses with diverse interests in
textile, poultry, and manufacturing sectors. The Group operates through four entities, either fully owned or
under the management control of its sponsors: Muhammad Ali Ansari, Shaukat Ali Ansari, Anwar Ali, and
Muhammad Arif, who are immediate family members. This familial ownership fosters strong strategic alignment
and operational synergy across the Group’s operations. (Website: www.bukshgroup.net)

Principle Line of Business:

The Buksh Group specializes in:
e  Knitted garment manufacturing and exports through Buksh Industries (Pvt) Ltd.
e  Poultry feed production and egg farming via Adorn International (Pvt) Ltd.
e  Steel drum manufacturing with Barkat Steel (Pvt) Ltd.

The Group’s extensive expertise in diverse sectors significantly enhances BFAL’s operational capabilities and
market outreach.

Buksh Group’s companies under common ownership/control include:

Shareholding Management
ol [ [FURPE] R | mew |

B&Z Enterprise Holding Company which has a

1 pvt) Limited Pakistan 100% Yes shareholding in Barkat Frisian
(Pvt) Limite Agro Limited
Buksh Industries (Pvt) . o Manufacturers and exporters
2 Ltd* Pakistan 40% ves of knitted garments
Adorn International . Manufacturers of poultry feed
[t
3 (Pvt) Ltd* Pakistan 40% ves and egg farming
4 | Barkat Steel (Pvt) Ltd = Pakistan 100% Yes Manufacturers of steel drums

*The remaining shareholding in Buksh Industries (Pvt) Limited and Adorn International (Pvt) Limited is held by
different members of the Buksh family.

Ansari Ansari

The above mentioned 4 individuals referred
- i to a Buksh Group/Family have equal
Buksh Group shareholding in the below 4 Associated
companies.

100% 40% 40% lDD%

B&Z Enterprise Buksh Industries e Ad",:“ : Barkat Steel
(Pvt) Limited (Pvt) Limited (':,:t;“f:n'_r‘?t": o (Pvt) Limited
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3.3. REVENUE DRIVERS:

The key revenue drivers of BFAL include:

1. Leader in the Industry:

As the first-mover in the pasteurized egg industry in Pakistan, the company enjoys a unique position in the
market, leveraging its monopoly to redefine industry standards and consumer behavior. Pasteurized eggs are a
novel product in the region, providing the company with an opportunity to establish itself as the industry leader.
The pioneering status of the company enables them to develop targeted strategies to capture demand across
diverse customer segments, including food manufacturers, confectioners, and food service providers. By
addressing the market’s demand for pasteurized eggs in its nascent stage, the company is laying the foundation
for long-term revenue growth and strong customer relationships.

2. Fresh Market Segment:

Pakistan’s egg consumption market, predominantly reliant on traditional shell eggs, presents an untapped
opportunity for innovation. Traditional eggs often lack compliance with global food safety standards, creating a
gap in the market for safer, modern alternatives. The company targets food manufacturers, bakeries, and the
food service sector, offering pasteurized eggs as a solution to the health and safety challenges of traditional
products. By modernizing egg consumption practices, the company aims to capture a significant share of the
market and drive sustained revenue growth.

3. Surgein Local Egg Demand:

The local egg market has demonstrated significant growth over the years, indicating a positive outlook for the
future. Over the past five years, local egg production has achieved a compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of

5.8%. This robust growth reflects increasing demand and highlights the market's potential for further expansion.
8

Eggs Production (Mn)

25,212
23,819
21,269 22,512
20,116 '

FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24
Source: PACRA

Furthermore, the per capita annual consumption of eggs in Pakistan is 90 eggs.” The current population of
Pakistan is 241.49 Mn*° bringing the annual egg consumption to 21 Bn eggs annually. Moreover, the future egg
consumption in Pakistan is also forecasted to grow at a steady rate.!!

8 https://www.pacra.com/view/storage/app/Poultry%20-PACRA%20Research%20-Sep%2724 _1727185385.pdf /

9 https://www.karandaaz.com.pk/capital/direct-investments/wahdat-farm

10 https://www.pbs.gov.pk/

Uhttps://www.statista.com/outlook/cmo/food/dairy-products-eggs/eggs/pakistan#volume
https://www.finance.gov.pk/survey/chapter 24/2_agriculture.pdf
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Eggs Consumption (Bn Kg)

1

1 1
1 1.45 1
1 1
1 1.42 1
1 1
1 1
1137 !
1 1
1 1
1.33 1 1
1 1
1.30 1 1
1 1
1.28 . .
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
2022 2023 2024 : 2025 2026 2027 :
! *forecasted !

-

Source: Statista

4. High Profile Clients:

BFAL has strong customer relationships with very high-profile customers like Unilever, English Biscuit
Manufacturers and Ismail Industries. These companies have steady growth, higher purchasing power and
willingness to invest in high quality products. This highlights the Company’s strong consumer base and high
growth prospects.

5. Food Safety and Convenience:

With evolving lifestyles, there is a growing demand for convenient food options among urban consumers. This
shift is accompanied by an increasing focus on stringent food safety compliance, which is transforming
traditional industry dynamics. Ready-to-cook egg products, such as pasteurized eggs, emerge as a time-saving
solution that also eliminate the risk of harmful pathogens, making them safe for both raw and cooked
applications. The company is able to command premium pricing by highlighting the superior safety, quality, and
convenience of its products:

e Safety Assurance: Pasteurized eggs significantly reduce the risk of salmonella, leading
consumers and businesses to prioritize this safety guarantee and be willing to pay a higher
price.

e Longer Shelf Life: The extended shelf life of pasteurized eggs minimizes wastage, appealing to
both businesses and consumers. This characteristic justifies the premium pricing, as it offers
added value and efficiency in food preparation.

Overall, these factors position the company favorably within the market, catering to the increasing demand for
safe and convenient food options.

6. Expanding Product Portfolio:

The company aims to diversify its product range to create additional revenue streams. By introducing value-
added products, targeting niche audiences, and providing convenience-driven solutions, we seek to meet
diverse consumer needs effectively.

i) Egg Powder: This product serves as a convenient whole egg substitute in protein-rich baked
goods, thanks to its longer shelf life. Currently imported into Pakistan, there is no local
manufacturer, presenting a significant market opportunity.

ii) Eggshell Membrane: This thin layer, found between the eggshell and egg white, has diverse
applications across various industries, including biomedical and animal feed, due to its rich
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composition of proteins, collagen, and other beneficial compounds. The Company’s Dutch
partner already produces this product and possesses expertise in its production.

iii) Value-Added Shell Egg Products: These are innovative or enhanced versions of standard eggs
that offer additional benefits, convenience, or functionality. We plan to diversify our
offerings with the following products:

a) Organic Eggs
b) Free-Range Eggs
c) Pasteurized Shell Eggs

By expanding the product portfolio, the company is well-positioned to capture new market

opportunities and enhance its competitive edge in the industry.

3.4. COST DRIVERS

1. Cost of Raw and Packing Materials:

The largest cost driver is the cost of sourcing fresh eggs from poultry farms. Factors such as market fluctuations,
seasonality, quality, and the scale of procurement (bulk discounts) impact the overall cost. The primary raw
material is “Shell Egg”. BFAL sources these eggs locally and then processes them. Raw materials accounted for
96% of the cost of sales in FY24. Pasteurized eggs products require food-grade packaging to ensure safety and
product longevity. These packaging are imported from China and Europe. BFAL maintains a streamlined supply
chain and reinforces synergies within the corporate structure, fostering a cohesive approach to meeting market
demands effectively.

2. Utilities

Utilities expenses constitute the 2™ largest overheads component and account for 1.4% of the production cost
and the second major expense incurred by the company. The company currently relies on the national grid.
Fluctuations in the tariff pricing of electricity can impact the margins of the Company.

3. Salaries and Wages

Salaries and wages form the 3" largest overheads component and represent 0.38% of the total cost of sales in
FY 2024, compared to 0.45% in FY 2023. Since the plant is highly state-of-the-art, skilled labor is an integral part
for running the plant operations.

4. Selling and Distribution Expense

Selling and distribution expenses are an integral part of the business. Selling and Distribution expenses
amounted to 1.7% of sales in FY2024 compared to 1.5% in FY2023. These primarily include expenses incurred
on account of travelling and field force salaries & incentives.
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3.5. COMPANY ORGANOGRAM

Board of Directors

Internal Audit
Department

Chief Executive Officer| Company Secretary

Head of Production & Head of Operations

Corporate Affairs
Project and Quality Assurance e e =

Chief Financial Officer

Production Operations Procurement

Finance Department Department Department Department

- . Plant Maintenance
Office Administration Bepaament QA/QC Department

HR Department Factory Administration

3.6. KEY MILESTONES

2017 | BFAL was incorporated as a private limited company to set up its first production plant in Karachi.
2017 | BFAL did ground breaking of its Karachi plant.

2018 | BFAL announced the successful financial close, attended by all key stakeholders.

2018 | BFAL began construction of its first production plant in Karachi.

2019 BFAL announced inauguration ceremony.

2019 | BFAL commenced Commercial production with a production capacity of 8,500 tons.

2019 | BFAL received tax exemption for its plant at Port Qasim, Karachi till 2029.

2021 | BFAL added a new production line increasing the production capacity to 17,000 tons annually.
2021 | BFALachieved 1.2 Bn in Sales.

2022 BFAL began exporting in the Middle East to UAE.

2024 | BFAL received tax exemption for the upcoming plant in Faisalabad till 2036.

2024 | BFAL commenced construction for its new production plant in Faisalabad in December 2024.

3.7. LOCATION OF PLANT AND PRODUCTION CAPACITY:

The Company’s first production facility is located at WL 36 — 37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Bin Qasim, Karachi
and operating at 75% capacity. The Company purchased a new land of 2.5 acres to set up another production
facility which is located at Plot No.51 Phase Il M3 Industrial City (M3IC), Faisalabad. This facility will have a
production capacity of up to 12,000 tons.
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Factory - |

(Karachi) 17,000 6.6 17,000
Factory — I

(Faisalabad) ) - 32.9 12,000
Total 46.6 17,000 79.5 29,000

3.8. INFRASTRUCTURE OVERVIEW

3.8.1. Manufacturing Facility:

The company's production facilities are designed to meet the highest industry standards, featuring a state-of-
the-art plant dedicated to producing value-added egg products in compliance with European regulations. The
plant was imported from Netherlands through International Egg Trading BV in 2018 who also installed the plant.

The production area is meticulously organized into dedicated zones, each tailored for specific processing
functions. The cleaning and grading zone is equipped with advanced sensors for quality checks, ensuring that
only the highest quality raw materials are selected for processing. In the breaking and separation area, stringent
hygiene standards are maintained to guarantee the safety and quality of the eggs as they are broken and
separated. The filtration, homogenization, and pasteurization processes employ cutting-edge technology to
ensure product safety and extend shelf life, meeting all necessary food safety requirements.

An in-house microbiological and analytical laboratory supports rigorous quality control throughout the
production process. This facility conducts regular testing to ensure that all products meet the highest safety and
quality standards. The storage facilities are designed to maintain the freshness and integrity of both raw
materials and finished products. Dedicated cold storage areas preserve temperature-sensitive items, while
separate dry storage is provided for ingredients and packaging materials, protecting them from moisture and
contamination.

The facility is equipped with essential utilities to support smooth operations. Adequate lighting is installed
throughout the premises to enhance safety and operational efficiency, ensuring that all areas are well-lit for
production activities. Advanced heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) systems maintain optimal
climate conditions in both production and storage areas, which is crucial for product integrity. Regular cleaning
schedules are enforced to uphold hygiene standards, while preventive maintenance programs for production
equipment minimize downtime and ensure continuous operations.

The facility currently has the following machinery:
Egg Breaking Machine

An egg-breaking machine is designed to automate the process of cracking eggs, significantly increasing efficiency
in high-volume environments such as bakeries, food processing plants, and egg product manufacturing. This
machine enables the rapid processing of large quantities of eggs, reducing labor costs and ensuring consistency
in egg cracking, which is essential for further processing.

Chiller

A chiller is vital for maintaining optimal temperature conditions during the pasteurization process and for cooling
eggs or liquid egg products afterward. By ensuring precise temperature control, the chiller helps to eliminate
harmful bacteria, such as Salmonella, during pasteurization while preserving the eggs' quality. This process is
crucial for both food safety and product integrity.

Filling Machine

The filling machine is integral to the packaging process of liquid egg products, such as whole eggs, egg whites,
egg yolks, or pasteurized shell eggs. After pasteurization and cooling, this machine automates the filling, sealing,
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and packaging of egg products into containers, ensuring accuracy, hygiene, and efficiency in the packaging line,
readying the products for distribution.

Homogenizer

A homogenizer is used to ensure the uniformity and consistency of liquid egg products. By breaking down the
egg mixture into smaller, uniform particles, the homogenizer enhances the texture and stability of the product.
This process ensures that fat and other components, such as proteins, are evenly distributed, resulting in a
smoother, higher-quality product.

Pasteurization Machine

The pasteurization machine is essential for ensuring the safety and quality of egg products. Through a controlled
heating process, the machine reduces harmful microorganisms, such as Salmonella, without compromising the
integrity of the eggs. This process ensures that the final product is safe for consumption while retaining its
desirable taste and texture.

Specialized Mixing Tank

In an egg pasteurization plant, a specialized mixing tank is used to blend various ingredients, such as salt, sugar,
or enzymes, with the egg base to create customized products. This is particularly important for producing
specialty items, such as salted yolk or sugar egg products, tailored to specific customer requirements. The mixing
tank ensures consistent ingredient distribution and product quality.

Freezing System

The freezing system is used to produce frozen egg products, which are primarily intended for export. This system
rapidly freezes liquid egg products to preserve their quality and extend their shelf life, allowing for transportation
and storage of products in a frozen state without compromising food safety or product integrity.

Hot Water Boiler

The hot water boiler plays a critical role in providing the necessary heat to process the eggs safely and efficiently.
In particular, the boiler supplies the hot water or steam needed to raise the temperature of eggs to a level that
ensures the destruction of harmful microorganisms (such as Salmonella) while maintaining the quality of the
eggs.

Air Compressor

An air compressor serves several important functions that support the overall pasteurization process and ensure
the safe and efficient handling of eggs. While the primary function of the plant is to safely heat the eggs to
destroy harmful pathogens, such as Salmonella, without cooking them, the air compressor plays a critical role in
other aspects of the operation.

Health and safety are prioritized through comprehensive compliance measures. The facility is certified for FSSC
22000 and HALAL, adhering to strict hygiene protocols in the handling, processing and storage of eggs to ensure
consumer safety. Safety equipment, including fire extinguishers and first aid kits, is strategically placed
throughout the facility, complemented by regular training sessions for employees on safety practices and
emergency protocols.

Robust technological solutions support the manufacturing infrastructure. High-speed internet connectivity
enhances operational efficiency and facilitates effective communication across the facility. Advanced sensors
and control systems are utilized for real-time monitoring of production processes, ensuring consistent product
quality and operational excellence.

To enhance operational flexibility, the facility offers custom packaging options tailored to customer
requirements, improving convenience and usability for end users. Additionally, the capability to provide
customized compositions, such as separating yolks and whites or blending with sugar and salt, allows the
company to meet diverse consumer preferences.
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Quality assurance is integral to the production process, with continuous monitoring conducted throughout
production, including during pasteurization and refrigeration, to ensure adherence to quality standards. The
focus on delivering consistent quality is complemented by improvements in emulsion, heat stability, and
extended shelf life, reinforcing the company's commitment to excellence.

3.8.2.

Process Support Facilities

The electricity supplier for the Company is Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation. Moreover, the
company has its own solar plant as well along with standby generators. The capacity breakdown of these sources
is listed below:

1
2
3

3.8.3.

Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation 0.504
Solar Plant (KW) 0.125
Generators 0.636
Total 1.265

Suppliers Profile:

Ovobel: OVOBEL supplies a complete range of equipment and machinery for the entire production
process - from breaking and separating the egg to homogenizing, pasteurizing, storing, cooling or spray
drying the product. OVOBEL is the exclusive supplier of Coenraadts egg breaking machines. These
machines have been distributed worldwide by OVOBEL. It is based in Belgium. 12

Fujian Snowman: Snowman, is a high-tech enterprise with compressor technology as a core,
specialized in development, designing, manufacturing, sales, installation and after-sales service of
industrial & commercial refrigeration and cold storage units as well as complete packages of
refrigeration systems and ice making system. It is based in China.

Carrier: Carrier provides Fire & Security and Cold Chain solutions to companies and households; it is
based in United States. 14

Gronfa: Gronfa Procestechniek, based in The Kingdom of Netherlands, is a manufacturing company of
mixing technologies, filling machinery for IBC Drum Cans and a reliable processing partner active in all
industrial sectors with focus on food & beverage, chemicals and pharmaceuticals.®

BOS Homogenisers: BOS Homogenisers is a leading, Dutch based, independent specialist
manufacturer and supplier of spare parts suitable for use with APV, SPX, Gaulin and BOS equipment,
high pressure pumps, homogenisers and support services.®

Tetra Tech: Tetra Tech is leading industrial services company covering Middle East, African & Asian
countries in the field of Supply of materials, installation, commissioning, testing and startup
operations of small, medium and large-scale dairy, beverages, water, food, confectionary, cosmetic
and pharmaceutical industries.'’

Emerson: As a global automation leader, Emerson is poised to transform industrial manufacturing.®

12 http://ovobel.com/

13 https://www.srmtec.group/index-2.html

14 https://www.carrier.com/carrier/en/worldwide/
15 https://gronfa.nl/en/

16 https://bos-homogenisers.com/

7 http:/lwww.tetratech.com.sa/

18 https://www.emerson.com/en-us
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3.9. LOCALAND INTERNATIONAL ACCREDITATIONS:

BFAL is 1ISO 9001:2015, FSSC 22000 and HALAL Certified. The company is locally certified from Sindh Food
Authority and Department of Animal Quarantine Pakistan. The facility has been designed, imported and installed
by Dutch partner Frisian Egg, one of the Europe’s leading Pasteurized Egg Company. All transactions with Frisian
Egg were at arm length basis

Awardi

The standard demonstrates the ability

Bureau to consistently provide products and
ISO 9001:2015 12/05/2022 @ 05/10/2025 @ Veritas .
Certification services that meets or exceed_f,
customer and regulatory requirements.
Bureau Globally recognized certification
FSSC 22000 31/05/2024 @ 17/05/2025 @ Veritas standard for food safety management
Certification = systems.
Al Waiz
Certification = Globally recognized standard to meet
HALAL 14/02/2024  13/02/2025 & Training the Islamic Dietary Laws
Services
SMETA (Sedex Members Ethical Trade
Bureau Audit) is a widely used auditing process
SMETA 10/10/2024 @ 10/10/2025 | Veritas that helps companies assess their

Certification

suppliers' social, environmental, and

ethical practices.

3.10.MANUFACTURING PROCESS OVERVIEW:

The manufacturing process progresses through several key stages as shown below:

Sr. Process

Control

No Steps Process Description Measures Explanation Through Picture

Receiving
the Eggs

According to the request
from the store department, Eggs According
eggs are received and placed | to the Standard
in a designated area. After OPRP

quality checking, the eggs are
either passed or rejected. The
Rejected eggs are returned to
supplier The passed eggs are
stored, and it is ensured that
the storage temperature
does not exceed 25°C.

Inspection of

reYe Vs
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Storage Eggs are stored in a cool Daily
of Eggs place where the temperature | Inspection by
is maintained below 25°C. the Supervisor
During the storage of eggs, and QA to
dirty eggs are systematically Ensure Storage
separated, and they are Temperature
washed before use. OPRP
Egg Eggs are broken by machine, | Online
Breaking | and the by-products | Inspection by
Process (eggshells) are separated and | QA
collected through a conveyor. | QCP
The broken eggs are
processed according to the
requirement in  different
forms (whole, white, yolk) and
collected in a balance tank.
Filtration | The egg fluid is transferred to | After every 4
of Egg the filter, where it is passed | hours filter is
Fluid through a 0.6 mm sieve to | inspected
remove any remaining shell | OPRP
particles.
Storage The filtered egg fluid is stored | Continuous
of in a tank at a temperature of | Temperature
Filtered 4°C. It is ensured that the | Monitoring,
Egg Fluid | filtered eggs undergo the | pH, and Dry
(Before pasteurization process within | Matter
Pasteuriz | 48 hours. After that, before | Adjustment
ation) homogenization, the egg fluid | OPRP
is passed through a 0.4 mm
sieve.
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Homoge | The egg fluid (whole, yolk) is | Pressure and
nization homogenized before the | Time
pasteurization process to | Adjustment
ensure uniform particle size.
Blending | According to  Customer | Determining
Tank Requirements/Instructions: and
Salt or sugar is added to the | Continuously
egg fluid. Checking  the
Quantity of
Sugar or Salt
Added
Pasteuriz | After homogenization, the Monitoring of
ation egg fluid is pasteurized at the | Pasteurization
specified heating time and Duration and
temperature according to the | Temperature
product specifications. ccp
Cooling The pasteurized product is Monitoring the
of the passed through the holding Holding time of
Product tube, where it is cooled for 4 the Product in
(Inside to 6 minutes to reduce its the Holding
the microbial load. Tube
Holding
Tube)
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10 | CIP(Clean | The function of a CIP roomis | After every 3-4
-in-Place) | to clean and sanitize the egg hours of
Room pasteurization plant's production, CIP

equipment, pipelines, tanks, is done to keep

and other components that pipelines, tanks

come in contact with the eggs | and other

or egg products. components
clean.

11 | Storage Continuous agitation is Inspection of
of performed while storing the Storage
Pasteuriz | pasteurized productsin a Temperature of
ed tank at a controlled Pasteurized
Product temperature of 4°C. It is also Products and

ensured that the stored Monitoring the
product enters the next stage | Duration of
of processing within 24 hours | Time the
to ensure freshness and Product
safety. Remains in the
Tank
ccp

12 | Hygiene The Company has various
Room Hygiene rooms in place from

the start of Production to the
filling room.

13 | Fillingof | The finished product is filled Inspection of
the into sprouted containers of Product
Product 10/20 kilograms or 1000- Labeling,

kilogram bags. Manufacturing,
and Expiry
Date, as well as
Printing and
Sealing of the
Product
Qcp
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14 | Laborato | We Have State of the art
ry Room Laboratory equipped with

modern and advanced
technology. This includes
cutting-edge equipment for
real-time monitoring of
pasteurization conditions,
highly sensitive
microbiological assays.

15 | Storage The finished products are Monitoring of
of stored at a temperature Shelf Life and
Finished below 4°C, following strict Storage
Products | cleanliness and hygiene Temperature

standards. ccp

16 | Dispatch Frozen products are stored in
of Frozen | aroom at a temperature of
Products | (-18°C) which are mainly used

for exports.

17 | Shelf Life | Recommended Shelf Life at
of the 0-4°C: 21 to 28 days
Product Recommended Shelf Life at

(-18°C): 12 months

18 | Distributi | Transportation is carried out Continuous
on of in refrigerated vebhicles, Monitoring of
Finished ensuring that the internal the Internal
Products | temperature remains below Temperature of

4°C during transit.

the Vehicle via
Online App
QcpP
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19 | Intended | Itis a value-added product Details of the
Use used in baking, cooking, and Finished
the preparation of various Products and

food dressings. It is primarily | the Labeling
used in the manufacturing of | Provided on
cakes, sauces, and other food | the Product
products. This industry is
suitable for all age groups
except for young
children/infants (i.e., those
aged 4-5 months) or
individuals who may be
allergic to egg consumption.

3.11.PRODUCTS PORTFOLIO END USERS, DEMAND FOR THE PRODUCTS AND COMPETITION:

The key products of the Company are discussed below:

3.11.1. Primary Products:

Pasteurized Whole Egg

Product

Description

process ensures safety without the need

Pasteurized whole eggs are egg products that have been heat-treated to eliminate
bacteria while preserving the egg's natural flavor, nutrition, and versatility. This
additional  cooking.

Variants

cooking and baking.

service operations.

solution.

food production.

the product portfolio and will be added in the future)

Liquid Pasteurized Whole Egg: Available in bags, ready for immediate use in

Frozen Pasteurized Whole Egg: Packaged for long-term storage, ideal for food

Pasteurized Whole Egg (With 9%, 10% and 11% Salt): Designed for professional
kitchens, bakeries, and food manufacturers looking for a convenient, ready-to-use

Pasteurized Whole Egg (With 50% Sugar): Ideal for immediate use in baking and

Whole Egg Powder: Ideal as an ingredient in prepared foods. (It is currently not in
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Applications
Baking: Ideal for cakes, cookies, and pastries, providing moisture and binding
properties.

Cooking: Perfect for making scrambled eggs, omelets, and frittatas without the
risk of salmonella.

Sauces and Dressings: Used in the preparation of mayonnaise, hollandaise sauce,
and dressings, ensuring safety without cooking.

Food Manufacturing: Suitable for commercial production of pasta, baked goods,
and ready-to-eat meals.

Benefits
Food Safety: Pasteurization significantly reduces the risk of foodborne illnesses,
making it safe for use in uncooked dishes.

Convenience: Ready-to-use format saves preparation time in busy kitchens and
food service operations.

Nutritional Integrity: Retains the nutritional profile of whole eggs, providing
essential proteins and nutrients.

Versatility: Suitable for a wide range of culinary applications, enhancing the
texture and flavor of dishes.

Pasteurized Egg Yolk

Product

Description

Pasteurized egg yolk is the rich, nutrient-dense portion of the egg, pasteurized to
remove pathogens while maintaining its functional properties. It’s an essential
ingredient in sauces, desserts, and commercial food products.

VELENTS
Liquid Pasteurized Egg Yolk: Available in bags, ready for immediate use in cooking
and baking.

Frozen Pasteurized Egg Yolk: Packaged for long-term storage, ideal for food
service operations.

Pasteurized Egg Yolk (With 10%, 11% and 14% Salt): Added salt helps with flavor,
preservation, and functional properties.

Applications

Bakery: Adds richness to cakes, pastries, and custards.
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Benefits

Sauces: Essential for hollandaise, mayonnaise, and dressings.

Ice Cream & Desserts: Provides smooth texture and flavor.

Safety: Pasteurization removes harmful bacteria.
Emulsification: Perfect for making creamy, smooth sauces and desserts.
Nutritional Value: Rich in vitamins A, D, E, and K.

Consistency: Enhances texture and richness in recipes.

Product

Description

Variants

Applications

Benefits

Pasteurized Egg White

Pasteurized egg whites are a fat-free, protein-rich product that undergoes
pasteurization to ensure safety. Egg whites are ideal for health-conscious
consumers and widely used in food production for their foaming and binding
properties.

Liquid Pasteurized Egg White

Frozen Pasteurized Egg White

Baking: Used for meringues, soufflés, and angel food cakes.
Cooking: Ideal for low-fat dishes like egg white omelets.

Protein Supplements: Often used in shakes and bars for added protein.

Fat-Free: Ideal for low-fat and high-protein diets.
Foaming Properties: Perfect for creating light, airy textures.
Safety: Pasteurization ensures no risk of foodborne illness.

Versatility: Can be used in a wide range of dishes, from baked goods to healthy
meals.
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3.12. MARKETING ACTIVITIES:

Local:

The marketing activities of the Company encompass a range of domestic and international events aimed at
promoting pasteurized egg products. In Pakistan, the participation in World Food Day Food Expo, held in
Karachi, has been particularly significant, with involvement as a Sponsor and Participant in 2022, then as a Gold
Sponsorin 2023 and 2024. This event provided opportunities to raise awareness about pasteurized egg products,
showcase leadership in food safety and sustainability, and connect with key players in the food industry.

Additionally, the company played a role in World Poultry Day in Karachi, focusing on promoting the benefits of
pasteurized egg products specifically within the poultry sector. The FoodAg expo in August 2023 in Karachi
allowed the company to network with agricultural and food industry leaders, exploring partnerships to expand
the reach of its products. Participation in the Pakistan Baking Summit in June 2024 aided further in achieving
this goal, enabling collaboration with baking industry experts to demonstrate the advantages of using
pasteurized egg products in baked goods.

Global:

On the international front, the Gulf Food Exhibition in Dubai in February 2023, November 2023 and November
2024 served as a platform to promote pasteurized egg products to the MENA region, targeting potential
customers and distributors.

Overall, these marketing activities are designed to raise awareness, build strategic relationships, and promote
the versatility and quality of pasteurized egg products, reinforcing the company's commitment to food safety
and innovation in the food industry.

3.13. KEY COMPETITORS:

As aleaderin the pasteurized egg products industry in Pakistan, the company finds itself in a unique monopolistic
position as BFAL is the only organized company in this business having a state of the art production facility and
the ability to cater customized pasteurized egg supply as per customer requirement keeping the quality
according to international standards. The traditional market primarily relies on farm eggs, which presents a
substantial opportunity for growth and market capture. The company recognizes the need to effectively cater
to this raw natural market, but the processing costs associated with our products present a barrier to entry.

While there are some competitors, particularly egg powder importers, their market segment is relatively small
and typically limited to applications in confectioneries. This means that the primary competition is minimal,
allowing the Company to focus on educating consumers and food manufacturers about the benefits of
pasteurized products over traditional farm eggs.

The challenge lies in addressing the price sensitivity of the traditional market. To successfully penetrate this
segment, the company must emphasize the safety, convenience, and quality of its pasteurized egg products,
showcasing how they can meet the needs of both consumers and businesses more effectively than farm eggs.
By leveraging pioneering status and commitment to high standards, the Company aims to position themselves
as the preferred choice in the evolving egg product market in Pakistan

3.14.END USERS OF THE PRODUCTS:

The Company Operates on Business-to-Business model only. It provides products to very well-established Food
Sector Manufacturing industries (such as Baking Sector, Sauce and Dressing Producers and Frozen Food
Producers) & small-scale industries and HoReCa Industries.

Customer Countr FY
Name y 2022

I R
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English Biscuit

Pasteurized

1 Manufacturers = Pakistan Whole Egg 801 32% 1,410 33% 2,117 35%
(Pvt) Ltd.
Coronet Foods ) Pasteurized o o o
2 (Pvt) Limited Pakistan Whole Egg 559 23% 646 15% 1,049 17%
Asian Food Pasteurized
3  Industries Pakistan Whole Egg 140 6% 759 18% 894 15%
Limited
Ismail Pasteurized
4 Industries Pakistan 224 9% 288 7% 389 6%
Limited Whole Egg
Young's Pasteurized
5 | (Private) Pakistan Whole Egg 240 10% 313 7% 349 6%
Limited White
UAE - Pasteurized 0 0 0
6 Do Freeze LLC Dubai Whole Egg 43 2% 215 5% 204 3%
Unilever Pasteurized
7 Pakistan Food Pakistan Whole Egg 119 5% 179 4% 204 3%
Limited 10% salted
Gulf Central Pasteurized o o 0
8 Company Ltd. KSA Egg Yolk i 0% i 0% 133 2%
A. Rahim Foods . Pasteurized o 0 0
9 (Pvt) Limited Pakistan Whole Egg - 0% 26 1% 98 2%
Hilal Foods Pasteurized
10 @ (Private) Pakistan 261 11% 285 7% 90 1%
. Whole Egg
Limited
11  Others 83 3% 204 5% 542 9%
Total 2,470 100% 4,325 100% 6,068 100%

3.15.INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS:

The Company’s Intellectual Property Rights are stated below:

m Trade Mark csl::ti:t Approval Date Expiry Date Awarding Body

Barkat Frisian 20" November = 20™ November = The Trade Marks

1
0104739 pgroLimited ~~ COMPleted 2024 20234 Registry, Karachi

3.16.DETAILS OF MATERIAL PROPERTY

The details of material property are stated below:

Date of
Ownership Status | Acquisitio Usage Location Total Area
)

WL 36-37, Bin Qasim

1 Industrial Park (Special = Owned (leasehold)
Economic Zone)
Plot No.51, M3

) Indusfcrial City, Phase Il Owned (Leasehold)
(Special Economic

Zone)

January Productio

2017 n Plant Karachi 2.5 Acre

February Productio Faisalaba

2024 n Plant d 2.5 Acre
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Balad Trade Center-lll,

6th Floor, Office No. . Head . 1,225.29 Sq.
3 601, Plot No. D-75 Rented April 2024 Office Karachi Ft

Block 7, Clifton

Balad Trade Center-lll,

6th Floor, Office No. December = Head . 1,194.04 Sq.
4 604, Plot No. D-75 Rented 2024 Office Karachi ¢

Block 7, Clifton
5| Mkbtin raben, | Rented December | Warehous (.. 136125

’ 2024 e Sq. Ft

Kamalia

3.17.FUTURE PROSPECTS AND DEMAND OUTLOOK

3.17.1. Rising Demand for Food Safety and Convenience:

By 2023, Pakistan's population reached 241.49 million*°. Pakistan is home to the world’s sixth largest population
with the crucial 15-64-year age bracket constituting 55.9%%° of total population. With Pakistan's population
exceeding 241 million and a rapidly growing youth demographic, the demand for safe, convenient, and nutritious
food options is on the rise, the Company is uniquely positioned to address this need. With a significant portion
of the population in the working-age group, there is a marked shift toward processed, ready-to-use food items
that align with busy urban lifestyles. The company’s pasteurized egg products cater to this demand, providing a
safe, versatile, and high-protein option suitable for the food service industry.

3.17.2. Leveraging the Sponsor’s Expertise and Market Leadership:

Backed by Frisian Egg International B.V., with three decades of experience in setting up and operating
pasteurized egg production plants in Europe and emerging markets and Buksh Group’s expertise in local poultry
industry, the Joint-Venture brings a strong legacy of industry expertise and innovation to the market. This
leadership ensures a consistent focus on quality and adherence to global food safety standards, giving the
company a strategic advantage in expanding its market presence locally and globally. The sponsor's established
reputation bolsters trust among customers and stakeholders, reinforcing the company’s position as a reliable
supplier.

3.17.3. First-Mover Advantage and Zero Competition

As the only pasteurized egg producer in Pakistan, the company enjoys a substantial first-mover advantage. With
no local competition, the company has the opportunity to establish a dominant market presence and set
industry standards. The lack of local competitors allows a stronger influence over market trends. This pioneering
status also provides the company with unique opportunities for partnerships and potential future collaborations
to promote food safety standards.

3.17.4. Expanding Production Capacity

To meet anticipated demand growth, the Company plans to invest in state-of-the-art production facilities that
can scale efficiently. This capacity not only strengthens the Company’s position in Pakistan but also enables the
Company to further expand its international presence. By ensuring strict quality measures, the Company aims
to attract consumers looking for safe, convenient and nutritious food options.

3.18.VENDORS TO THE ISSUER:

Raw materials accounted for 96% of the total cost of sales in FY24. All the raw materials are sourced locally and
only packaging materials are imported from China. All transactions are done at an arm’s length basis

19 https://www.pbs.gov.pk/sites/default/files/population/2023/Press%20Release.pdf
20 https://www.population-trends-asiapacific.org/data/PAK
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Purchas o Purchas o Purchas
es % of es % of es
during Total during Total during
Country Fy2022 | Purchas | pyogp3 | Purchas | 5554
es es
during during
FY 2022 FY 2023
Ghulam
1 Mustafa Pakistan Shell Egg 175 23% 792 37% 1,031 29%
Enterprises
Abdullah
2  Poultry Pakistan Shell Egg 17 2% 137 6% 758 21%
Farm
Marhaba
Protein
3 Farms Pakistan Shell Egg 226 30% 519 24% 513 14%
(Pvt.)
Limited
Islamabad
4  Feeds (Pvt.) Pakistan = Shell Egg 35 5% 131 6% 325 9%
Ltd.
5 AHB Pakistan = Shell Egg - 0% - 0% 261 7%
Poultry
Maryyam
6 Poultry Pakistan  Shell Egg 80 11% 172 8% 217 6%
Farm
Crown
7 F;’V‘i';ry Pakistan  ShellEgg 162 21% 106 5% 140 4%
Limited
g BWPoultry o listan  Shell Egg 10 1% 158 7% 140 4%
Form
9 Raja Farm Pakistan = Shell Egg 29 4% 93 4% 137 4%
Hongchang
10 Facking China Packing 21 3% 15 1% 25 1%
Material material
and Co
Total 754 100% 2,124 100% 3,547 100%
3.19.PROFILES OF VENDORS TO THE ISSUER:
1. Ghulam Mustafa Enterprises: Ghulam Mustafa Enterprises is the largest egg broker in Pakistan, located

on Ranjana Road in Kamalia, Toba Tek Singh. Ghulam Mustafa Enterprises plays a pivotal role in the egg
distribution  market, serving a wide range of customers across the country.

2. Abdullah Poultry Farm: Abdullah Poultry Farm, situated in Chak # 80/12 L P.O Chak # 69/12 Bhurewala,
is the largest poultry farm in the region. As a major supplier in Bhurewala, Abdullah Poultry Farm is

Page 46 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

recognized for its consistent quality and large-scale egg  production  cases.

3. Marhaba Protein Farms Pvt Limited: Located near Village Shah Baig Lund, Tando Allahyar, Marhaba
Protein Farms is one of the largest egg producers in Sindh. Marhaba Protein Farms is known for its
efficient operations and high-quality egg production, making it a trusted supplier in the region.

4, Islamabad Feeds Pvt Ltd: Islamabad Feeds Pvt Ltd is based in 99-D Satellite Town, Rawalpindi, and is
one of the largest poultry farms in the region. Islamabad Feeds is recognized for its high standards of
production and reliable egg supply.

5. AHB Poultry: AHB Poultry, located in Main Bazar Douglas Pura, Faisalabad. AHB Poultry is known for

producing fresh eggs of high quality, and it serves as a reliable supplier in the local egg market.

6. Maryyam Poultry Farm: Maryyam Poultry Farm is located in Chak # 506 GB, Tandian Wala, Toba Tek
Singh. Maryyam Poultry Farm is a well-established supplier of fresh eggs, known for its quality and large-
scale production in the region.

7. Crown Poultry Pvt Ltd: Crown Poultry Pvt Ltd is situated in Igbal Town, Manga Mandi, Lahore. Crown
Poultry Pvt Ltd is a leading supplier in the region, known for its large-scale operations and commitment
to high-quality egg production.

8. Raja Farm: Raja Farm is located in Tehsil and District T.T. Singh. Raja Farm is recognized for its efficient
egg production and consistent supply of fresh, high-quality eggs to the local market.

9. BW Poultry Farm: BW Poultry Farm is based in New Sabzi Mandi Road, Kamalia, Toba Tek Singh. Known
for its reliable egg production, BW Poultry Farm is a key supplier in the Kamalia area, meeting the
demands of local wholesalers and retailers.

10. Hongchange Packing Material Co., LTD: Hongchange Packing Material Co., LTD, located on Yuhang Rd,
Xiangcheng District, Suzhou, China, is a leading supplier of high-quality packaging materials. Known for
its durable and efficient solutions, Hongchange is a trusted partner for meeting the company’s packaging
needs.

11. Adorn International Pvt Ltd: Adorn International Pvt Ltd, situated at B-10/A, Street 2, Manghopir Road,
SITE, Karachi, is a prominent supplier of eggs and poultry feed. Renowned for its reliability and consistent
supply quality, Adorn International plays a vital role in supporting the company’s operations.

3.20.ALL GOVERNEMNT AND OTHER APPROVALS WHICH ARE MATERIAL AND NECESSARY FOR
CARRYING ON THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER

BFAL s in full compliance with requisite No Objection Certificates (“NOCs”), Consents and Approvals from related
Government Entities and Regulatory Bodies.

Agreement Approving authority Validity period
Registration Certificate for Export of Animal Quarantine Department- 10" December,
valued added chilled and frozen liquid Ministry of National Food Security & 2029 (5 years from
eggs products Research the date of
registration)
Food Business License Sindh Food Authority — Government of 13 November 2025
Sindh (renewable after
every 01 year)
Approval for Safe Handling & Storage of | Sindh Environment Protection Agency- 15 December,
Hazardous Substance Management Plan | Government of Sindh 2025 (renewable
after every 01 year)
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Approval of Environmental Management

Plan (EMP)

Sindh Environment Protection Agency-
Government of Sindh

12 January, 2026
(renewable after
every 01 year)

3.21.ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Name of Nature of . .
. Nature of Relationship
Company Business

Direct Sponsors

B&Z Enterprise
(Pvt.) Ltd.
Frisian Egg
International
B.V.

Holding
Company
Egg
Pasteurized
Company

Sponsor

Sponsor

Associated companies of B&Z Enterprise (Pvt.) Ltd.

Buksh Industries
(Pvt) Ltd

Adorn Industries
(Pvt) Ltd

Barkat Steel
(Pvt) Ltd

Manufacturers
and exporters
of knitted
garments
Manufacturers
of poultry feed
and egg
farming
Manufacturers
of steel drums

Common Ownership/
Management Control

Common Ownership/
Management Control

Common Ownership/
Management Control

Associated companies of Frisian Egg International B.V.

Egyptian
Pasteurized Egg
Co

Chengdu Frisian
Egg Company

Frisian Egg B.V.

International Egg
Trading

Dutch Egg
membrane
Protein Powder

Rojo BV

Eiprodukten
Donkerbroek BV

Producer of
Pasteurized
egg products
Producer of
Pasteurized
egg products
Producer of
Pasteurized
egg products
Supplier and
installer of egg
processing
plants
Producer of
egg shell
membranes
and products
Holding
Company

Holding
Company

Joint Venture

Joint Venture

Joint Venture

Joint Venture

Joint Venture

Sponsor of Frisian Egg
International B.V.

Sponsor of Frisian Egg
International B.V.

B& Z Enterprise holds 33% shareholding
in BFAL

Frisian Egg International B.V holds 50%
shareholding; therefore, it is an associate
of BFAL.

Mr. Muhammad Ali Ansari, Mr. Shaukat
Ali Ansari, Mr. Anwar Ali and Mr.
Muhammad Arif have Common
Ownership/Management Control.

Mr. Muhammad Ali Ansari, Mr. Shaukat
Ali Ansari, Mr. Anwar Ali and Mr.
Muhammad Arif have Common
Ownership/Management Control

Mr. Muhammad Ali Ansari, Mr. Shaukat
Ali Ansari, Mr. Anwar Ali and Mr.
Muhammad Arif have Common
Ownership/Management Control

Frisian Egg International B.V. is a sponsor
in the form of joint venture

Frisian Egg International B.V. is a sponsor
in the form of joint venture

Frisian Egg International B.V. is a sponsor
in the form of joint venture

Frisian Egg International B.V. is a sponsor
in the form of joint venture

Frisian Egg International B.V. is a sponsor
in the form of joint venture

Rojo BV holds a 50% stake in Frisian Egg
International BV. Since Frisian Egg holds
a 50% stake in BFAL, Rojo BV has been
mentioned as an associated entity.
Eiprodukten Donkerbroek BV holds a
50% stake in Frisian Egg International BV.
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Sanad BV Holding Sponsor of Eiprodukten Sanad BV holds a 50% stake in
Company Donkerbroek BV Eiprodukten Donkerbroek BV.

Quarta Proles BV Holding Sponsor of Eiprodukten Quarta Proles holds a 50% stake in
Company Donkerbroek BV Eiprodukten Donkerbroek BV.

Stujo BV Holding Sponsor of Rojo BV Stujo BV holds a 50% stake in Rojo BV.
Company

Sturo BV Holding Sponsor of Rojo BV Sturo BV holds a 50% stake in Rojo BV.
Company

3.22.DUTY STRUCTURE AND TARIFF:

Duty tariff for key packaging material procured by the Company is outlined below.

HS Code | CUstom Additional Regulatory Total Sales Income Tax
Materlal Duty Custom Duty Duty Duty (Tariff)
f;‘;‘;t'c Bag 392321  20% 6% 10% 36%  18% 5.5%

3.23.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

Related party transactions are incurred in ordinary course of business only, and these are duly
disclosed in financial statements. Transactions entered with related parties are as follows:

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 20FY

Relationship 2025
PKRMn PKRMn PKR Mn

Purchases - Raw

Associate - ; 84.9 93.8 51.2 36.0
Adil Poultry  Common ownership Material
Farm / shareholding / Payable balance - 5.0 6.4 -
Control Advance to supplier 16.2 - - -
Purchases - Raw - 9.8 103.2 160.5
. material
Adorn Associate - .
Internationa Common OWQerShlp Payable balance - 0.5 0.0 23.0
| / shareholding /
Control
ontro Sales - 0.0 - -
Amna Associate- | Purchases - Raw 14.9 35.0 27.7 26.1
Common ownership material
Poultry .
F / shareholding /
anm Control Payable balance 5.5 - 2.6
. Purch:?nses - Raw i 75 15
B&Z Farms Associate material
Payable balance - 7.5 -
Purchases - Raw
Associate - material 19.1 1.6 -
Buksh Farms Common own.ersh|p Payable balance 33 3.3 3.3
/ shareholding / .
Control Purchases - Packing 12.0 i i
material
Payable balance 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6
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Loan received during
the year

43.7

Loar.1 transferred to 76.1
equity
Frisian Eggs
Internationa
| B.V.

Associate Company  Loan paid during the

50% Shareholder year 158

Loan adjusted during
the year (FX 62.8
difference)

Loan payable to

201.9 229.2 154.8 43.7
related party

Received against
fresh capital
Loan received during
the year
Loan paid during the
year
Loan payable to
related party
Received against
fresh capital
Loan received during
the year
Muhammad CEOQ / Director / Loan paid during the
Adil Ali Shareholder year
Loan payable to
related party

52.9

B&Z Associated 42.2

Enterprise Company 33%
(Pvt) Limited Shareholding

59.0
38.0 38.0 38.0 211
6.0
12.2
6.0
1.2 1.2 1.2 7.4

Remuneration 2.3 2.3 2.7

Purchases - Vehicle 1.3 - -

Received against

fresh capital 1.8

Associate person
Naheed Ali lineal Ascendant of
CEO holds 1.39%

Loan received during

2.
the year 8

Loan paid during the
year

4.3

Loan payable to
related party

Sultan Payable balance 1.8 1.8 1.8
Poultry Associate Purchases - Raw
Farm material
Loan received during
Muhammad Company Secretary the year
Ali Ansari Loan paid during the
year

15 1.5 1.5 -

11.0 3.5 -
- - 1.8

5.8
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Loan payable to

4 4 4

related party

Recelved_agalnst 15.2

fresh capital

Loan received during ) ) a4
Wagqas Director, has 10%  the year ’
Gulzar shareholding Loan paid during the 15.2

year

Loan payable to 13.3 13.3 13.3 2.5

related party

Note:

Adil Poultry Farm: Owned by Chief Executive

Adorn International: Owned by Sponsors of B&Z Enterprise (for details, kindly refer to Section 3.2)

Amna Poultry Farm: Owned by spouse of Chief Executive

Buksh Farms and Sultan Poultry Farm were merged to form Adorn International and are owned by the Sponsors of B&Z
Enterprise

3.24 INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

The processed eggs industry has evolved into a vital component of the global food supply chain, driven by
advancements in food technology and changing consumer preferences. As a sector that includes everything from
liqguid and powdered eggs to ready-to-use egg products, it caters to a diverse range of applications in both
foodservice and industrial manufacturing. The industry's growth is fueled by increasing demand for convenience
foods, rising health consciousness, and innovations in egg processing techniques. With its ability to enhance
food safety, extend shelf life, and streamline production, the processed eggs industry plays a crucial role in
meeting the needs of modern consumers and food producers alike.

3.24.1 GLOBAL PROCESSED EGG INDUSTRY:

The processed eggs market is driven by rising food and beverage spending, the need for longer shelf life, and
increasing demand for convenience foods due to busy lifestyles. Consumers are stockpiling long-lasting foods,
boosting sales of frozen and freeze-dried eggs. The USDA reports growing demand for freeze-dried whole eggs,
influenced by seasonal needs and regular commitments. Urbanization and time constraints are pushing
consumers towards convenience foods, enhancing the appeal of processed eggs, which simplify preparation by
eliminating shell-breaking and component separation. !

The market is further supported by the expanded use of processed eggs in bakery, confectionery, sauces,
mayonnaise and dairy products, alongside innovative manufacturing processes that reduce waste. Additionally,
the emphasis on egg safety and identification to prevent unsafe products from entering the market is expected
to drive further growth, as processed eggs offer a safe and nutritious solution.

21 https://www.ams.usda.gov/mnreports/pyweggproducts.pd
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The global eggs market stands at a revenue of USD 130 bn in 2024 and is projected to grow at a CAGR of 8.17%
whereas volumetric growth is expected to grow at 5.48% for the next five years. In global comparison, most
revenue is generated in China with 2024 revenue amounting to USD 22 bn. 2

Global Eggs Market

@ Revenue (USD Bn)

- .

- 1101

L 4
-

- — —0=— = 7 1010
88.0 90.2

-— ) = = «® Volume (Bn Kgs)

384 393 40.8 42.1 43.5 45.6
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 (H1)

Source: Statista

The processed egg products market has surged due to the growing demand for quick and convenient meal
solutions driven by increasingly busy lifestyles. This trend has led to a 15-20% increase in retail demand for dried
and other preserved egg products throughout the pandemic. In response, manufacturers are expanding their
product lines to meet this heightened demand for easy-to-prepare food options.

Netherlands, Poland, United States, France and Germany are the biggest exporters of processed eggs and
account for 56% of total processed egg exports where Netherlands leads with a market share of 27.4%. The
target destinations for processed egg are Germany, France, United Kingdom, Italy, Belgium and Japan. 23

Import Value (USD Mn)

Germany | 7k}

France 132
United Kingdom 131

Italy 103

Belgium [ Ey/s!

Japan [l
Source: OEC

The processed eggs market requires substantial focus on Research and Development to ensure health and safety
concerns which is a primary driver of the processed egg industry.?*

2 https://www.statista.com/outlook/cmo/food/dairy-products-eggs/eggs/worldwide

2 https://oec.world/en/profile/hs/processed-egg-products
2 https://oec.world/en/profile/hs/processed-egg-products
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3.24.2 REGIONAL DYNAMICS:

Egg consumption patterns vary widely across the globe, shaped by cultural preferences, dietary habits, and
regional cuisines. Eggs are a versatile food source, celebrated for their nutritional value and role in traditional
dishes. Following is the global egg consumption comparison?>:

Per Capita Egg Consumption

281.3
236

192

90 101

Pakistan India UK Germany us

The processed eggs industry has witnessed a spike in growth in recent years and is a lucrative opportunity for
agriculture focused countries to capitalize. India has emerged as one big exporter of processed eggs in the
region. In FY 2022, India exported USD 53.7 million worth of processed egg products, a 21.9% increase since
2021, with the top export destinations being Indonesia, Vietnam, Russia and Japan. China has also began
participating in the processed eggs industry with total processed eggs export value in 2022 standing at USD 39.7
million representing a 10.2% increase from 2021. United Arab Emirates, Qatar, Oman and Saudi Arabia are top
destinations within region for processed eggs products. There are different exporters from India, Pakistan and
China within the region, and other European countries servicing the demand coming from the Gulf region. 26

Export Value by Region (USD Mn)
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Shttps://www.statista.com/statistics/1358655/india-per-capita-availability-of-eggs/,
https://www.karandaaz.com.pk/capital/direct-investments/wahdat-farm,https://www.egginfo.co.uk/egg-facts-and-
figures/industry-information/data, https://www.statista.com/statistics/533508/eggs-per-capita-consumption-
germany/, https://www.statista.com/statistics/183678/per-capita-consumption-of-eggs-in-the-us-since-2000/

26 https://oec.world/en/profile/hs/processed-egg-products
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Pakistan Processed Egg Industry:

The Pakistan processed egg industry is in its nascent stage right now, with only BFAL operating in the space, the
competitive landscape is further constituted by regular egg companies. There are multiple egg companies in
Pakistani landscape operating as bulk suppliers and some entering the landscape with branded egg products
offering healthier and better eggs.

The regular egg market has also seen a steady growth. The overall egg consumption of eggs in the country has
risen from 1.2 Bn kg eggs in FY 2022 to 1.33 Bn kg in FY 2024 and is forecasted to reach 1.45 Bn Kg eggs in FY
27.7

Eggs Consumption (Bn Kg)
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The processed egg industry is primarily serving Hotels, Restaurants and Catering, sauces and dressings, baking
and confectionary sector of Pakistan and is directly influenced by the performance of these sectors. The baking
and confectionary industry alone (including snacks and chips) has shown an YoY growth of 48.2% in FY23.28 The
growth in the baking and confectionary industry is contributed to increased demand from children and young
adults up to the age of 20, who drive 65% of demand in the sector. High proportion of younger population,
increasing disposable incomes and newer varieties in the market have driven the snacks, baking and
confectionary sector substantially.?®

The annual per capita consumption of eggs in Pakistan in 90 eggs3’. The population of Pakistan is 241.49 Mn3!
which results in an annual consumption of 21.7 Bn eggs. As per the management estimates, HoReCa, sauces and
dressings, the baking and confectionary industry consume around 15% of the total consumption bringing the
target market size to 3.25 Bn eggs, or 139,750 tons of processed eggs annually. 32

27 https://www.statista.com/outlook/cmo/food/dairy-products-eggs/eggs/pakistan#volume
Bhttps://www.pacra.com/

29 https://www.pacra.com/

30 https://www.karandaaz.com.pk/capital/direct-investments/wahdat-farm

31 https://www.pbs.gov.pk/sites/default/files/population/2023/Press%20Release. pdf

32 https://www.bbcmaestro.com/blog/egg-conversion-chart (1 egg = 44 grams)

Page 54 of 196


https://www.bbcmaestro.com/blog/egg-conversion-chart

Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

3A. SHARE CAPITAL AND RELATED MATTERS

3A (i) Share Capital

The current Share Capital of BFAL is as follows:

. . Face Value Per Premium Per | Total at Par
Current Issued & Paid-Up Capital No. of Shares Share (PKR) Share (PKR) | value (PKR)
Authorized Capital
Ordinary Shares 310,000,000 1 - 310,000,000

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-Up Capital
Ordinary Shares of PKR 1/- each fully

paid 242,255,384 1 - 242,255,384
Total 242,255,384 1 - 242,255,384
Shares held by Sponsors

Frisian Egg International B.V. 121,127,492 1 - 121,127,492
B&Z Enterprise (Pvt.) Limited 79,941,585 1 - 79,941,585
Wagqas Gulzar 24,225,538 1 - 24,225,538
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 1 - 9,690,212
Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 1 - 3,901,000
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1 - 3,369,354
Johan Stuiver 100 1 - 100
Paul Ettema 100 1 - 100
Mehmood Arshad 1 1 1
Nadia Ishtiaq 1 1 1
Anwar Ali 1 1 1

Sub Total 242,255,384 1 - 242,255,384
New Issue of Ordinary Shares

New Shares Issuance through IPO 67,735,000 1 12.00 67,735,000
Post IPO Paid Up Capital

Total Paid Up Capital Post IPO 309,990,384 1 812,820,000 309,990,384

* A special resolution was passed on 2nd December 2024 for share splitting in a ratio of one to hundred reducing the face
value from PKR 100/- to PKR 1/- in order to increase the number of outstanding shares to meet the minimum number of
shares requirement as mentioned in the public offering regulations.

Moreover, Post share split the Company executed a rights issue of 152,255,384 shares on 17th December, 2024. The
company previously had a paid-up capital of 90,000,000 shares and after the rights issue the paid-up capital stood at
242,255,384 shares.

3A (ii) Sponsors Shares to be kept in Blocked Form:

Shareholder Pre-Issue Shareholding Post-Issue Shareholding

Sponsors Number of Shares % Holding  Number of Shares % Holding

Frisian Egg
International B. V
B&Z Enterprise (Pvt.)

121,127,492 50.00% 121,127,492 39.07%

o 79,941,585 33.00% 79,941,585 25.79%
Limited
Wagqas Gulzar 24,225,538 10.00% 24,225,538 7.81%
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 4.00% 9,690,212 3.13%
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Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 1.61% 3,901,000 1.26%

Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1.39% 3,369,354 1.09%

Total 242,255,181 100% 242,255,181 78.15%
Note:

1. As per regulation 5(1) of the PO Regulations, the sponsors of the Company shall retain their entire
shareholding in the Company for a period of not less than twelve months from the last date for public
subscription;

2. As perregulation 5(2) of the PO Regulations, the sponsors of the Company shall retain not less than twenty-
five percent of the post issue paid-up capital of the Company for not less than three financial years from the
last date for the public subscription;

3. Asperregulation 5(3) of the PO Regulations, the shares of the sponsors mentioned at (1) and (2) above shall
be kept unencumbered in a blocked account with central depository;

4. Subject to compliance with sub-regulation 1 and 2 of regulation 5 of the PO Regulations and with the prior
approval of the securities exchange, the sponsors of the Company may sell their shareholding through block-
sale to any other person who shall be deemed sponsor for the purposes of the PO Regulations.

3A (iii) Present Issue

The entire IPO Issue of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares will be offered through the Book Building process at a Floor
Price of PKR 13.00/- per share with a price band of 40% above the floor price which is PKR 18.20/- per share.

The bidders shall be allowed to place bids for hundred percent (100%) of the Issue size and the Strike Price shall
be the price at which the hundred percent (100%) of the Issue is subscribed. However, the successful bidders
shall be provisionally allotted only seventy-five percent (75%) of the Issue size i.e. 50,801,250 shares and the
remaining twenty-five percent (25%) i.e. 16,933,750 shares shall be offered to the retail investors. Unsubscribed
shares, if any, of the General Subscription portion will be allocated to Successful Bidders of the Book Building
portion on a pro-rata basis.

3A (iv) Shares Issued in Preceding Years

No of Face Value (PKR
Description 16| Total Value Date of issuance
Shares per share)

Initial

150,000 Subscription 15,000,000 30-June-2017
2. 450,000 Rights Issue 100 45,000,000 27-October-2017
3. 300,000 Rights Issue 100 30,000,000 19-December-2018
4. 900,000 @ Total 100 90,000,000 -

Subsequently to the above table, a special resolution was passed on 2" December 2024 for share splitting in a
ratio of one to hundred reducing the face value from PKR 100/- to PKR 1/- in order to increase the number of
outstanding shares to meet the minimum number of shares requirement as mentioned in the public offering
regulations.

3
Existing Shares xmlgﬁ::er (\Il;h;e per Post-Split Shares AL Va::‘:(:)er Share

900,000 90,000,000
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Moreover, Post share split the Company executed a rights issue of 152,255,384 shares on 17" December, 2024.
The company previously had a paid-up capital of 90,000,000 shares and after the rights issue the paid-up capital
stood at 242,255,384 shares. The rights issue was executed by converting a foreign loan from the sponsors,
repaying the local loan, and utilizing the proceeds in the rights issue, as reflected in the table below:

Repayment o . . . Total Number of | Total Value at
of local loan Existing Right shares against Right Shares Shares after a Par Value of

shares foreign loan against cash
J & rights issue PKR 1/Share

to sponsors

57,987,364 | 90,000,000 76,127,692 76,127,692 242,255,384 242,255,384

The company has undertaken a share split and established a par value of PKR 1.00/- per share for the following
key reasons:

1. Regulatory Compliance:

The share split was necessary in order to meet the minimum number of shares requirement in Book
Building according to section 7(1) of the Public Offering Regulations, 2017. This regulatory compliance
ensures that the company adheres to the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) listing rules.

2. Enhancing Liquidity:

The share split is strategically implemented to increase the liquidity of the company’s shares in the
market. By reducing the par value and increasing the number of shares outstanding, the shares become
more accessible to a diversified base of investors, thereby improving trading volume and liquidity.

3. Utilization of Reserves:

As of the balance sheet date, June 30", 2024, the company holds reserves amounting to PKR 696 Mn. In
order to reduce the breakup value per share and increase the number of shares, the Company took a
share split instead of issuing bonus shares to the existing shareholders. Post IPO, the new shareholders
will also share the reserves equally in proportion of their shareholding with the existing shareholders.

4. Benefitting New Shareholders:

Post-IPO, the new shareholders will benefit from the company's existing reserves. The share split does
not diminish the value of these reserves but rather ensures that the benefits of these reserves are
accessible to a larger number of shareholders post-IPO.

A share split, therefore, aligns with both market requirements and shareholder interests, as it balances
regulatory compliance with the need to increase liquidity and ensure equitable benefits for all shareholders. The
said share split arrangement has been made as on 13"  December,  2024.

3A (v) Employee Stock Option Scheme
No employee stock options have been offered by BFAL.
3A (vi) Related Employees

Related Employees of the Company are as follows:

S. No Name Designation
1 Muhammad Adil Ali Chief Executive Officer
2 Muhammad Farooq Zafar Chief Financial Officer
3 Muhammad Ali Ansari Company Secretary
4 Irfan Sharif Head of Operations & Food Safety
5 Ammad Badar Head of Production & Projects
6 Muhammad Asif Head of Procurement
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7 Muhammad Adnan Anwar Head of Business Development

Related employees of the Lead Manager and Book Runner (Arif Habib Limited) are as follows

S. No Name Designation

1 Mr. Shahid Ali Habib Chief Executive Officer

2 Mr. Farhan Rizvi Director, Investment Banking

3 Mr. Hamza Rehan Associate, Investment Banking

4 Mr. Raheel Ahmed Associate, Investment Banking

5 Mr. Saif Ul Haq Senior Analyst, Investment Banking

6 Mr. Usama Hanif Analyst, Investment Banking

7 Mr. Ali Raza Analyst, Investment Banking

8 Mr. Faizan Qureshi Analyst, Investment Banking

9 Mr. Naveed Said Analyst, Investment Banking
Note:

1. As perregulation 7(9) of the PO Regulations the associates of the Lead Manager and the Book Runner shall
not in aggregate make bids in excess of ten (10%) percent of the shares offered through Book Building.
Provided that it shall not apply to such associates of the Lead Manager and the Book Runner that are
Financial Institutions, Mutual Funds and Insurance companies

2. As required under regulation 20(10) of the PO Regulations, Related Employees of the Issuer, Lead
Manager/Consultant to the Issue and Book Runner to the Issue shall not participate in the bidding for shares.
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UNDERTAKING OF THE SPONSORS OF THE ISSUER REGARDING IPO UTILIZATION |
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Non-judicial Rs 500/-
Descrizian + Bond - 10(R)
Inckemn 5ar Morigager 1 P SX 1000000007
et Mostgages i BARKAT FRISIAN AGRD (PRIVATE) LIMITED (80000600)
Agoicant T Manammad Fasoom [42301-1394452-5)
Stamp Outy Poc oy T BARKAT FRISIAN AGROC (PRIVAYE] LIMITED (0000C000]
iszue Date 1 190007076, 01:47:27 B
Paid Through Crallan * 2024CAFESEGISFLS
Amountin Weeds : Fwe Hundred Rupess Only

Pioon VAste Below This Ung
Pakistan Stock Exchange
Stack Exchange Building
Stock Exchange Road

Karachi — 74000, Pakistan

We, (1) Muhammad Adil Ali, son of Muhammad Al Ansari, be &f iExecutive Direcior
of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited {formerly Barkat Frisian P A%{E fZe Zompany (Private)
Limited) holding CNIC No. 42201-7280142-3 resident of House MoV it ayaban-e-ittehad,
Fhase Vil. DHA, Karachi, Pakistan; (2) Muhammad Ali Ansari, son of Barkat Ali, beirg Non-
Executive Director/Sponsor of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited {formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized
Egg Company (Private) Limited) holding CNIC Na. 42201-0621677-9, resident of House No.M-
7411, Khayaban-e-lttehad, Phase VI, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan; (3) Naheed Ali Ansari, wife of
Muhammad Ali Ansari, being the Sponsor of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited {formerly Barkat Frisian
Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited) hoiding CNIC No. 42201-0533780-4, resident of
House No.M-74/1, Khayaban-e-lttehad, Phase VI, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan; (4) Wagas Guizar,
son of Anjum Tarlq Guizar, being Non-Executive Direclor/Sponsor of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited
{formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private} Limited) holding CNIC No. 42391-
4272087-1, resident of 44-A, 8" Sunset Street, Phase {1 Extension, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan; and
(5} B&Z Enterprises (Private) Limited, being the Sponsor of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

@ Eip
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E-STAMP
CONTINUATION SHEET
Government of Sindh

(formerly Barkat Frisian Pastsurized Egg Company (Private) Limited), holding CUIN 0122631 with
its registered office at B/1CA, Street No.2, Manghopir, $.1.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan, do nereby state
on solamn affirmation as under that:

(1) e are the sponsor and mejority sharehclder/owner of the shares of Barkat Frisian Agro
Limited {formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited); and

(2} The IPC Proceeds of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurzed Egg
Company (Private) Limited) shall be utilized as per the purpose disciosed in the Prospsctus.

e

Muhammad Adil Ali Muhammad Adi Ansari

CEO/Executive Director/Sponsor Sponsor ?

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited Barkat Frisian Agro Limited  {
5 ;‘

e M-S
/\/"#’/ 4

Nahered Ali Ansari Wagas Gulzar

Sponsor Sponsor

Barkat Frisian Agro Limitad Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

B ZENTERPRISE (PVT) LT0.
f'/\!\@ D
E5

.. DIRECTOR il wre
AS

For and on behalf of B&Z Enterprises LEEM z
{Private) Limited Advocal® e yBLicC
Muhammad Ali Ansarl hi - pakistan
Sponsor A 6321 as0480)
Barkat Frisian Agre Limited

Dated: bo"‘ Dectaher 2024
Place: Karachi, Pakistan

ATTESTED

e ==
MUHAMM S bre)7
‘CHOCATE & OAY L oM

VARAGHT. DAV TS
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Pakistan Stock Exchange
Stocx Exchange Building
Stock Exchange Road
Karachi, Pakistan

UNDERTAKING

We, Frisian Egg Intemational BV., being the Sponsor of Barkat Frisian
Barkat Frisian Pasteurized £gg Company (Privete) Limited), holding
0104739 with its registered office at Office No.601, 6" Flcor, Balad Trad
PlotNo. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7, Khavaban-s-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakist
on sclemn affirmation as under that: _——

(1) We are the sponsor and majority sharehokder/owner of the shares of Barkat Frisian Ag-o
Limited; and

{2) The IPO Proceads of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited shall ba utilized as per the purpese
gisclosed in the Prospectus.

Frisian £46 b,
.. 365 226

gD AF bracken

g e Natherizods

L R AL R e LT T s R ny = A S CE  Cy
For and on behalf of Frisian Egg International B.V.

Paul Ettema

Sponsor

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

(formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egcg Comoany (Private) Limited)

Dated: 22" Decevvioer 2024

Place:
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4. PRINICPAL PURPOSE OF THE ISSUE AND FUNDING AGREEMENTS

4.1. Principal Purpose of the Issue

In order to further expand locally and globally, the Company aims to issue new equity with 67,735,000 new
shares at the Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share, raising a total of PKR 880,555,000.

The primary goal of this issue is to fund the establishment of a new, state-of-the-art production facility at the
M-3 Industrial City, Faisalabad. This strategic expansion will enable the Company to scale its production
capacity, meeting the increasing demand for pasteurized egg products in both the domestic and export
markets.

To support its construction to the new production facility leading up to the IPO, the Company obtained
interest free bridge financing amounting to PKR 73.15 million post 1QFY25 from the sponsors of the company
and will be repaid from the IPO proceeds, ensuring continued progress on the project and to ensure timely
completion.

With the current egg pasteurization facility operating at a 74.59% utilization rate in FY 2024, the Company
projects that this plant will soon reach maximum capacity utilization. This expansion aligns with the Company’s
long-term growth strategy, providing the necessary infrastructure to serve a larger market. By increasing
capacity, the Company aims to secure a more significant market share domestically while establishing a
stronger export footprint.

Pre-Expansion Capacity Utilization

Particulars (In tons) FY2022 FY2023 FY2024

Actual production 9,363 10,232 12,680
Total Capacity 17,000 17,000 17,000
Capacity Utilization % 55.08% 60.19% 74.59%

Factory - |
17,000 6.6 17,000
(Karachi)
Factory - Il
- - 32.9 12,000
(Faisalabad) !
Total 46.6 17,000 79.5 29,000

4.2. Project Cost

The detailed Project cost is given in table below along with its financing plan:

Sub

% of Total

Cost (PKR P t
ost (PKR) ercentage o

(%)

Total Project Cost:

Plant & Machinery 491,313,195 52.05% 52.05%
Civil work & Land development charges 252,565,244 26.77% 26.77%
Mechanical and Electrical Installation 75,000,000 7.94% 7.94%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 125,127,119 13.24% 13.24%
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Total A 944,005,558 100% 100%

IPO Proceeds Utilization:

Plant & Machinery 446,280,335 55.27% 47.28%
Civil work & Land development charges 166,624,612 20.64% 17.65%
Mechanical and Electrical Installation 75,000,000 9.29% 7.94%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 119,500,053 14.80% 12.66%
Total B 807,405,000 100% 85.53%

Loan Repayment from IPO Proceeds:

Plant & Machinery 24,115,229 32.97% 2.55%
Civil work & Land development charges 46,021,460 62.91% 4.88%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 3,013,311 4.12% 0.32%
Total C 73,150,000 100% 7.75%
Total IPO Proceeds D= (B+C) 880,555,000 100% 93.28%
Internal Cash generation:

Plant & Machinery 20,917,631 32.97% 2.22%
Civil work & Land development charges 39,919,172 62.96% 4.23%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 2,613,755 4.08% 0.28%
Total E 63,450,558 100% 6.72%
Grand Total F = (E+D) 944,005,558 100% 100%

4.3. Source of Funds:

The total funds needed for setting up a new plant are PKR 944,005,558. This funding will be used to the
establishment of a new, state-of-the-art production facility at the M-3 Industrial City, Faisalabad.The Company
has taken an interest free loan of PKR 73,150,000 to execute the expansion plan from its sponsors. Proceeds
from IPO will be used to pay the remaining payment of the new land, construction of the building, and install
new plant and machinery.

Additionally, a portion of funds will be allocated towards repaying the same loan which had been taken to
speed up the construction process. BFAL plans to raise PKR 880,555,000 through Initial Public Offering, and the
remaining amount will be funded by internally generated cash.

S s Cot(PKR) | Percentage )

Proceeds from Initial Public Offering 880,555,000 93.28%
Internally Generated Cash 63,450,558 6.72%
Total 944,005,558 100%

4.3.1. Utilization of IPO Proceeds:

The IPO proceeds will primarily be used to set up a new production facility at M-3, Industrial City, Faisalabad to
further strengthen local presence and facilitate global expansion. The proceeds will also be used to service a
PKR 73,150,000 loan from Sponsors to streamline the construction of production facility.

The utilization of IPO Proceeds is listed below:

Cost (PKR) Percentage (%)
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Proceed
s

Plant & Machinery 446,280,335 55.27% 50.68%
Civil work & Land development charges 166,624,612 20.65% 18.92%
Mechanical and Electrical Installation 75,000,000 9.29% 8.52%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 119,500,053 14.79% 13.57%
Total A 807,405,000 100% 91.69%

Loan Repayment:

Plant & Machinery 24,115,229 32.97% 2.74%
Civil work & Land development charges 46,021,460 62.96% 5.23%
Project Support and Infrastructure Costs 3,013,311 4.08% 0.34%
Total B 73,150,000 100% 8.31%
Total IPO Proceeds C=(A+B) 880,555,000 100% 100%

Any additional funds raised above the floor price shall be utilized by the Company in managing its
additional working capital needs, which has been explained in section 4.7 as well.

4.3.2. Additional Disclosures Relating to Purpose of the Issue

4.3.2.1. Details of Plant and Machinery:

Total Plant and machinery cost for the project amounts to PKR 402,832,690, Duties for the project amounts to
PKR 28,880,505, and Installation cost for the project amounts to PKR 59,600,000. The table below shows the
detail of Plant and Machinery to be delivered;

Breakup of Total Project Cost of Plant and Machinery

Plant & % of
Particulars Machinery Cost Duties and other Installation Cost Total Cost Total
(1G] Cost

PEB for Egg

. 32,775,000 8,257,860 4,000,000 45,032,860 9.17%
processing
Food grade sandwich
Panels for Egg 57,000,000 14,361,491 7,000,000 78,361,491 15.95%
Processing Building
Machlnv.ery for Ege 243,057,690 4,861,154 25,000,000 272,918,844 55.55%
Processing
Machinery for Chiller,
Heater, air 30,000,000 600,000 14,400,000 45,000,000 9.16%
compressor
Machinery for 40,000,000 800,000 9,200,000 50,000,000 = 10.18%
Refrigeration
Total 402,832,690 28,880,505 59,600,000 491,313,195 100%

Following is the additional detailed breakdown of plant and machinery to be ordered which will be financed
through IPO proceeds:

Expected
Country of Expected Order

Expected
date of
receiving

Cost in PKR Origin Supplier placemen

t date
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PEB steel Izhar, Kirby, = February = March 25
structure 42,032,860 UAE Zamil 2025 2025 New years
Food grade CT tech .

. . ’ February = April 25
sandwich 78,361,491 Turkey Kingspan, 2025 2025 New - years
panels Izhar
Breakup Machinery for Egg Processing:

Egg breaking
machine with Internationa = March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
43,164,350 Netherland .
parts & e etheriands - Egg trading = 2025 2025 ed year years
accessories
Pasteurization Internationa
equipment | Egg trading = March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
75,940,4 Netherl
with parts & 2,940,430 etherlands 2025 2025 ed year years
accessories
Pumps and Internationa = March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
19,81 Netherl
Filters 9,815,000 etherlands | Egg trading = 2025 2025 ed year years
Stainless steel Internationa
. March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
tanks and 38,871,150 @ Netherlands @ | Egg trading 2025 2025 od year years
parts
CIP Internationa
automation | Egg trading = March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
and 55,359,500 Netherlands 2025 2025 ed year  years
engineering
Internationa = March June Refurbish = 5-6 15+
h 27,907,2 Netherl
Others 907,200 etherlands | Egg trading = 2025 2025 ed year years
Breakup of Machinery for Chiller, Heater, air compressor and Refrigeration
April- Sep-Oct 15+
Evaporators 9,000,000 Turkey LUVE, KUBA  May New - years
2025
2025
April- 15+
Condensers 13,500,000 UAE Emerson, May >ep-Oct New - years
Danfoss 2025
2025
Will be April- 15+
Room cooling . acquired Sep-Oct = New/Use years
24 Pak M -
(chiller, AHU) /000,000 akistan from local ay 2025 d
. 2025
suppliers
Will be 15+
Chiller process . acquired August Septem Refurbish = 5-6 years
32,543,523 Pakist
system T akistan from local 2025 ber 2025 = ed year
suppliers
Local 15+
. . . August Septem
Boiler 5,490,000 Pakistan design, 2025 ber 2025 New - years
Ecostar
Will be April -
Air 4,410,000  Pakistan  2cquired May Sep-Oct  \ow - 10+
compressor from local 2025 years
. 2025
suppliers
Total 470,395,564

The Company has entered into a technical agreement with International Egg Trading, and the machinery to be
purchased will be on an arm’s length basis, ensuring there is no risk of transfer pricing. A quote has been
received from International Egg Trading. However, for other future vendors, there remains a price risk due to
potential fluctuations when formal agreements are executed.
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The Company obtained two quotations for the plant and machinery:

e A quotation from Ovobel, for new machinery, priced at USD 1,545,722 (EUR 1,444,600).
e A quotation from International Egg Trading, for refurbished machinery, priced at USD 852,834.

The Company has chosen to procure refurbished machinery from International Egg Trading due to cost
efficiency, customization, and the ability to leverage the JV partner's expertise in assembly and performance
optimization. Notably, refurbished machinery was also successfully utilized for the Karachi facility.

BFAL has not yet placed any orders for equipment, plant, or machinery but has received a quotation from
International Egg Trading. The Company is in the process of opening Letters of Credit (L/Cs) with respective
banks to proceed with the procurement. As no formal orders have been placed yet, the Company is currently
unable to disclose the percentage breakdown of machinery orders as required under the Public Offering
Regulations.

The costs mentioned in the table for the plant and machinery are estimates based on market research and
preliminary evaluations and a quote which has been received by International Egg Trading. As of yet the
Company has signed one Technical Agreement with its partner company, details of which are mentioned below:

. Party to Date of
Title of Agreement
“ Agreement Contract m

Agreement for supply

Contract for Plant and Machinery International Egg 27t and installation of
1 & Mechanical and Electrical Trading B.V November, Plant and Machinery
Installation. o 2024 and commissioning of
plant.

*International Egg Trading B.V. is a subsidiary company of the Company’s sponsor Frisian Egg International B. V.
incorporated in Netherlands. Frisian Egg International B.V. has three decades of experience in setting up production plants
for pasteurized eggs. Since International Egg Trading B.V. is an unlisted company, the Issuer was unable to disclose the
Paid-up-Capital, Net Worth and Revenue of International Egg Trading B.V. who is party to the technical agreement as per
regulations mentioned in Public Offering Regulations.

4.3.2.2. Civil Work and Land Development Charges:

Project Land 26,000,000

Civil Cost including land development 148,739,718
Steel and Cement 53,000,000

Ancillary Facilities / Structures 24,825,526
Total 252,565,244

Project Land

. Cost per .

Barkat Frisian Agro
Limited (formerly
2.5 . Barkat Frisian
Acres 26,000,000 10,400,000 = Acquired Pasteurized Egg
Company (Pvt.)
Limited)

Plot No.51, Phase Il M-
3 Industrial City,
Faisalabad

Civil Cost Including Land development*

Title of Agreement Party to Date of Cost (PKR)
Agreement Contract
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Agreement for

Contract for Civil . . 13t construction,
Top Engineering

1 work Including Land Construction December, 148,739,718 completion and
development ’ 2024 remedying any defects
in the work.

Steel and Cement

m Quantity* Estimated cost per bag/tonne* Total Cost

Cement 13,957 Bags 1,576/bag 22,000,000

Steel 119 tons 260,504/tons 31,000,000

*The quantity of cement bags and steel tonnage has been estimated by the Company's architect, Shahab Ghani &
Associates. The estimated cost per cement bag and per ton of steel has been determined with consideration for potential
inflation or future price fluctuations.

Ancillary Facilities / Structures

D f
““ R . ? e
quotation

Construction of RCC Top Engineering 15" January, 24,825,526
Ancillary Facilities Construction. 2025

4.3.2.3. Mechanical and Electrical Installation:

Information about Mechanical and Electrical works. The following table Mechanical and Electrical contracts
expenditures which have will be been placed for the requisite services for building construction, mechanical and
electrical work:

E;gte:tsfd Expected Date
Title of Agreement Expected Supplier Cost (PKR) N —— of supply of
order
of order
Electric - Pakistan
1 HT/LT/Transformer - . 30,000,000 1QFY26 2QFY26
cables/Siemens/PAEL
240mm cables
Electrical equipment
bling, light
2 (.Ca .mg’. '8NS, Pakistan Cables 20,000,000 1QFY26 2QFY26
firefighting
miscellaneous)
3 MEP Fontractmg with Top Englne('ermg 20,000,000 1QFY26 2QFY26
supplies construction
4 Neth)rklng, cameras, DAHUA 5,000,000 1QFY26 2QFY26
security
Total 75,000,000

These costs have been estimated by the company through market research and past experience as

per setting up its plant in port Qasim Karachi. The company does not have any agreements in places
for these items mentioned as these orders will be places in the first quarter of FY 2026. These costs
may vary at the time of order placement.

4.3.2.4. Project Support and Infrastructure Cost:
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Solar power system 300 KW 25,000,000
NOCs, permits, certification 5,000,000
Furniture and fittings 15,000,000

Lab equipment 12,500,000
Travelling and lodging 10,000,000
Architect/MEP/HVCAR consultant 12,500,000
Contingencies* 45,127,119

Total 125,127,119

*Contingencies refer to potential fluctuations in exchange rates which the company has assumed of PKR 285 or any cost
overruns that may arise during the project’s completion period.

No quotations have been received to date for the mentioned costs; therefore, no supplier can be specified at

this time. The costs outlined in the table are management's estimates based on prevailing market prices. Costs
may slightly vary at the time or order.

4.3.2.5. Loanrepayment

The detail of loan to be repaid against the construction of building in the new facility at Faisalabad from IPO
proceeds is as follows;

Expir Revie i
Date Sanctioned Termf;' & xpiry / Review | Loan to be repaid from IPO
Condition Date proceeds

Mr. Waqas Gulzar = 21% Dec, 2024 Interest Free 30t Apr, 2025 2,500,000
Z/';i'l 'X'I‘i‘hammad 21% Dec, 2024 Interest Free 30t Apr, 2025 7,402,242
B&ZE i

&ZEnterprise 15 pec, 2024 Interest Free 30 Apr, 2025 19,670,933
(Pvt) Ltd
Frisian Egg 11™ Nov, 2024 Interest Free 28t Feb, 2025 43,576,825
International B.V.
Total 73,150,000

Status of Debt outstanding

The Company has not utilized any short-term or long-term debt for financing the project, except for the
interest-free sponsor loan referenced in Table 4.3.2.5.

4.4. Details Regarding Financial Close of the Project

The Construction of the plant began on 17" December 2024. The entire project along with complete building is
expected to be completed by the third quarter of Fiscal year 2026.

4.5. Details of Letter of Credit

Currently, the company is currently in the process of opening L/Cs from the respective bank(s).

4.6. Implementation Schedule

Particular Start Date Completion/ Status

Approval Date
Construction of Building
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1 Constr_uctlon Civil & Q2 FY 2025 Q2 FY 2026
plumbing works

The construction commenced in
third week of December and is
expected to be completed by 02 FY
2026.

i) Civil Up to Plinth

Q3 FY 2025 03 FY 2025
Level

ii) Civil Up to

Ground Floor Slab Q3 FY 2025 03 FY 2025

Plant and Machinery

Pre-Engineered
1. Building- Import Q3 FY 2025 04 FY 2025
and installation

Food grade
sandwich panels -
Import and
installation

The company has shortlisted
Q3 FY 2025 01 FY 2026 suppliers and is in process of
negotiations with the suppliers.

Order placement

HVACR equipment Q3 FY 2025 01 FY 2026

Commercial Operations

Training staff and

Q2 FY 2026 Q2 FY 2026
employees

Start of Trial The new plant in Faisalabad will

2. Production & Sales Q2 FY 2026 Q3 FY 2026 commence commercial operations
Q3 FY 2026

3. Start Commercial Q3 FY2026 | Q3FY2026
Production

4.7. Utilization of excess IPO Funds:
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If the strike price is determined to be above the floor price of PKR 13.00/-, any excess funds raised shall be
utilized by the company to further support the additional working capital needs arising from the expansion.

4.7.1. Undertaking on Reporting of Utilization of Proceeds
As per clause (i) and (ii) of regulation 16 of the PO Regulations, the Company shall:

1. report detailed break-up of the utilization of the proceeds of the issue in its post issue quarterly / half-yearly
and annual accounts; till the fulfillment of the commitments mentioned in the prospectus, and;

2. submit a half yearly progress report and annual progress report reviewed by the auditor providing the status
of the commitments mentioned in the prospectus to PSX till the fulfillment of the commitments mentioned
in the prospectus as per the format given in regulation 16 of the PO Regulations.

3. submit a final report reviewed by the auditor after the fulfillment of the commitments given in the
prospectus.

4.7.2. Exit Opportunity mechanism

As per the Public Offering Regulations, the Company shall not alter the principal purpose of the issue disclosed
in the prospectus. In exceptional circumstances, any change will require the approval of a special resolution by
shareholders, along with an exit opportunity for dissenting shareholders. The exit offer, provided by the
sponsors, will be priced at the highest of the intrinsic value based on the latest audited accounts, the weighted
average closing price for the past six months, or the IPO offer price. Additionally, an exit opportunity will also be
mandatory if funds are diverted, resulting in the non-completion of the stated purpose in a timely manner. All
exit offers must be executed within 30 days of passing the special resolution.
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4A VALUATION SECTION:

The Ordinary Shares of BFAL are being issued at Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share which is at a premium of
PKR 12.00/- per ordinary share to the face value of PKR 1.00/- per ordinary share. The Lead Manager has
reviewed the business performance of the Company and in their opinion the Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share
is justified based on:

4A (i) Opportunities for Exponential Growth

The pasteurized egg market in Pakistan is new and there are no other companies within the industry apart from
BFAL. The opportunity for growth in this industry is massive in local market alone. The company primarily targets
HoReCa, dressing and sauces, baking and cooking industry.

On average, 90 eggs are consumed annually per capita in Pakistan3® and as per company analysis, 15% of this
consumption is done by HoReCa, dressing and sauces, baking and cooking industry. Pakistan’s current
population is at 241.49 million, taking the annual consumption to 21.1 Bn eggs. At 15%, the overall target market
of the Company becomes of almost 3.2 Bn eggs. The company in FY 24 sold 260 Mn eggs, which is 8% of the
total market and aims to increase its market share substantially in the coming years.3*

Processed Eggs Market - Pakistan (tons)

11,572

8%

Market
Share

131,107

= Current Market Share = Market Opportunity

4A (ii) Leaders of Change in the Industry

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited is a Pakistani - Dutch joint venture established in 2017 in Pakistan with the aim to
lead change in the food processing and manufacturing industry of Pakistan. The company aimed to provide
nutritious, healthier and convenient products. In pursuit of its aim, BFAL became the only company in Pakistan
to produce pasteurized egg products, strengthening its presence in the market and constructing a strong brand
image in the local and global markets. Within a short span of five years, Barkat Frisian Agro Limited has secured
a large number of long-term clients locally and globally such as Kerry Group, Siri Lankan Airlines, Mondelez Areej
Vegetable oils & Derivatives etc. highlighting its strong commitment to delivering exceptional products and
dedication to its mission.

4A (iii) Exposure in International Markets:
BFAL commenced operations in 2019 and entered the global markets in 2022. In the last two years, the Company

has showed staggering growth in its exports sales, increasing from 51Mn in FY22 YoY by 385% in FY23 to 249Mn
and 153% in FY24 to PKR 631Mn. This remarkable growth highlights the Company’s capabilities to achieve

33 https://www.karandaaz.com.pk/capital/direct-investments/wahdat-farm
34 https://www.bbcmaestro.com/blog/egg-conversion-chart (1 egg = 44 grams)
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groundbreaking results. The Company has established a strong geographic footprint across international
markets in the Middle East, including Kuwait, Bahrain, UAE, KSA, Qatar, Oman, and Egypt. This regional presence
enables them to deliver tailored solutions and foster close relationships with their clients. Furthermore, BFAL is
in process of establishing a subsidiary in United Arab Emirates to further fortify its presence in the international
market.

The Company has already attracted international clients like Mondelez, Sri Lankan Airlines and Kerry Group for
the next fiscal year. Moreover, the poultry sector regulations in countries in Europe are getting stricter, enabling
the Company to target higher market share in global markets. As the Company continues to expand, their future
market focus will be on enhancing their reach in countries within the MENA region, while exploring new
opportunities in East Africa, Asia Pacific and South Asia, aligning with the growing demand for innovative
products and services in these areas.

4A (iv) Competitive Pricing

The company is based in Pakistan which gives the company lower costs as compared to other regions. Pakistan
has high maize production and 3™ most important food grain crop of the country.?> Maize is one of the most
important ingredients for poultry feed®. Due to high local production of maize, the cost of poultry feed is lower
in Pakistan as compared to other regions resulting in lower egg prices in the country, allowing the Company to
offer competitive prices in the international markets.

4A (v) Competent and Experienced Leadership

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited is joint Venture between Frisian Egg International B.V. and Buksh Group of Pakistan.
Frisian Egg B.V., with over 30 years of expertise in egg farming and processing across multiple countries such as
Kingdom of Netherlands, Egypt and China and has grown into a global leader in liquid egg products and egg
powders. The Buksh Group, with its extensive experience in textiles and poultry through subsidiaries like Adorn
International (Pvt.) Limited, brings valuable industry insight. Together, their combined expertise and leadership
position Barkat Frisian Agro Limited for continued success and growth in the local and global markets.

4A (vi) Robust Financial Performance:

From FY22 to FY24, the company demonstrated exceptional financial performance, achieving remarkable
growth across key profitability, growth, and leverage metrics. Revenue surged at a compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 56.7%, rising from PKR 2.4 billion to PKR 6.1 billion over the last three years, while net profit
increased by a CAGR of 66% over the same period, reaching PKR 380 million by FY24. Moreover, the Company
has already reported a net profit of PKR 332 Mn in first half of FY25. Despite challenges such as a high-interest
environment in FY23, the company maintained stable gross and operating margins, with a net profit margin of
6% by FY24. Additionally, its return on equity (ROE) improved from 46% in FY23 to 50% in FY24, and return on
assets (ROA) rose from 18% to 22%, highlighting the company's efficient use of assets. The company's financial
stability was further underscored by a reduced debt-to-equity ratio, which improved significantly from 211% in
FY22 to 60% in FY24, showcasing a stronger equity base and reduced reliance on debt. Overall, the company’s
robust performance reflects its strong growth trajectory, profitability, and enhanced financial stability,
positioning it well for future success.

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024
| Audited ] Audited | Audited |

Revenue 2,470 4,325 6,068

Gross Profit 279 448 700

Net Profit 138 148 380

ROE 76% 46% 50%

ROA 18% 13% 22%

Debt-to-Equity 211% 184% 60%
% https://tdap.gov.pk/

36 https://www.pacra.com/
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4A (vii) Tax Exemption:

BFAL currently has one plant operational in Karachi which is SEZ entity and is exempt from income tax (both
normal & minimum tax levy) for 10 years from the date of commencement of business and on the basis of this
exemption the company can obtain exemption on advance tax (WHT) deduction from receipts from customers
as per the Approval of application No.DIR(P)/SBI/SEZ-AUTHORITY/2012/44/407. The tax exemption is till 2029
for the Karachi plant and 2036 for the upcoming Faisalabad plant, under minimum tax regime. After the tax
exemption ends, BFAL will be charged a reduced minimum tax rate of 0.75% of its revenue instead of 1.25% in
cases where the company's earnings are insufficient for the corporate tax rate of 39% to exceed the minimum
tax due to its operations in the poultry sector. The Company has also already acquired tax exemption for the
new plant that the Company aims to construct at M3 Industrial City, Faisalabad. The exemption is 10 years from
commencement of commercial operations till FY 2036.

Note: Income is exempt from income tax, including both normal and minimum tax levy, for a period of ten years
from the date of commencement of business. Based on this exemption, the company also qualifies for an
exemption from advance tax (withholding tax) deductions on receipts from customers.

Furthermore, import duties and taxes are waived on the first-time import of plant and machinery for production
facilities established within any Special Economic Zone (SEZ).

4A (viii) Post IPO Free Float Disclosure:

Post IPO, the number of issued shares will increase from 242,255,384 Ordinary Shares to 309,990,384 Ordinary
Shares. The free float status post IPO is presented in the below table:

% Shareholdi
Number of Shares % :::tuc; ing Total Free Float

Existing Shareholders

Frisian Egg International B.V. 121,127,492 39.07%
B&Z Enterprise (Pvt.) Limited 79,941,585 25.79%
Wagas Gulzar 24,225,538 7.81%
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 3.13%
Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 1.26%
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1.09%
Johan Stuiver 100 0.00%
Paul Ettema 100 0.00%
Mehmood Arshad 1 0.00%
Nadia Ishtiaq 1 0.00%
Anwar Ali 1 0.00%
Public Offering 67,735,000 21.85% 21.85%
Total 309,990,384 100% 21.85%

4A (ix) Peer Group Analysis:

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited is a first of its kind company in Pakistan and has no competitors in the industry.
However, listed companies working in the food sector have been taken as comparable peers. Please note that
financial performance of BFAL cannot be directly compared with other listed companies operating in Food
Sector. The weighted Average P/E ratio of the sector as of 315 January, 2025 is 21.45 whereas the P/B multiple
of the sector is 5.83

BFAL’s Floor Price of PKR 13.00/- per share, based on annual earnings for Trailing Twelve Months (TTM)
i.e.2QFY24 to 2QFY25, translates to a trailing price to earnings (P/E) multiple of 5.7 times as compared to
industry average of 21.45 times. Similarly, price to book value (P/B) multiple is of 2.0 times as compared to
industry average of 5.83 times
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Gross Net
EPS Profit Profit Free Float
Company (TTM) Margi (Shares -
37 n39g Mn)44
The
Organic 12.7
Meat 4.1 13.3% 4.8% 344 33.8 8.1 1.0 (y' 10.0% 74.25 50.0%
Company °
Limited
ﬁtn:,-::;r 1.6 23.1% 3.4% 23.8 246 155 1.0  6.9% 4.8% 54.66 25.0%
Big Bird
Foods 3.0 22.1% 13/'8 19.0 505 16.7 2.7 106/'4 8.6% 104.62 | 35.0%
Limited ? ?
Mitchells
i 17. 11.  120.7
Fruit 201 307% ., 8 266 2933 146 0.7 269% 686  300%
Farms % 0 %
Limited
Ismail
.01 18.
Industries 59.1 | 20.3% 3.3% 33;8 '9947 33.0 5.8 37 3.9% 3.32 5.0%
Limited °
Friesland
Campina 12.8
Engro 2.5 15.0%  1.8% 21.1 78.2 30.7 3.7 (y 4.5% 76.66 10.0%
Pakistan °
Limited
Nestle
Pakistan 2226. 345% 6.5% 314' 7'4533 26.0 1:' 93'4 13.8% 2.27 5.0%
Limited : °
Unilever
Pakistan 1,20 o 23.4 | 2,36 22,30 52.0 o
. . . . . 4.8%
Foods 92 39.7% % 71 55 18.4 9.4 % 25.2% 0.31 %
Limited
Rafhan
Maize 748. o 10.4 | 2,82 9,548 28.5 o .
Products 7 19.6% % 17 6 12.8 3.4 % 16.0% 0.79 8.5%
Limited
Murree
Brewery 106. o 11.8 @ 565. 20.0 o 0
Company 4 24.3% % 0 805.2 7.6 1.4 % 16.0% 11.07 40.0%
Limited
National 11.2
Foods 6.9 27.0% 1.8%  63.4 182.0 263 2.9 (y' 3.7% 58.28 25.0%
Limited °
Fauji 11.4
Foods 0.5 18.7% 5.6% 3.7 15.7 311 4.2 (y 7.6% 503.99 20.0%
Limited ?

37 The TTM is from September,2023 till September, 2024

3 LTM Gross Profit Margin-Consolidated FS

39 LTM Net Profit Margin-Consolidated FS

40 The BVPS is calculated as of September, 2024

41 Closing price is at 31%t January, 2025

42 P/E is at 31% January, 2025 (Market Capitalization / TTM Profit After Tax)
43 P/B is at 31% January, 2025 (Market Capitalization / Total Equity)

4 Free Float is at 31 January, 2025
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Sector
Weighted
Average
Mean
Sector
Median

KSE 100%

BFAL Pre
Issue

BFAL Post
Issue

23 12% 8% 6.6

1.8 12% 8% 5.1

4 KSE-100 P/E TTM is at 31% January, 2025

21.45 5.83

17.58 3.54

6.3 1.4

5.7 2.0 46.4% 26.1% 67.735 21.8%

7.3 25 | 46.4% 26.1% 67.735 21.8%

Page 75 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

5. RISKFACTORS

5.1. INTERNAL RISKS

5.1.1. Business Risk

The Company operates in a niche market as the only pasteurized egg producer in Pakistan. While this provides
a competitive advantage, it also exposes the Company to risks associated with market acceptance and consumer
education. Economic downturns, shifts in consumer preferences, or changes in government policies affecting
food safety regulations could impact the Company’s revenue and growth projections.

5.1.2. Liquidity Risk

Expanding production capacity requires substantial capital investments, impacting the Company’s cash flow and
liquidity position. The total debt of company as of FY24 was PKR 659 Mn which is subsequently reduced to PKR
416 Mn in Q2FY25. The Company’s ability to meet its short-term financial obligations depends on effectively
managing its working capital. Failure to do so could restrict the Company's ability to fund operations. The Current
Ratio of company in FY24 was 1.7 and stands at 1.92 in Q2FY25 similarly the Quick Ratio was 1.3 and 1.54 in
FY24 and 2QFY25 respectively.

5.1.3. Negative Operating Cashflows

Initially, the Company had negative Cashflow from Operations in FY 22 and FY 23 resulting from high trade debts
and interest costs. However, the Company has opted for efficient operational practices and has had a positive
Cashflow from Operations in FY 24 and in 2Q FY 2025. Negative operating cashflows if prolonged imposes
liquidity challenges and forces the company to rely on borrowing and delay growth plans.

5.1.4. Operational Risk

Given the reliance on specialized pasteurization equipment, the Company faces operational risks related to
machinery breakdown, maintenance requirements, and potential production interruptions. Any disruption in
operations could delay product availability, affecting customer satisfaction and revenue stability

5.1.5. Credit Risk

The Company extends credit to a diverse customer base, particularly in the food service and manufacturing
sectors. Even though there has never been a trade default, there is a risk of delayed payments or defaults,
especially in economic downturns, which could impact cash flow and liquidity. The trade debts balance and aging
are as follows:

Balances of Trade Debts FY22 Q2FY25

(PKR)
Trade Debts 288,138,827 595,157,519 891,085,143 1,243,152,784

Aging of the trade debtors

FY22 FY23 FY24 Q2FY25
Past due 1-30 days 205,393,893 332,328,306 485,091,487 762,646,090
Past due 31-90 days 66,868,203 225,940,698 283,169,004 399,073,987
Past due above 90 days 21,620,574 49,034,588 141,010,063 102,026,634

5.1.6. Quality Control Issues
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As a food processing company, maintaining stringent quality control is critical. Quality lapses or product recalls
could harm the Company’s reputation and incur financial losses.

5.1.7. Supply Chain Management

Efficient supply chain management is essential for timely and cost-effective production. The Company relies on
the smooth transportation of raw eggs and finished goods. Any disruptions in the supply chain, due to logistic
issues or raw material shortages, could lead to production delays and increased costs. Even though the company
has never faced any operational or supply chain issues even at the time of COVID-19 global crisis there is a
significant risk that these disruptions (if happens) could negatively impact the company's ability to meet demand
and affect overall operations.

5.1.8. Product Innovation Limitations

With growing consumer preferences for convenience and health, the Company faces pressure to innovate and
diversify its product offerings. However, limitations in resources or technology could hinder the Company's
ability to introduce new products and stay competitive. While BFALis the only company currently manufacturing
pasteurized eggs in Pakistan, failure to innovate, diversify its product range, and optimize costs could result in
the company losing market share if new entrants emerge in the future.

5.1.9. Risk of Non-Compliance with SECP and PSX Regulations

In the event of non-compliance with any regulatory requirements of SECP or PSX, the Company may be placed
on the Non-Compliant Segment of PSX which may potentially hamper trading in the Company’s shares leading
up to potential suspension in the trading and can also lead to delisting.

5.1.10. Suppliers of Plant and Machinery not finalized

The company has secured quotes for approximately 55.5% of the plant and machinery required for the project,
with the remaining procurement process still underway. This partial finalization introduces a risk of delays or
cost fluctuations for the unfinalized portion, potentially affecting the project timeline and budget. Timely
completion of the supplier selection process is critical to mitigate these risks and ensure smooth project
execution.

5.1.11. Refurbished Plant and Machinery

BFAL will be procuring 53% of Plant and Machinery, which will be refurbished, from its associate company,
International Egg Trading B.V. The use of refurbished plant and machinery introduces certain risks that require
careful consideration. These risks include a potentially shorter operational lifespan, increased maintenance
needs, and the likelihood of unanticipated downtime due to wear and tear. Such challenges could affect
production efficiency and lead to higher operational costs over time.

5.1.12. Project Related Risk (financial close of the project is not achieved).

If the financial close of the project is not achieved, the company may face delays in project initiation and
execution. Without securing the necessary funding, the project could be postponed, leading to potential cost
overruns and missed deadlines. This may also impact relationships with stakeholders and create uncertainty
around the project’s feasibility and overall success.

5.1.13. Material agreements not in place.

The absence of finalized material agreements poses a risk to the project's smooth execution. Without these
agreements, there is uncertainty regarding the availability, pricing, and delivery timelines of essential materials.
This could lead to procurement delays, cost escalations, and potential disruptions in the project timeline. Even
though the company has got quotes for about 50% of the project cost and has included a contingency cost of
5%, finalizing these agreements promptly is essential to ensure continuity and efficiency in project
implementation.
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5.1.14. Risk Due to High Dependence on Internal Cash Flows or Third-Party Contributions

The company's reliance on internal cash flows and third-party contributions to complete the new project
introduces financial risk. Any delays or shortfalls in securing the required funds could hinder the project's timely
completion. This dependency on external sources or internal resources increases the likelihood of financial
strain, potentially resulting in delays, cost overruns, or the need to adjust project plans if the necessary funds
are not available as anticipated.

5.1.15. High dependence on one product for revenue generation.

The company operates in a niche market with significant growth potential, centered around its pasteurized eggs
and their variations. However, this high dependence on a single product category poses a risk if consumer
preferences shift toward alternative products or solutions. While the niche nature of the market offers
opportunities, evolving trends or competition could impact the company's ability to sustain its revenue growth.

5.1.16. Risk of Orders Not Placed for Plant and Machinery

The company has not yet placed orders for the required plant and machinery, which poses a risk to the project
timeline. Delays in placing orders could result in longer lead times, potential cost increases, and disruptions in
the installation and commissioning schedule. Timely placement of orders is critical to avoid bottlenecks and
ensure the project progresses as planned.

5.1.17. Cost of project based on management estimates instead of third part feasibility report.

While the company has secured quotes for approximately 50% of the project cost, the reliance on internal
estimates for the remaining portion introduces risks such as:
1. Inaccurate Projections: The unquoted portion may lead to discrepancies between estimated and actual
costs.
2. Unforeseen Expenses: Unfinalized procurement could result in unexpected cost increases.
3. Stakeholder Confidence: Relying on internal estimates may lower trust with investors and lenders
compared to third-party feasibility reports.

5.2. EXTERNAL RISKS:

5.2.1. Credit Risk

Although the company has never experienced a trade default, external economic conditions can influence the
payment behavior of customers, especially in a fluctuating market. The risk of delayed payments or defaults by
customers may increase during downturns, which could impact cash flow and liquidity requirements. The trade
debts balances and aging are as follows.

Trade Debts 288,138,827 595,157,519 891,085,143 1,243,152,784
Aging of the trade debtors FY22 FY23 FY24 Q2FY25

Past due 1-30 days 205,393,893 332,328,306 485,091,487 762,646,090
Past due 31-90 days 66,868,203 225,940,698 283,169,004 399,073,987
Past due above 90 days 21,620,574 49,034,588 141,010,063 102,026,634

5.2.2. Raw Material Supply Risk
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The company’s primary raw material, raw eggs, is vulnerable to supply disruptions, which can lead to production
halts, price hikes, and quality issues. These disruptions can result in operational inefficiencies, impacting sales
and profitability. External factors such as climate, economic volatility, political instability, and global market
fluctuations can exacerbate these risks, making the company more susceptible to unpredictable challenges that
affect both costs and product consistency.

5.2.3. Foreign Exchange Risk

Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates pose a significant risk to the company’s operations, particularly as it
expands internationally. The company plans to import plant and machinery worth USD 852,834 and fluctuation
in exchange rates can elevate the cost risks associated and increase project cost substantially as 80% of the Plant
and Machinery is in foreign currency. Moreover, the Company will continue to import packaging materials, which
could become more expensive due to the depreciation of the Pakistani Rupee (PKR). The historical trend shows
a 5-year CAGR depreciation of 15% in the PKR-Dollar exchange rate. This could negatively impact costs and
profitability. Packaging material imported in FY22 was USD 71,101 and Euro 26,400 translating to PKR 36.3 Mn,
in FY23 it was USD 139,086 AND Euro 48,800 translating to PKR 89 Mn, and in FY24 the imports related to
packaging material accounted for USD 448,002 and Euro 48,800 translating to PKR 189 Mn(The PKR is inclusive
of customs, duties and other charges) In addition, the Company exports egg products, meaning any appreciation
in the PKR could lead to a reduction in revenue from exports. The export driven revenue of the company was
USD 0.27Mn in FY22, USD 0.99Mn in FY23 and USD 2.25 Mn in FY24.

5.2.4. Risk Relating to Potential Change in Regulatory/Custom Duties

Changes in trade regulations or customs duties can impact the company’s cost structure and market access. The
company benefits from income tax exemptions as outlined in Section 4A (vii) of the prospectus, operating in
special economic zones (Karachi plant until 2029, Faisalabad plant until 2036). However, the removal of these
exemptions could reduce profits by 35% if earnings are at FY24 levels, or by 39% if earnings exceed PKR 500
million, according to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Additionally, changes in government policies or
international standards may result in increased compliance costs or necessitate operational adjustments.

5.2.5. Economic Slowdown

An external economic slowdown, both globally or locally, could reduce consumer spending power and impact
sales volumes thereby impacting profitability of the Company.

5.2.6. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rates are subject to economic policy and are beyond the Company’s control. A rise in rates can increase
borrowing costs, impacting financial performance. The company as of 2QFY25 has a debt obligation of PKR 491
Mn and recorded PKR 63Mn as finance cost compared to PKR 653 Mn Debt Obligation in FY24 and finance cost
of PKR 123 Mn.

5.2.7. Threat of New Entrants

While the Company currently has no direct competitors in the local market, external factors, like the easing of
market entry barriers or government incentives for new businesses, could attract new entrants. The
manufacturing of pasteurized egg business is a capital-intensive business as it not only requires huge upfront
capital expenditure for land and machinery but also the working capital requirement is substantial.

5.2.8. Public Health Concerns Due to Pandemic

The Company’s products are subject to external public health concerns, such as disease outbreaks or shifts in
consumer perceptions of food safety specially after the global pandemic in 2019. Such pandemics and spread of
diseases could reduce demand and impact profitability of the Company.

5.2.9. Consumer Education and Awareness
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Consumer awareness of pasteurized egg products is influenced by cultural and economic factors beyond the
Company’s control. While the company has strived hard to create more awareness regarding use of pasteurized
egg products, optimizing the long-term growth opportunity would require continued efforts to create awareness
amongst buyers and support conversion from traditional egg usage to pasteurized products. Failure to enhance
awareness may hamper long term volumetric sales growth.

5.2.10. Dependence on growth of other sectors for revenue generation.

The company’s revenue is closely linked to the growth and performance of key sectors such as bakeries,
confectioneries, and HoReCa (Hotels, Restaurants, and Cafés). If these sectors experience a slowdown due to
economic downturns, changing consumer preferences, or other market disruptions, it could negatively impact
the demand for the company’s pasteurized eggs. As a B2B-focused business, any challenges in these industries
may directly affect the company’s revenue generation and growth potential.

5.2.11. Financial Risk due to litigations.

The company is currently engaged in litigation regarding the payment of Minimum Tax Payable on Revenue
(MTR) at 0.75% in past periods. As the company operates within a Special Economic Zone (SEZ), it claims
exemption from this tax. However, the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) has been collecting the tax, leading to a
legal dispute. If the court's decision is favorable, the company would be able to recover past taxes paid
amounting PKR 71.3 Mn which shall positively impact future earnings and cashflows.

5.2.12. High dependence on few customer/suppliers.

The company’s high dependence on the top 3 suppliers, which account for 64% of total purchases in FY2024,
exposes it to risks such as supply chain disruptions, reduced bargaining power, and vulnerability to supplier
issues. Any challenges faced by these key suppliers could significantly impact production and costs. Similarly top
3 customers accounted for 67% of total sales in FY24, highlighting a significant customer concentration risk.

5.2.13. Risk of No or Short-Term Agreements with Major Customers/Suppliers

The company primarily relies on spot purchases, with only a few agreements in place with major customers
and suppliers. This creates risks such as pricing fluctuations, supply chain disruptions, and a lack of stability in
relationships with key stakeholders. The absence of long-term agreements leaves the company vulnerable to
unexpected changes in terms or availability of goods and services, potentially affecting operations.
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5.3. CERTIFICATE BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER OF THE ISSUER:

fj‘;
BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

20 Deceavibey 2024

Subject: Certificate by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Issuer

We being the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited
(formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited) (the “Issuer”) accept
absolute responsibility for the disclosures made in the Prospectus. We hereby certify that we have
reviewed the Prospectus and that it contains all the necessary information with regard to the Issue
and constitutes full, true and plain disclosures of all material facts relating to the ordinary shares
being cffered through this Prospectus and that nothing has been concealed.

The information contained in the Prospectus is true and correct to the best of our knowledge and
the opinions and intends expressed herein are hotestly held.

There are no other facts, the omission of which makes the Prospectus as a whole or any part
thereof misleading.

For and on behaif of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Egg Pasteurized
Company (Private) Limited)

For and on behalf ,"'m' /
Muhammad AdilAli -0 ./ qZafar__~
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lii {BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21, 33480833, 32574668

‘
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5.4. UNDERTAKING BY THE COMPANY AND ITS SPONSORS

B L =T | ﬂ”f lil'n”."f‘?iﬂfﬂ"?ﬂlﬂ

NBP-1862-2412190006068960  GoS-KHI-DFA05EB2FC2232D3

Non-Judicial Rs 500/-
Description. i Bond - LAY

Irdemafien Norgenor 1 PS5 % [0000CCOT]

Iremiifiod TR gges ! BARAAT FRISIAN AGRC (FRIVATE] LUNTED (00600000}
Avpikart : Muhaneres Masoom (42501-1994452.57

Stamp Dty Fae by i BARCAT FRISIAN AGRC (PRIVATE] LIMITED [000C2000)
Is5 Dye 1 15-Dac-2024; ULALIAS =M

Paid Theougn Chalian i 02928DFSACERASD

Aot in Weeds 1 Ve FLndeed Ropocs Criy

FeV T DecEmiber éa‘——-— Py Gan B ow Ths iow
Pakistan Stock Exchange
Stock Exchange Building
Stock Exchange Road
Karaschi, Pekistan

Barkat Frigian Agro Limited (formarly Barkat Frislan Pasteu
Sponsors undartake that

1. Neither the Campany nor its directors, sponsors or substantial shareholders have been helding office
of the directors, or have baen sponscrs or substantial shareholders in any company:
& Which had been declared defaulter by the securitias exchange or fulures exchanges: or

b.  \Whose TRE cerlificate has been cancelied or forfated by the Exchange, PMEX or any other registered
stock exchange of Paklstan that existed prior to integration: of stock exchanges pursuant (o Integration
Crder number 01/2016 dated January 11, 2018 issued by the Commission due to non-compliancs of
any aoplicable rules, regulations, notices, procecures, guidelines etc.

2. Which has been ce-listzd by the Exchange due to its non<ompliance of any applicable provision of
PSX Regulation.

3. None of the Sponsors, Major Sharehclders, Direclors or Managemeant of the Ccmpany a5 well as the
Company itself or #s Asscciated Company 7 Entity have been found guilty of being engaged ir any

)
‘.\_;/
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E-STAMP

CONTINUATION SHELT
Governmant of Sindh

fraudulent activity. The Cempany has made full disclasure regarding any / or all cases in relation to
involverant of the person named above in any alieged fraudulent activity i.e. pending befors any Court of
Law / Regutatory Body / investigation Agency in or outside of the country

For and on behalf of the Company
Muhammad Adil All Muhammad Farooq Zafar
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Adil Ali
CEO/Exacutive Director/Sponsor
Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

A
/1///
Nahu}i Ali Ansari
Sponsor

Barkal Frisian Agro Limited

For and oa behalf of B&Z Enterprises (Private)
Limited

Muhammad Ali Ansari

Sponsor

Barkat Frisian Agro Limitad

SHI.PAKICTAN
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P
™
Pakistan Stock Exchange
Stock Exchange Building
Stock Exchange Read
Karachi, Pa<istan,

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Cor

any
Limited) and its Spensors undertaks that: \: \12\ : dperniesd
v,',. Q' G
1. Neither the Company nor its directors, sponsors or substantial shareholw

hoiging office of the directors, or have been sponsars or substantial sharehold 3
Company:

Which had been dsclared defaulter by the securities exchange or futures exchanges: or

Whose TRE certificate has been cancelied or forfsited by the Exchange, PMEX or any
other registared stock exchange of Pakistan that existed prior to integration of stock
sxchanges pursuant to Integration Order number 01/2016 dated January 11, 2018 issued
by the Commission due to non-compliance of any applicable rulas, regulations, nolices,
procadures, guidelines ete,

Which has been de-listed by the Exchange due to its non-compliance of any agglicable
provision of PSX Regulation.

None of the Sponsors. Majer Shareholders. Direstors or Management of the Company as
well as the Company Itself or its Associated Company / Entity have been fourd guilty of
being engaged in any fraudulent ectivity. The Company has made full disclosure
regarcing any / or all cases in relation to involvément of the person named above in any
alleged fraudulent activity i.e. pending tefore any Court of Law / Regulatory Body /
Investgation Agency in or outside of the country.

' a Frisian egg DV.

—_— _ B P P Bex326
\ g I00AEDrachen
N \ 3 The tetherfands
(o p

Paul Ettema
Sponsor
Barkat Frisian Agro Limitad
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5.5. STATEMENT BY THE ISSUER

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

‘;( - Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PYT.) LIMITED

% 5 o
0050 66 o

20" Decemvbbey 00

The Chief Executive

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building

Stock Exchange Road

Karachi, Pakistan.

On behalf of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company
(Private) Limited) (the “Company™), We hereby confirm that all material information as
required under the Companies Act 2017, tha Securities Act 2015, the Public Offering
Regulations 2017 and the Listing of Companies and Securities Regulations of the Pakistan
Stock Exchange Limited has been disclosed in the Prospectus and that whatever is stated in
Frospectus and the supporting documents is true and correct to the best of our knowledge
and belief and that nothing has been concealad.

For and behalf of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

T ST
\ (5 3} fi< Bl
\-xr < ) ﬁ\’é Q)
AW/ KA S=" o /
Muhammad Adit Ali = Muham coqiZafar =
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Bslad Trade Center«lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone €, Khayaben-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakictan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21, 33480833, 325746638

Page 85 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

5.6. STATEMENT BY THE LEAD MANAGER

AT

The Chief Executive

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building

Stock Exchange Read

Karzchl

30" December, 2024

Zeing mandated 35 the Leed Manager to this Initial Fublic Offering of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited {formerly Barkst
Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company Pvt Ltd) through the Book Building mechanism, we hereby confirm that all material
information as required under the Compenies Act, 2017, the Securitios Act, 2015, the Listing of Companies and
Securities Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Public Offering Regulations, 2017 has been
disclosed in the Prospectus and that whatever is stated in Prospectus and in the supporting documents is true and
correct to the best of our knowledge and belizf and that nothing Aas been concealed,

We have examined the business model and audited financizl statements of the lssuer and based on the s2me,

material information including risks that would enable the mvestors to make an Informed decision has besn
disclosed in the prospectus.

Fer and on behalf of Arif Habib Limited

-
Farhan Rizvi
Cicector, Investment Banking

Head Office / Corparate Offices Arif Habid Coesre, 23 M.7, Eaan Road, Naoni | UAN: »93 21 351 345 131 1Fax: +52 215242 9654
Lahere Office- Offica No, 65 & G%, Sreund Foor, L3 Mans, 15, Khayaban.e-Alwin-a-35648, (ahore, | Tol: #3242 3531 70C - 13, 2621 3721 . 4¢
Islamabad Office: OMce Xo, 505, 3tA Flaor ISE Toweny, Jinnah Avenue, lslamabad | Te' +32 $1 269 3505 - 2¢
Peshawor Ofticn: $18-F17, T51 Floor The Wall Towee, Pashawar Cantt [ Tali +G2 91 S263413
Faisalabag Office: Utice Mo 03, 30 Floos, Lughcy Towan, Xotimoor Cty, F2isala®ed | fel +92 41 A831010-3
Musitan Office: Office o 35, 3e€ pioer, Tha Unkes M3l Plot H0. 78, ARt heed Mulsn. 1Te) -92 61 4514422
syoniineZarithabied com |wwmarfhab o s com | wwaadltadecon
TREC Holser of the Pakivtan Stock Exchange L1<. | Bcanck Rog No; 304260 [ B1
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5.7. STATEMENT BY THE BOOK RUNNER

AARIFHABIB
hdL IMITED

30" December, 2024
The Chief Executive
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Stock Exchange Building
Stock Exchange Road
Karachi

Being mandated s the Book Runner to this Initial Public Offering of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat
Frisian Pasteurized'Egg Company Pvt Ltd) through the Book Building process, we hereby confirm that all material
information as required under the Companies Act 2017, Securities Act, 2015, the Listing of Companies and
Securities Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited and the Public Offering Regulations, 2017 has been
disclosed in this Prospectus and that whatever is stated in Prospectus and in the supporting documents is true
and correct to the best of our knowledge and belief and that nothing has been concealed.

For and on behalf of Arif Habib Limited

Farhan Rizvi
Director, Investment Banking

Head Office / Corporate Office: Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T. Khan Road, Karachi | UAN: +92 21 111 245 111 | Fax. +92 2132429653
Lahore Office: Office No. G-3 & G-6, Ground Floor, LSE Plaza, 19, Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-lgbal, Lzhore, | Tel; +92.42 3631 3700 - 11, 3631 3741 - 44
Islamabad Office: Office No. 506, 5th Floor, ISE Tawers, Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad | Tel; <92 51 289 4505 - 06
Peshawar Office: F16-F17, 15t Fioor, The Mall Tower, Peshawar Cantt [ Tel: +#92 91 5253913
Faisalabad Office: Office No. 04, 3rd Floor, Legacy Tower, Kohiroor City, Faisalebad. | Tel +92 41 8531010-3
Multan Office; Office No. 05, 3rd Floor, The United Mall, Plot No. 74, Abdali Road, Multan. | Tel: 92 51 4514412

\ li fhabibltd.com | www.ar com | www.ahltrade.com
TREC Holder of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. | Branch Reg No. BOA-050 / 01
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6. FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Note: The satisfactory QCR rating assigned to the M/s. Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. Chartered
Accountants by ICAP expired on May 10, 2020. The conclusion of the last QCR report dated October
11, 2023, of ICAP was unsatisfactory, which has been set aside by the Appellate Board and the new
QCR Rating is pending. Audit Oversight Board also conducted an inspection of the firm of selected
audit engagements for the last four years and issued an order whereby one of the eight partners was
restrained from being assigned audit of any public interest company for one year along with
imposition of a penalty. However, this order was challenged in the honorable high court of Islamabad
and the same has been suspended through a stay order.

6.1 AUDITORS REPORT AS CERTIFICATE ON ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

1st Fl . Modern Motors House,
Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co. TEPson Modern Motors touss,

Chartered Accountants Ph: +92-21-35671909, 36673754
Fax: +92-21-35210626

A Member firm of E-mail: khi@nzaj.com.pk

Web: www.nzaj.com.pk

An Association of

/‘-‘4 Prim@GlObal I Independent Accounting Firms

December 27, 2024
NZAJ/AC/03/24

The Board of Directors

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

Office No: 601, 6th Floor,

Balad Trade Center-ll (BTC-3),

Plot No. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7,
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Dear Members of the Board,

Auditor’s certificate on issued, subscribed and paid-up capital as required under clause 14(i) of section 1 of the
First Schedule to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017

We have been requested to provide you a certificate confirming the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of Barkat
Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited) (the “Company”) based on
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, for onward submission to
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) as required under Clause 14(i) of section 1 of the First Schedule to the Public
Offering Regulations, 2017.

Scope of Certificate
The engagement scope is to provide auditors’ certificate on the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the

Company. We have been informed that this certificate is required under clause 14(i) of section 1 of the First schedule
to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

& ponsibility

It is the management’s responsibility to ensure compliance with clause 14(i) of section 1 of the First Schedule o
the Public Offering Regulation, 2017, Reviewing compliance to the legal requirement is beyond the scope of this
engagement.

The management’s responsibilities include causing the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
controls, the selection and application of accounting policies, safeguarding of the assets of the company and
prevent and detection of frauds and irregularity. This certificate does not relieve the management from its
responsibilities.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to certify the issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as at June 30, 2024 in
accordance with the ‘Guidelines for Issue of Certificotes for Special Purposes by Practicing Chartered Accountant

Firms’' Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP),

Our verification was limited to tracing the amount of issued, subscribed and paid-up capital from the audited
\[qancial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024.
7

Other 2.8, ATS Contre, 30 Waet Black *A” Fazal-ul-Haq Road, Bluc arva, Islamabad, Pakistan. Ph; +82-51-2878530-32,2822705, Fax. +92-51-22002083, E-mait: Is\gynza).com.pk
Offices | 20V-Regency Plaza, MM. Alam Rood, Guiberg-11, Lahors, Pakistan. Ph: +0242-35876591-04, Fax: 492-42-05764959, E-ma’ ihe@nraj com pk
, Fax001 , E-mall: com.pk

1M Floor. Lamaay Arcadn, Opp. Green's Hail, Ph: +92-01-6276102,
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Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.
Chartered Accountants g" PrimeGlobal

An Association of
Independent Accounting Firms

Certificate

Based on the procedures mentioned above, we certify that the break-up of issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Company as at June 30, 2024 is as follows:

As at June 30, 2024

(Number of (Rupees)
shares)
Ordinary shares of Rs. 100 each fully
paid in cash 900,000 90,000,000
900,000 90,000,000

The shareholders of the company as at June 30, 2024 inc'ude the following:

(Number of (Rupees)
shares)

Name of shareholders
Muhammad Adil Ali 36,000 3,600,000
Wagqas Gulzar 90,000 $,000,000
Muhammad Ali Ansari 39,010 3,901,000
Naheed Ali Ansari 15,000 1,500,000
B & Z Enterprises (Private) Limited 269,990 26,999,000
Frisian Egg International B. V. 449,998 44,999,800
Johan Stuiver 1 100
Paul Ettema 1 100
900,000 90,000,000

Subsequent to June 30, 2024, the Company undertook a share split, reducing the par value of its ordinary shares
from PKR 100 per share to PKR 1 per share, increasing the number of shares proportionally.

Following the share split, the Company issued right shares amounting to 152,255,384 shares, bringing the total
issued, subscribed, and paid-up capital to 242,255,384 shares. The details of the share capital structure as at
December 27, 2024, are as follows:

As at December 27, 2024

(Number of (Rupees)
shares) !
Ordinary shares of Rs. 1 each fully
\q’d in cash 242,255,384 242,255,384
242,255,384 242,255,384
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The shareholders of the company as at December 27, 2024 include the following:

(Number of (Rupees)
shares)
Name of shareholders
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,212 9,690,212
Waqas Gulzar 24,225,538 24,225,538
Muhammad Ali Ansari 3,901,000 3,901,000
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 3,369,354
B & Z Enterprises (Private) Limited 79,941,585 79,941,585
Frisian Egg International B.V. 121,127,492 121,127,492
Johan Stuiver 100 100
Paul Ettema 100 100
Nadia Ishtiag 1 1
Mehmood Arshad 1 1
Anwar Al 1 1
242,255,384 242,255,384

Restriction on use and distribution
This certificate is being issued on the specific request of Company’s management for the purpese of inclusion in

prospectus to be issued for Initial Public Offer and for onward submission to PSX. Accordingly, this certificate cannot
be used or distributed to any other third party without our prior consent. This certificate is restricted to the facts

stated herein.

Yours faithfully

Mo d 20 Do G5 o)
Chartered Accountants D ¢ %
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6.2. AUDITOR CERTIFICATE ON BREAKUP VALUE PER SHARE

1st Floor, Modern Motors House,
Naveed Zafar AShfaq Jaffery & Co. Beaumont Road, Karachi-Pakistan.
Chartered Accountants Ph: +92-21-35671909, 35673754
Fax: +92-21-35210626
A Member firm of E-mail: khi@nzaj.com.pk

. Web: www.nzaj.com.pk
Fé’ PrimeGlobal

An Association of
Independent Accounting Firms

December 27, 2024
NZAJ/AC/04/24

The Board of Directors

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

Office No: 601, 6th Floor,

Balad Trade Center-IIl (BTC-3),

Plot No. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7,

Khayaban- e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Dear Members of the Board,

Auditor’s certificate on the break-up value per share as required under clause 14[ii) of section 1 of the First
Schedule to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017

We have been requested to provide you with a certificate verifying on break-up value of ordinary shares of Barkat
Frisian Agro Limited (formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited) (“the Company”) as at June
30, 2024 based on audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, for onward
submission to Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) as required under Clause 14(ii) of section 1 of the First Schedule
to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

Scope of Certificate

The engagement scope is to provide auditors’ certificate on the calculation of break-up value per ordinary share of
the Company as of June 30, 2024, We have been informed that this certificate is required under clause 14(ii) of
section 1 of the First schedule to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017.

Breakup value per share is computed by dividing Shareholders' equity with number of shares issued based on audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024, in accordance with the directives of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan contained in Technical Release 22.

Management Responsibility

It is the management's responsibility to ensure compliance with the legal requirements for which purposes the
calculation of the break-up value per share is being certified and that all requirements in this respect are fulfilied.
Reviewing compliance to the legal requirement is beyond the scope of this engagement.

The management’s responsibilities include causing the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal
controls, the selection and application of accounting policies, safeguarding of the assets of the company and
prevent and detection of frauds and irregularity. This certificate does not relieve the management from its
responsibilities.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to certify the break-up value in accordance with the requirements of TR 22. The certificate shall

be issued as per the 'Guideli for the 1 e of Certificates for Special Purposes by Practicing Chartered
Accountant Firms' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Our verification was limited to agreeing the amount of total equity and number of shares issued to the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 and checking the mathematical accuracy of

\%f calculation.
A}
‘

2-8, ATS Centre, 30 Wast Biock “A’ Fazat-ul-Haq Road, Blue area, Islamabad, Pakistan. Ph: +92-51-2878530-32,2822785, Fax: +92:51-2206263, E-mail: isi@nzaj com pk
201-Regency Plaza, M M. Alam Road, Guiberg-11, Lahore, Pakistan.. Ph. +92-42 1-84, Fax: +92-42 E-mad; Ihe@ com pk
18t Floor, Lamsay Arcade, Opp. Graen's Banquet Hall, Peshawar, Pakistan. Ph: +92-91-5276102, 5274995, Fax 0915274968, E-mall. pesh@nzaj com pk

Other
Offices
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Certificate

Based on the procedures mentioned above, we certify that the break-up value per share of the Company as at June
30, 2024, is as follows:

As at June 30, 2024
(Rupees)
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital A 90,000,000
Unappropriated profit B 696,541,225
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and Equipment C 320,711,356
Total equity D=A+B+C 1,107,252,581
Number of ordinary shares of Rs 100 each E 800,000
Break-up value per share F=D/E 1230.28

Subsequent to June 30, 2024, the Company undertook a share split, reducing the par value of its ordinary shares
from PKR 100 to PKR 1 each. Following the split, the Company issued an additional 152,255,384 shares through a
rights issue, bringing the total number of ordinary shares to 242,255,384. Based on the book value as of June 30,
2024, the updated break-up value per share is as follows:

As at June 30, 2024
(Rupees)
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital A 90,000,000
Unappropriated profit B 696,541,225
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and Equipment C 320,711,356
Total equity as on June 30, 2024 D=A+8+C 1,107,252,581
Number of ordinary shares of Rs 1 each E 242,255,384
Break-up value per share (Adjusted) F=D/E 4.57

The revised break-up value per share reflects the impact of the share split and the additional shares issued. This
calculation is based on the book value as at June 30, 2024, adjusted for the updated share capital structure.

Restriction on use and distribution
This certificate is being issued on the specific request of the Company’s management for the purpose of inclusion in

prospectus to be issued for Initial Public Offer and for onward submission to PSX. Accordingly, this certificate cannot
be used or distributed to any other third party without our prior consent. This certificate is restricted to the facts

ted herein.
%
ours faithfully,
R En Sk

Chartered Accountants

Page 92 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

6.3. AUDITOR REPORT UNDER CLAUSE | OF SECTION Il OF FIRST SCHEDULE TO THE PUBLIC
OFFERING REGULATIONS, 2017

1st Floor, Modern Motors House,
Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaﬁery & Co. Beaumont Road, Karachi-Pakistan.
Chartered Accountants Ph. +92-21-35671909, 35673754
Fax: +92-21-35210626
A Member firm of E-mail: khi@nzaj.com.pk

An Association of Web: www.nzaj.com.pk

% Pfi me G I Obal | Independent Accounting Firms

December 27, 2024
NZAJ/AC/05/24

The Board of Directors

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

Office No: 601, 6th Floor,

Balad Trade Center-lIl (BTC-3),

Plot No. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7,
Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Dear Members of the Board,

Auditor’s report under clause 1 of section 2 of the First Schedule to the Public Offering Regulations,
2017

We have been requested to provide you a report on certain information of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited
(formerly Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private) Limited) (the “Company”) for onward
submission to Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) as required under Clause 1 of Section 2 of the First
Schedule to the Public Offering Regulation, 2017.

Scope of Report

The engagement scope is to certify the information of the company (Annexures A, B and C) to be
submitted to PSX and included in prospectus to be issued for initial public offer as required under Clause
1 of Section 2 of the First Schedule to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017:

Management Responsibility

It is the management's responsibility to ensure compliance with the legal requirements for which
purposes the report is being requested and that all requirements in this respect are fulfilled. Reviewing
compliance to the legal requirement is beyond the scope of this engagement. The management's
responsibilities include causing the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls,
the selection and application of accounting policies, safeguarding of the assets of the company and
prevent and detection of frauds and irregularity. This report does not relieve the management from its
responsibilities.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to report the information as required under Clause 1 of section 2 of the First
Schedule to the Public Offering Regulations, 2017. Our report is being issued in accordance with the
‘Guidelines for Issue of Certificates for Special Purposes by Practicing Chartered Accountant Firms’
Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.

Our verification was limited to tracing the financial information included in the annexed Statement with
the audited financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30 June 2024, 30 June 2023 and 30

\bfre 2022.

Other 2.8, ATS Contre, 30 West Black "A” Fazal-ul-Haq Road, Blue area, lslamabad, Pakistan. Ph 492-51-2678530-32,2822785, Fax: +92-51-2206283, E-mal. isk@nzaj com pk
Offices 201-Regency Plaza, MM Alam Road, Gulberg-11, Lahore, Pakistan . Ph: +92-42 04, Fax: +92-42. , E-mait ihe@nzaj com pk
15t Floor, Lamsay Arcade, Opp. Green's Banquet Hall, Pashawar, Pakistan. Ph: 492-91-5276102, 5274995, Fax 091-5274968. E-mail pesh@nzaj.com pk

Page 93 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co.
Chartered Accountants Z PrimeGlobal | P

Certificate

Based on the procedures mentioned above, we certify that the information contained in the annexed
Statement of Financial Information is correct. The annexures have been initialed for identification
purposes only.

Restriction on use and distribution

This report is being issued on the specific request of the Company’s management for the purpose of
inclusion in prospectus to be issued for Initial Public Offer and for onward submission to PSX.

Accordingly, this should not be used distributed to any other third party without our prior consent. This
“fport is restricted to the facts stated herein.

Yours faithfully,

m:red Accoﬁtantsi\%cv%‘() 2\‘ C
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Annexure 'A’ to the letter refrence no NZAJ/AC/06/24 dated December 27, 2024
Summary of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

JUNE 30,2024 JUNE 30,2023 JUNE 30,2022

pees

Equity and Liabilities
Authorized capital
1,000,000 (2023: 1,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 100/- 100,000,000 100,000,000 100.000.000
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 90,000,000 50,000,000 90,000,000
Capital reserve

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 320,711,356 s
Revenue reserve

Unappropriated profit 696,541,225 308.055,072 159,888,930

1,107,252,581 398,055,072 249,888,930

Non Current Liabilities

Long term loans 1,875,000 12,259,394 43,618,395
Long term loan from related party 138,981,808 71,431,513 110,310,778
140,856,808 83,690,506 153,929,173
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long term loan 10,384,394 31,359,001 33,066,625
Current portion of long term loan from related party 15,790,009 157,744,732 91,626,243
Current portion of deferred government grant - - 64,342
Short term borrowings 433,956,414 402,331,445 191,858,597
Loan from related party 57,987,364 57,987,364 57,987,364
Trade and other payables 243,201,472 199,205,252 111,597,660
Accrued markup 27,803,048 27,079,477 11,501,602
789,122,702 875,707,271 497,702,433
Total equity and liabilities 2 0375232!091 1‘3575453,250 9OI|520!536

Contingencies and commitments =

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 693,777,870 323,011,99% 319,270,770
Long term deposits 5.633,330 3,023,400 3,021,000
699,411,200 326,035,396 322,291,770
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock in trade 311,028,794 263,698,771 191,575,834
Trade debts 891,085,143 595,157,519 288,138,827
Advances, deposits and prepayments 47,065,292 30,999,252 44,597,691
Taxation - net of provision 46,018,985 13,136,079 14,128,050
Short term investment 106,075 6,075 -
Cash and bank balances 42,516,602 128,420,157 40,788.363
1,337,820,891 1,031,417,854 579,228,766
‘Ig al assets 2503752325091 15357!453,250 901!520!536
!
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Annexure 'B' to the letter refrence no NZAJ/AC/07/24 dated December 27, 2024
Summary of Statement of Profit or Loss

FROM JULY FROM JULY FROM JULY
01,2023 TOJUNE 01,2022 TO JUNE 01,2021 TO JUNE
30,2024 30,2023 30,2022
Sales - net 6,068,439,033 4,325,439,454 2,469,504,923
Cost of sales (5,368,762,965) (3,877,415,542) (2,190,599,491)
Gross profit 699,676,069 448,023,912 278,905,432
Selling and distribution expenses (102,329,584) (67,573,949) (42,385,035)
Administrative expenses {47,856,333) (31,943,956) (24,986,407)
Operating profit 549,490,153 348,506,008 211,533,989
Other expenses (43,635,752) (20,168,829) (11,362,083)
Un-realized foreign exchange gain 7,585,593 (72,613,584) (25,077,098)
Other income 29,323,667 9,766,300 2,679,860
Finance costs (122,608,997) (83,613,242) (39,152,090)
(128,935,489) (166,629,355) (72,911,410)
profit before income tax and levy (minimum tax) 420,554,664 181,876,652 138,622,578
Minimum tax (40,778,019) (30,568,210)
Profit before income tax 379,776,645 151,308,442 138,622,578
Income tax (14,058) (3,142,300) (720,050)
Profit for the year 379,762,587 148,166,142 137,902,529
"Basic and diluted earnings per share 421,96 164.63 153.23

A
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Annexure 'C' to the letter refrence no NZAJ/AC/08/24 dated December 27, 2024
Summary of Statement of Comprehensive Income

Y
ouosTonne  FROMAYOLAZ g ui e
30,2024 L 30,2022

Profit for the year 379,762,587 148,166,142 137,902,529
Other comprehensive income
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 329,434,921
Deferred tax impact
Total comprehensive income 709,197,509 148,166,142 137,902,529

\

o
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6.4. SHARIAH COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Al-Hilal

—Shariah Advisors—

g spnand dmog AT ey cirdanyally el daw o pWllg B3Lally snaliali oy all doad)

SHARIAH COMPLIANCE OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

We, Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors {Pvt.) Limited, have conducted Shariah Compliance Screening of Barkat
Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL) based on the financial statements of June 30, 2024 {Annual) as issued by
the company.

We have thoroughly analyzed the financial statements on the basis of various Shariah screening
criteria issued by Shariah Supervisory Council of Al Hilal Shariah Advisors and the screening guidelines
by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). In light of the financial information and
our evaluation, we hereby certify that the Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL) meets the Sharizh
screening criteria of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors and SECP, and there is ho evidence contrary to it,

Hence itis resalved that it is permissible to invest in shares of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited.

ey g dmmog A Aoy daea Ui (o bl Loy (lgaally plel ally

For and on behalf of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors [Pvt.) Limited,

y .v W ¢ ." ‘(’
{ J:'.' .
( (§ KARACH] =
M Trshad ahmed Aijaz N ‘\’3’ J Faraz Younu™dndukda, CFA
Chairman = Chief Executive
Shariah Supervisory Council

Al-Hllal Sharlah Advisors (Pvt) Limited
Saite 307, &7 Floor, Horizon Towers, Com 276, Knnyabor ¢ Soxdi
Rleck 02 Cifton, Karazhi
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6.5.

LATEST AUDITED ACCOUNTS AS AT 30" JUNE 2024

BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

Equity and Liabilities
Authorized capital

1,000,000 {2023: 1,000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 100/-

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
Capital reserve
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profit

Non Current Liabilities
Long term loans
Long term loan from related party

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long term loan

Current portion of long term loan from related party
Short term borrowings

Loan from related party

Trade and other payables

Accrued markup

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Long term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock in trade

Trade dabts

Advances, deposits and prepayments
Taxation - net of provision

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

Total assets

\Y‘x annexed notes form an integral part of these financial Statement

S\

Note

~

10
11

12

13
14

15
16
17
18

19

2024 2023
Rupees-———
—300,000,000 _100,000,000
—_——

90,000,000 90,000,000

320,711,356 =
€96,541,225 308,055,072
1,107,252,581 398,055,072
1,875,000 12,259,394
138,981,808 71,431,513
140,856,808 83,690,906
10,384,394 31,359,001
15,790,009 157,744,732
433,956,414 402,331,445
57,987,364 57,987,364
243,201,472 199,205,252
27,803,048 27,079,477
789,122,702 875,707,271
2,037,232,001 1,357,453,250

—_—— T

693,777,870 323,011,996
5,633,330 3,023,400
699,411,200 326,035,396
311,028,793 263,698,771
891,085,143 595,157,518
47,065,282 30,999,252
46,018,985 13,136,079
106,075 6,075
42,516,602 128,420,157
1,337,820,891 1,031,417,853
2?37:232:091 1,357‘453 250

4
DIRECTOR
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BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note ————Rupees-—-———e-

Sales - net 20 6,068,439,033 4,325,439,454
Cost of sales 21 (5,368,762,965) (3,877,415,542)
Gross profit 699,676,069 448,023,912
Selling and distribution expenses 22 (102,329,584) (67,573,949)
Administrative expenses 23 (47,856,333) (31,943,956)
Operating profit 549,490,153 348,506,008
Other expenses 24 (43,635,752) (20,168,829)
Un-realized foreign exchange gain 7,985,593 (72,613,584)
Other income 25 29,323,667 9,766,300
Finance costs 26 (122,608,997) (83,613,242)

(128,935,489) (166,629,355)
Profit before income tax and levy (minimum tax) 420,554,664 181,876,652
Minimum tax 274 (40,778,019) (30,568,210)
Profit before income tax 375,776,645 151,308,342
Income tax 27 (14,058) (3,142,300)
Profit for the year 379,762,587 148,166,142
Basic and diluted earnings per share 28 421.96 164.63

ﬁme annexed notes form an integral part of these financial Statement

CHIEF EXI E DIRECTOR
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| BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
; Note Rupees Rupees

Profit for the year 379,762,587 148,166,142

Other comprehensive (loss) / income: - -
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 6 329,434,921 -

equipment

Deferred tax impact = =
Total comprehensive income for the year 709,197,509 148,166,142

kl;he annexed notes form an integral part of these financial Statement
11
\ — )
VE DIRECTOR
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SARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) UMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024

Reveaue Reserve Lapical Reserve
Stace Revalustion surpius

' oroht ol property, plaat = h
ond equipmant
Rupees
Balance 35 at July 01, 2022 0,000,000 159,388,930 249882230

o e

Totai comprehensve income for the year ended Juse 30, 2022

148,168,142 . 146,166,142
Balance 33 3t Jane 30, 2023 90,000,000 398,055,072
Profit forthe year * 379762587
Othar comprehensive lncome - = -
surph iy, plent and - 29AR921 32943491
Revahation suplis on propeny, plant and equipment realiz=d on < (872,565
sceaunt of incremental deprecation ) g
Total comprehensive income for the vesr ended June 30, 2024 . 320,711,356 708,197.509
— ——
a5 38 JUNE 30, 2023 — 000000, ___SIS1L2S 3071356 _iawrasasei
va \ 7

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note R U DL LS~ eeeee

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax and levy {minimum tax) 420,554,664 181,876,552
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation 34,633,931 22,987,004
Finance cost 26 122,608,997 83,613,242
Gain on disposal of vehicle (117,860) -
Unrelaized exchange (gain)/loss (7,985,593) 72,613,584
Allowance for expected credit loss 16.1 6,039,339 6,402,229
Amortization of deferred government grant - (64,342)
Operating profit before working capital changes 575,733,478 367,425,369
Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stock in trade {47,330,023) (72,122,937)
Trade debts-considerd good (301,966,962)  (313,420,921)
Advances, depesits and prepayments (16,068,040} 13,598,440
Increase in current liabilities:
Trade znd other payables 43,986,221 87,607,591
Cash flows from operating activitias 254,366,673 83,090,542
Minimurm tax,incomt taxes paid (73,674,983) (32,718,539)
Finance costs paid 121 5 26 68,035,367

100 753,906
Net cash generated /{used in) operating activities 58306.254 117 663,364)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Capital expenditure incurred 13.1 (77,882,023) (26,728,231)
Proceed from disposal 2,035,000 -
Short term investment (100,000) (6,075)
Long term deposits paid {2,609,930) (2,400)
Net cash (used in) investing activities (78,556,953) (26,736,7056)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long term loans (31,359,001) (33,066,625)
Receipt from SBP Salary Finance 4 =
Repayment to related party (66,418,835) |45,374,360)
Short term borrowings - net 31,624,970 210,472,848
Net cash generated from financing activities (66,152,866) 132,031,863
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (85,903,555) 87,631,793
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 128,420,157 40,788,363
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 9 __42516602 128,420,157

annexed notes form an mtegral part of these financial Statement
W G
EXECUTI ~ DIRECTOR y.
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BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Private} limited ("the Company") was incorporated on 05 January 2017 as
Private Uimited Company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The principle
activity of tha company is poultry egg processing,
The registered office of the Company is situated at H#M 74/1, Khayaban-e-ittehad, Phase VI, DHA, Karachi, Pakistan.
The factory is situated at Plot # WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel Mills, Karachi.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

These firancial statements have been prepared in sceordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicabie
in Pakistan. These accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Soards (1ASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP); 'as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of

Where the provisions of and the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IFRS,
the provisions of and the directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost convention except for certain items as
disclosed in the relevantaccounting policies below.

23  Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements have been presentad in Pakistan Rupess, which [s the functiona! currency of the Company and
rounded off to the nearest rupee.

24 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of these annual audited financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the agplication
of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 2nd expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are bzsed on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assats
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

The estimates uncerlying the assumptions are reviewad on an ongong dzsis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision sffects bath current and future periods. Information about the judgments made
by the management in the application of the accounting policies, that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in these annual audited financial statements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties with significant risk of
material adjustment to the carrying emount of asset and liabilities in the next year are described in the following notes:

Property, plantand equipment and depreciation (refer note 4.1)
Stock-in-trade (refer note 4.2)

Government grant (refer note 4.11)

Provisions (refer note 4.¢)

‘@%ﬁon (refer note 4.10)
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3 New Standards, Interpretations And Amendments To Published Approved Accounting Standards
3.1 standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective

Following Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Company:

Effective date
(annual reporting
periods beginning on
or after)

Description effective for the periods

1As 21 Amendments to IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'- Lack of January 1, 2025

1AS7 Amendments to IAS 7 'Financial Instruments:'- Supplier finance arrangements January 1, 2024

1A57 Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash owes'- Supplier finance arrangements lanuary 1, 2024
IASL Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
i January 1, 2024
liabilities as current or non-current
1ASL Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements - Non-current liabilities
X January 1, 2024
with covenants
IFRS16  Amendments 1o IFRS 16 'Leases’ - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee
IFRS07  arrangements arrangements subsequently measures sale and leaseback
IFRS 9 Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ - Amendments regarding the
classification and measurement of financial instruments
IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures -Amendments regarding January 1, 2026

January 1, 2024

January 1, 2026

3.2 The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standarcs and interpretations are not likely to have any
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, IASS has also issued the following standards and
interpretation, which have not been notified locally or declared exempt by the SECP as at JUNE 30, 2024:

IFRS 1 First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS17  Insurance Contracts

4 MATRIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The summary of significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of finandial statements are set out below.
These policies have consistently applied to all years presented unless otherwise stated.

4.1  Property, plant and equipment

4.1.1 Propeity, plant and equioment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation except certain fixed assets (Land, building
and Plant & machinary) are carried at revaluad zmounts. Company hes a policy of revaluing land, building and Plant &
machinary after every five years.

Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method at the rates specified in fixed assets note 13.
Depreciation is charged from the month the asset is zvailable for the use up to the month prior to dispasal. Gains or
losses on disposal of assets, if any, are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

The carrying value of fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when svents or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverzble amount, the assets are written down to the recoverabls amount,

All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under
\Earital work-in-progress: These are transferred to specific assets as and when these assets are availabie for use.
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4.1.2 Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initiz! measurement of lease liability, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost modal, The right of usa asset is depreciated on 2 straight line
method over the lease term as this mesthod most dosely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits. The right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
short term lazses that nave a lease term of 12 manths or less and leases of low-valuz assets. The lease payments
assoclated with these leases are recognised as an expense on 2 straight line basis over the lzase term.

42 Stock-in-trade

Steck in trade except for stock in transit are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw material
Is cetermined by using first in first out method except for stock in transit.

Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges Incurred therecn. Work in process and
finished goods ¢consists of direct matarial costs, labour cost and appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

4.3 Stores and Spares
These are valued at lowsr of moving average cost and net realizable value, except items in transit, which are stated at

cost. Obsolete and used items are recorded at nil value. Value of itams is reviewed at each balance sheet date to record
provision for-any slow moving items.

Net realizable value signifies the selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in
order to make the sale.

4.4 Trade debts and Other receivable

Trade dedts and other receivables are recognisec and carried at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration to be
received less allowance for expected credit losses (ECL). Expected credit loss is based on the management’s assessment
of customers’ outstanding balances and credit worthiness. Bad debts are written-off when identified.

4.5 Cashand cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost for the purpose of cash flow statements. Cash and cash

equivalents comprises of cash in hand with banks on current and deposit actounts and other readily assets that can be
realized in cash.

4.6 Share Cpital

‘Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in ecuity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

4.7 Longterm and short term borrowings

These are recorded at the proceeds received. Financial charges are accounted for on accrual basis and are disclosed as
accrued interest/mark-up to the extent of the amount remaining unpaid.

4.8 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable costs, if any, and subsequently
measured at amortized costs.

4.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognisec in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a resu't of past
event and it is probable that the outflow of resources / economic berefit will be required to settie the obligation and
reliable estimate can be made to the amount of obligation. However provisions are reviewad at each balance sheet date
\QDC adjusted to refiect current best estimate.
v
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4.10 Taxation
Final and minimum tax

Computation of minimum tex chargeable under various sections of ITO 2001, previsions of such sections require its
comparison with amount of tax attributable to income streams taxable at general rate of taxation, such minimum taxes
are not fully outside the scope of 1AS-12 and a certain portion of them falls in scope of IAS - 12, Based on this, the

minimum taxes under ITO 2001 are hybrid taxes which comprise of a component within the scope of 1AS - 12 and a
component within the scope of IFRIC - 21//AS-37.

As regards final taxes, its computation is based on revenue or other bases other than taxable income, therefore, final
taxes fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC-21/1AS-37, hence trested and classified accordingly, as per the
requiremensts of / and guidelines issued by ICAP.

In identifying and classifying each component of minimum tax being hybrid in nature, company designate the amount
calculated on taxable income using the notified tax rate as an income tax within the scope of 1AS - 1Z "Income taxes"
and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any excess over the amount designed as income tax, is recognized as a
levy falling under the scope of IFRIC-21/IAS-37.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax experise is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to item recognized directly in other comprahensive income in which case it is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation after
taking into account available tax credits and rebates, if any.

Prior tax

The charge for prior tax includes adjustments to charge for prior years which arises from assessments / developments
made during the year, if any.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using statement of financial position method, in respect of temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based con the expected manner of realisation or settlement or the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates or taxation.

The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable
future will be availzble against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Provision for taxation is based on the taxable inceme for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rate. The charge for the figure of provision
for tax made in previous years is effected arising from assessment framed during the year for such years.

4.11 Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to income, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed out.

4.12 Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods to the customers.

Return on Bank deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the rate

2pr icable.
7
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4.13 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into functional currency "Rupees” at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of transactions, Monetary assets and liabilitias in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of the statement of financial position. Exchange gains and losses are charged
in the statement of profit or loss.

4.14 Financial Instruments
(a) Classification and initial measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets in to following three categories;
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- Measured at amortized cost.

The follewing assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application:

= The determination of business model within which a financial asset is held; and
- The designaticn and revocation of previous designation of certain financial assets as measured at FVTPL,
Financial assets at FVOC!
A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principel and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FYOC! s described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevacably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition.

Financial assets measurad at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it maets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss:

- itis held within business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
Its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
principal amount outstanding.

For assets measured at fair value, gain or loss will either be recorded in the unconsolidated statarent of profit or loss or
other comprehensive income. For investments in squity instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Company has made an irrevocable slection at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVCCL.

(b) Subseguent measurement
Financial assets at FVOCI

These assets are measured at fair value, with gain or loss arising from changes in fair value recognized in the Financial
statement of cther comprehensive income.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gain or loss, including any interest/ mark-up or dividend
income, are recognized in the Financiaf statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measurad at amortized cost using the effactive interest method. The amortized cost is

reduced by impairment losses. Interest/ mark-up income, foreign exchange gain or loss and impairment are recognized in
t\hs/_{inanciat statement of profit or loss.
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(c) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as "measured at amortized cost™ or "measured at fair value through profit or loss". A
financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on
initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVT?L are measured at fair value and net gain or loss, including any interest
expense, are recognized in the Financial statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or have expired or
when the financial liability's cash flows have been subsequently modified.

4.15 Impairment
(a) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit loss (ECL) In respect of financial assets measurec at
amortized cost.

The Company applies the simplified 2pproach to recognize lifetime expected credit loss for trade debts. The Company
assesses on a forward looking basis the expectad cradit loss associated with its financia! assets.

The Company assesses whether the cradit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default oceurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit loss. To make the
assessment, the Company compares the risk of 2 default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and consider
rezsonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition

Allowances for ECL financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

An entity shall directly reduce the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the entity has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thersof. A write-off constitutes 2 cerecognition
event of the Company.

(b)  Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impzairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use,
the astimated future cash flows are discounted to their present vaiue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An
impairment loss Is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
loss are charged in the Financial statement of profit or loss.

4.16 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported In the statement of financial pesition if, and only if,

there is 2 currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net

basis or to realize the assets and settle liabiiities simultaneously. Incomes and expenses arising from such assets and
‘ ‘l:ifbilities are also offset accordingly.
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BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PRIVATE) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note 2024 2023
5 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
500,000 ( 2023 : 900,000 ) Ordinary shares of
Rupees 100 each fully paid in cash 90,000,000 90,000,000
90,000,000 90,000,000
Pattern of shareholding 2024 2023
Number of Percentage of Number of | Percentage
shares Holding shares of Holding
Frisian Egg International B.V. 4490 998 $0.00% 449,998 50.00%
Muhammad Adil Ali 36.000 4.00% 36,000 4.00%
Wagas Gulzar $0.000 10.00% 90.000 10.00%
Johan Stiver ] 0.00% 1 0.00%
Paul Etterna ] 0.00% 1 0.00%
Muhammad Al} Ansari 39,010 4.33% 39.010 4.33%
Naheed Ali Ansari 15.000 1.67% 15.000 1.67%
B&Z Enterprises (Pvt.) Lid. 269,990 30.00% 269.990  30.00%
900,000 100% 900,000 100%
5.1

The shareholders are entitled te receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form of
cash, bonus and right shares, as the case may be, as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote

per share without restriction.The Board of Directors of the Company are elected by majority vote.

6  Revaluation Surplus On Property, Plant And Equipment

Balance at the beginning of the year

Revaluation increase during the year 328,434,921 =

incremental depreciation charged during the year (8,723,565) -
320,711,356
61 The revaluation of leasehold land, building and plant and machinery were revalued on November 22, 2023,
resulting in the net surplus of Rs. 329.434 million. The revaluation was incorporated in books on June 30, 2024. The
valuation was conducted by an independent valuer, Land, Building 2nd Plant and Machinery were valued on the
basis of fair market value. The company has a policy of revaluing land, building and plant and machinery after every
five years.
7 Longterm Loans
Diminishing Musharka - Meezan Bank 7.1 5,134,394 39,243,395
Less: Current portion (5,134,394) (30,109,001)
- 9,134,394
Diminishing Musharikah - MBL Generator 7.2 3,125,000 4,375,000
Less: Current portion (1,250,000) {1,250,000)
1,875,000 3,125,000
To}\al 1,875,000 12,259,384
A
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Note 2024 2023

7.1 The Company has entered into a diminishing musharikah of Rs. 105.38 million for plant and machinery with the
Meezan Bank Limited- Islamic Banking. The arrangement carry profit at the rate of three month KIBOR + 3% with
quarterly rental repayments. The arrangement is for a tenure of six years from the date of disbursement and are
structured in such a way first principal repayment installment after grace period of one year. Arrangement is
secured against exclusive equitable mortgage over properties of directors and personal guarantee of all SPONSOfFs.

7.2 The Company has entered into a diminishing musharka of Rs, 5 million for Generator with the Meezan Bank Limited-
Islamic Banking. The arrangement carry profit at the rate of three month KIBOR + 3% with quarterly rental
repayments. The arrangement is for a tenure of six years from the date of disbursement and are structured in such a
way first principal repayment installment will commence after grace peried of one vear. Arrangement is secured
against specific charge over plant & machinery.

8  Long term loan from related party

From related party - Frisian Egg International BY 7.1 229,176,245 201,937,021
Repayment during the year (66,418,835) (45,374,360)
Closing balance as on June 30, 162,757,410 156,562,661
Un-realized foreign exchange loss (7,985,593) 72,613,584
154,771,817 229,176,245
Less: Current maturity (15,790,009) (157,744,732}

138,981,808 71,431,513

8.1 This long term loan has been obtained for plant and machinery, from associated company namely Frisian Egg
International BV, amounting EURO 275,000, 56,000 and 188,500 (2023: EURO 375,000, 168,000 and 188,500). The
company has obtained this loan at different date and carry at different markup rate. Subsequent to the year ended
Frisian Egg International BV has decided to convert their outstanding loan amounting Euro 466,500 into equity,

9  Short term borrowings

Tijarah Financing - Meezan Bank Ltd. 9.1 204,393,847 214,660,299
Musawammah Financing - Bank Al Hahib Ltd. 9.2 149,949,174 146,048,066
Tijarah Financing - Habib Bank Ltd. 9.3 44,803,394 41,623,080
Musawammah Financing - Meezan Bank Ltd. 9.1 34,810,000 -

433,956,414 402,331,445

9.1 The Company has entered into a tijarah / Musawammah financing facility with Meezan Bank Limited of Rs. 315
million (2023: 215 million) for meeting day to day operational needs. The arrangement carry profit at the rate of 3m
KIBOR + 1.5%. Repayment of loan is subject to the sale of stock against which the financing has been disbursed
maximum upto 90 days from the date of disbursement of loan. Arrangement is secured against pari passu equitable
mortage on land & building of company's factory at WL 36 & 37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Karachi, pari passu
hypothecation charge over plant & machinery and specific receivables.

9.2 The Company has entered into a Musawama financing facility with Bank Al-Habib Limited. of Rs. 150 million (2023:
150 million) for meeting day to day operational needs. The arrangement carry profit at the rate of KIBOR + 1.00%.
Repayment of loan is subject to the sale of stock against which the financing has been disbursed maximum upto 90
days from the date of disbursement of loan. Arrangement is secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over
plant & manchinery, specific receivables and Personal guarantee of all local directors.

9.3 The Company has entered into a Tijarah financing facility with Habib Bank Limited. of Rs. 45 million (2023: 45
million) for meeting day to day operational needs. The arrangement carry profit at the rate of KIBOR + 1.25%.
Repayment of loan is subject to the sale of stock against which the financing has been disbursed maximum upto 90

days from the date of disbursement of loan. Arrangement is secured against pari passu hypothecation charge over |

> flant & manchinery, specific receivables and Personal guarantee of all local directors. '
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Note 2024 2023
--------- ~RUPEES-tammnmnnann
10 Loan from related party
Opening balance 57,987,364 57,987,364
Receipts during the year - 500,000
Repayments during the year - (500,000)
Closing Balance 101 57,987,364 57,987,364
10.1 Loan from associated Company (Unsecured) 38,005,564 38,005,564
Loan from director (Unsecured) 14,481,800 14,481,800
Loan from close family member/sponser 5,500,000 5,500,000
57,987,364 57,987,364

This represents interest free loan taken from local directors; shareholders and associated company for working
cepital requirement and it was payable on cemand. Subsequent to the vear ended loca! directors, shareholders and
associated company have decided to convert their outstanding loan amounting PKR 57,987,364 into equity.

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 111 158,937,546 114,724,836
Withholding tax payable 1,534,947 762,982
Other payables 192,640 151,645
Sales tax payable 45,068,391 62,442,951
Accrued expenses 5,347,635 6,867,251
Waorkers profit particpitant fund 11.2 22,586,180 9,782,163
Workers welfare fund 8,582,748 3,717,222
Sale tax withholding 851,385 756,202
243,201,472 199,205,252

11.1 Thisinclude related party balance of Rs. 14,065,272 (2023: Rs 18,78C,475)
11.2 Opening balances 9,782,163 7,444,822
Interest charged during the year 845,442 845,442
Paid during the year (10,627,605) (8,290,263)
Aliocation for the year 22,586,180 9,782,163
closing 22,586!180 9,782,163

12 Contingencies and commitments
12.1 Contingencies
Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Pvt) Ltd. is established in Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and has started
commercial operations from Financial Year ended June 30, 2019. Hence income of company is exempt from Income
Tax and minimum tax for ten years from the date of commencement of operations. The minimum tax u/s 113,
which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 and onwards, The Company is a SEZ entity and together with
other SEZ entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-6752/2022 hafore the Sindh High Court. The aforesaid matter
is still pending adjudication and company has good arguable case on the merits with chance of favourable outcome.

122 Commitments
The amount of future rentals for ljarah financing and the period in which these payments will become due are as

follows:
Not fater than one year 5,748,480 3,471,742
Later than cne year and not later than five years 18,949,422 7,443,714

1221 24,697,902 10,915,456

12.2.1 The total ijarah rentals due under the ijarah agreements aggregate to0 amounting Rs. 24.948 million (2023 : 10.915
million) and are payable in equal monthly instailments. The fjarah is partially secured by 2 personal guarantee of all
local sponsors and post dated cheques. The company intend to exercise the option of purchasing the assets under

ﬂg{ah atresidual value upon completion of ljarah term.
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Note 2024 2023
Rupees-

13 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 13.1 685,531,846 323,011,996
Capital Work in Progress - Advance against land 8,246,024 -
693,777,870 323,011,996

As at June 30, 2024, First Pari Passu Hypothecation Charge over specific plant & machinery Rs. 274.7 million and
mortgage on land and building Rs. 56 million [2023: P&M Rs.280 million and L&B: Nil) Meezan Bank Limited, Bank Al
Habib Limited and Habib Bank Limited against Tijarah / Musawammah Facilities.

13.1

14 Llongterm advances and deposits
Deposits against ljarah finance 14.1 3,057,572

901,000
Others 142 2,575,758 2,122,400
5,633,330 3,023,400

14.1 Deposits for ljarah finance include a down payment on a vehicle that has been transferred to property, plant, and
equipment during the year upon completion of the ljarah rental,

14.2 This includes deposit given to Pakistan State Oil Company (PSO) amounting to Rs. 1.7 million (June 30, 2023: Rs. 1.7
million) against fuel.

15 Stockintrade

Raw material 177,543,230 109,806,201
Packing material 33,911,269 21,618,930
Finished good 99,574,295 132,273,640

311,028,794 263,698,771

16 Trade debts

Unsecured

Considered good 891,085,143 595,157,519

Considered doubtful 18,185,411 12,146,072
16.2 909,270,554 607,303,591

Allowance for expected credit loss 16.1 (18,185,411) (12,146,072)

891,085,143 595,157,519
- —— _
16.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance as atjuly 1 12,146,072 5,743,843
Change for the year 6,039,339 6,402,229
Balance as at June 30 18,185,411 12,146,072
The zging of trade debtors at the reporting date is:
Past due 1 - 30 days 485,091,487 332,328,306
Past due 31 - 90 days 283,169,004 225,940,698
Past due above 90 days 141,010,063 49,034,588
909,270,554 607,303,591

16.2 As at June 30, 2024, First Pari Passu Hypothecation Charge over specific receivables Rs. 650 million (2023: Rs.536.5
million) with Meezan Bank Limited, Bank Al Habib Limited and Habib Bank Limited against Tijarah / Musawammah Facility.

17  Advance, deposits and prepayments

Advance for services and supplies 4,994,698 25,611,275
ERP License 1,594,586 -
Advance to employzes 1,871,376 1,509,117
Prepayments 906,716 -
Advance sales tax 30,000,000 -
Loan to employees 6,835,168 3,878,860
Short term Lien to Mark 862,748 -
“ 47,065,292 30,999,252
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18

19

19.1
20

21

211

Note 2024 2023
ettt {1 . 11T SER—.
Taxation - Net of provision tax/levy
Tax receivable as at 01 July 13,136,079 14,128,050
Tax payments / adjustments made during the year 73,674,982 32,718,539
86,811,062 46,846,589
Less: Provision fortax - current year (40,792,077) (33,710,510)
Tax receivable as at 30 June 46,018,985 13,136,079
Bank balances
Cash at bank - in current account 7,805,099 128,420,157
Cash at bank - in saving account 34,711,503
42,516,602 128,420,157
During the year range of profit on debt was between 10% to 11% (2023: 6.5% t0 10%).
Sales - net
Local sales 6,399,734,901 4,779,746,219
Export szles 631,369,896 249,678,067
Less: Sales tax (962,665,764) (703,284,831)
6,068,439,033 4,325,439,454
Cost of sales
Raw materials consumed 211 5,132,024,140 3,762,558,353
Salaries wages and other benefits - factory 19,937,878 17,155,408
Direct labour 22,535,008 19,151,579
Canteen - 1,186,444
Certification 448,094 637,855
CIP / Analytical Lab Chemicals 8,950,595 6,307,515
Communication 639,674 718,478
Travelling & Conveyance - 1,176,362
Depreciation - Factory 1311 32,911,318 22,074,328
Utilities 75,916,221 55,013,960
Repair and maintenance 2,215,120 5,300,779
Insurance 4,881,746 5,303,55¢
Lab / factory supplies 2,078,872 1,002,052
Pest control 1,433,509 570,220
Printing and stationary 5,617,652 4,065,238
Rent 24,303,485 21,093,802
Security services 1,126,774 873,500
Testing 1,043,044 800,871
Other factory - 337,220
Waste disposal - 976,074
5,336,063,619 3,926,403,596
Add: opening stock of finished goods 132,273,640 83,285,587
Less: closing stock of finished goods 15 (99,574,295) (132,273,640)
5,368,762,965 3,877,415,542
Raw materials consumed
Add: Opening stock 131,425,131 108,280,248
Add: Purchases 5,212,053,508 3,785,653,236
5,343,478,639 3,893,983,484
vg;ss: Closing stock 15 (211,454,499) (131,425,131)
L 5,132,024,140  3,762,558,353
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22

23

23.2

24

25

Selling and distribuation expense

Freight outward
Marketing and selling

Administrative expenses

Saiaries wages and other benefits
SESSI & EOBI

Auditors' remuneration
Communication

Depreciation

Entertainment

Fee and subscription

Utilities

ljarah rental

Insurance

Miscellaneous

Repair and maintenance

Printing and stationery
Professional charges

Rent, rates and taxes

Software development and maintenance
Travelling and conveyance
Charity and donations

Audit fee
Out of pockat expense

Nota 2024 2023
Spe——— - T
78,052,823 48,077,462
24,276,761 19,496,487
102,329,584 67,573,949
20,427,451 13,837,685
2,153,265 1,551,336
23.1 858,000 360,000
268,702 551,082
1311 1,722,613 912,676
121,023 169,231
480,095 55,000
5,108,896 3,480,662
4,224,080 2,863,393
1,355,156 840,846
893,850 652,506
709,899 1,269,800
193,800 107,095
3,404,161 1,627,795
790,500 603,195
965,000 -
3,679,741 2,521,654
23.2 500,000 40,000
47,856,333 31,943,956
810,000 773,000
48,000 87,000
858,000 260,000

During the year, ro donations were paid to any donee/ party in which any Director of the company is interested

Other expense

Allowance for expectec credit loss
Other expense

Exchange loss

Workers profit particpitant fund
Workers welfare fund

Staff Hajj Sponsorhip Scheme

Other Income

Liability written back

Dividend Income

Profit on debt

Amortization of deferred government grant
Exchange gain realized

Other income

&jr” an disposal of fixed asset

16.1 6,039,339 6,402,229
5,227,485 -
) 267,216
22,586,180 9,782,163
8,582,748 3,717,222
1,200,000 2
43,635,752 20,168,829
21,111,768 -
= 770
6,320,087 4,086,645
- 64,342
1,285,728 ‘
488,224 5,614,543
117,860
29,323,667 9,766,300
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Note 2024 2023
26 Finance cost
Bank charges 3,725,845 2,831,033
Markup on diminishing musharika 7,139,330 12,702,123
Markup on SBP szlary finance - 26,442
Markup on related party loan 3,302,293 9,543,096
Markup on WPPF 1,554,535 845,442
Markup on tijarah financing - Meezan 52,524,722 32,376,683
Markup on muswama - Bank AlHabib 34,156,760 23,875,983
Markup on tijarah financing - Habib Bank 10,381,196 1,412,441
Markup on muswama - Meszan 9,824,316 -
122,608,997 83,613,242
_— s
27 Taxation
Prior year income tax expense 138,406
Income tax expense 27.% 1,832,825 1,185,127
Super tax (1,818,767) 1,818,767
14,058 3,142,300
27.1 Minimum tax 40,778,019 30,568,210

This represents the minimum tax on turnover under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance,
in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/145 37.

This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 and onwards. The Company is a
SEZ entity and together with other SEZ entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-6752/2022 before the Sindh
High Court. The aforesaid matter is still pending adjudication and company has good arguable case on the merits

with chance of favourable outcome. However, company has made provision for this minimum tax in the year ended
June 30, 2024.

This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 is now repeszled through Finance
Act 2024. The aforesaid would be nil in the year ended June 30, 2025.

Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Pvt.) Ltd. Is established in Special Economic Zone and has started
commercial operations from Financial Year ended June 30, 2019. Hence income of company is exempt from Income
Tax and minimum tax for ten years from the date of commencement of operations.

2001, representing levy

Reference: Clause (126E) of Part | of The second schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (valid till TY 2022)

[(126€) Income derived by 2 zone enterprise as defined in the Special Economic Zones Act, 2012 (XX of 2012) for a
period of ten years starting from the date the developer certifies that the zone enterprise has commenced
commercial operation and for a perioc of ten years to a developer of zone starting from the date of signing of the
development agreement in the special economic zone as announced by the Federal Government).

28 EARNINGS PER SHARE
Profit after taxation (Rupees) 379,762,587

148,166,142
—_— e
Weighted average numbers of ordinary shares 900,000 500,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 421.96 164.63
29 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand - -
Qaq and bank balances 42,516,602 128,420,157

42,516,602 128,420,157
—_— e
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30 BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise Parent, associated undertakings, directors of the Company and key
management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various
related parties at arm's length basis, unless otherwise disclosed. Amourts due from and due to related
parties are shown under respective notes to the accounts. Other significant transactions and balances with
related parties are as foliows:

Transactions and balances with related parties

Relationship and %age |T: ion during the year
Name of related party shsreholding R A 2024 2023
{Rupees)
Purchase of raw materizl 51,192,054 93,762,447
Adil Poultry Farm Assodiate ::;ouﬂ! advance at the year 4
Amount due at the year end 6,334,865 5,003,811
Adorn international Assogiate Purchase of raw matec sl 103,174,463 9,752,000
Sales - 47,130
Amount due at the year end 1,010 542,697
Purchase of rew material 27,710,250 35,003,000
Amna Poultry Farm Associate
Amount due ot the year end 2,610,250 -
Purchase of raw material 1,453,000 7,545,600
B&Z Farms Associate
Amount due et the year end - 7,549,600
Purchase of rew material - 1,640,000
Buksh Farms Assodiate
Amount due 3t theyear end 3,282,003 3,282,003
Naheed Ali Assotiate Supplisr -
Purchase of raw material - 3,455,000
Sultan Poultry Farm Assotiate
Amount dug atthe year cnd 1,787,145 1,787,145
Supplier - -
5 As: d 0%
Frisian Eggs International wa::;j:;’:nv 1
SSEIRE || oot damstdkeyarerd 615,220 615,220

Assocated Company 50% Loan payable 1o related

i U ! ' v 4
Frisian Eggs International Shareholding gatty 154,771,818 229,176,245
Loan raceived during the s E
ear
B&Z Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd. Shareholder 30% ¥
o 3 t ;‘;;';"‘""“ s 38,005,564 38,005,564
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Transactions and balances with related parties

Relationship and %age |T: during the year
ame of related party shsreholding i o col Sdieny 2024 2023
L L1 LT B
T Assodiate pecson Sibling Loan paid during the year -
of CEO holds 0% Loan payable to refoted 3
porty
Loan received during the N U
Associate pecson lines! yex
Naheed Ali Ascendent of CEO holds  Loan paid during the year - -
L67%
Loan payable to related
party 1,500,000 1,500,600
Loan paid during the vear pA %
Muhammad Ali Associate person Gk GG e
PR 4,000,000 4,000,000
party
Loan received during the 4
yaar
Wagas Gulzar Director holds 10%
Loan payable to related 13,231,800 13,281 500
perty
Loan received during the i 1
year
CEQ/ Bi
Muhammad Adil Ali smmhd';:i’; Laan paid during the vear -
Lozn payable to related
) 1,200,000 1,200,000
30.1 Director Remunration
Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
2024
= 1
\Rupees;
Managerial remuneration 2,700,000 - 10,386,742 13,086,742
2,700,000 - 10,386,742 13,086,742
Number of persons 1 o
Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
2023
B (117 ~7-1-1=) RS
Managerial remuneration 2,275,000 - 9,189,072 11,464,072
2,275,000 - 9,183,072 11,464,072
r;ig?ber of persans 1 3
1
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n FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Bosrd of Ciractors of the Company has overal résporstbioty for the establishment and cwersight of the Company's risk
managernent framework.

Risk managzment framewark

The Board meers frequently througiout the year for develaping and monitoring the Company's Fk managemant policies. The
Comzany's fisk management policies are sstabished to identify anc anzlysa the nsks faced by the Company, 16 set appropriata
sk limits &nc controls, and to monktor rsks end acherence to fimits, Risk manpgement pelisies and systesrs are revizwed
regulary ta refloct chenges in market conditions and the Cormpany’s activites. The Company, through s Santards and

proedires, ¥ms te develon a discipined and caastrictive sonteal envronmizct in which all eriployses understand thes mile
and obfigstiars,

The Cemgany ias exposuce to the fallowing rises from its use of financial instrorsents:
+ Cragitrisk

- Uquidity risk

- Market risk

311  Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial kxss to the Company ¥ a rustoner ar courtar £aty Lo o finanzial instrument fads to meet its
tontraciual soligations without considering the far value of the collateral available there against.
Expasure to credit risk

The carrying ampurit of respective financal a5sats 1earesent the maximum cradi exposure. The MM EXposurs 1o credit
risk a1 the reporting dave is as follows:

2024 03

o, N

L) L ¢l
Long torm deposits 5,633,330 3,023,400
Trade debrs 11 891,085,143 595157519
Advarces snd degosits 12 47,065,292 304899,252
3ank balancas 14 42,516,602 128/420,157
456 300,367 J57 500,320

Trade debts

The Companry's expasyre 10 Cedit risk arsing from trace debtors is meinky inlusncad by the individual characteristics of aach
tustemer. The Compay establishes an allswsncs for ECL that ‘agresents Its estimate of incurred iosses.

Analysis o gross amounts raceivable fiom (race deblars are 3¢ follows:

2024 #2023
{Rupses)
Domestic 735,438 227 589,842,009
Ferwign 175,822,327 17,544,441
909,270,585 507,386.50%
Tra aging of trade dokts as et the date of the steternsnt of Ainangal positian &:
Pastdue 1-30 days 485,091,487 332,328 208
Past due 31 - S0 days 283,169,009 449,240 898
Past due abowva 90 days 141,010,062 49,117.501
909,270,553  507,386.50%

Advances and deposits

These represents loan and advances to emeloyeas 35 ger cempeny palicy 8nd deposits placed with varivus suppliers 3s per the
termns of securing svallablinty of services. 1he Management does 7ot eXpact 12 incur cred Tinss thereagainst.

Bang balances
The Company kept its surplus funcs with becks Faving gond credit ratirg. Curentiy the surplus funds are ket with henks having

~q&ng from AR
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Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when 3 number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by the changes in
econornic, political, or other conditions. The Company believes that it is net exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

31.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Lquidity risk arises because of the possibifity that the Company could
be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Company's appreach to managing liquidity 's to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash to meet expected
working capital requirements by having credit lines available.

The following are the contractual maturities of finarcial lisbilities, including interast payments and excluding the impact of
netting agreements:

As at JUNE 30, 2024 AT AmOue Contra.ct.ual Moaturity up toone  Maturity above
e e e e maturities year than 1 year
Non-derivative financial liabilities --(Rupees)-
Long term loan 12,259,394 12,259,394 10,384,394 1,875,000
Loan from related party 154,771,817 154,771,817 15,790,009 138,981,808
Trade and other pavables 243,201,472 243,201,472 243,201,472 -
Accrued mark-up 27,803,048 27,803,048 27,803,048 -
Shert term borrowings 433,956,414 433,956,414 433,956,414 -
871,992,146 871,592,146 731,135,338 140,856,808
L Contractual Maturity up toone  Maturity above
As atJune 30, 2023 Carrying amount atisities e thantlyyear
Non-derivative financial liabilities (Rupees):
Long term loan 43,618,395 43,618,395 31,359,001 12,259,394
Loan from related party 229,176,245 228,176,245 157,744,732 71,431,513
Trade and cther payables 199,205,252 199,205,252 199,205,252 -
Accrued mark-up 27,079,477 27,079477 27,079,477 -
Short term borrowings 402,331,445 402,331,445 402,331,445 -
901,410,813 901,410,813 817,718,907 83,690,906

31.3 Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will sfect
the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to

manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return, The Conipany is exposed
to currency risk and interest rate risk only.

31.3.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in

foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables axist due to transactions entered
J_[:o foreign currencies.
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The Commaeny is axpased 10 currancy rick on ong term loan that eve deaominated in 4 currency other thar the respaciive
functional currency o the Uempany, primarily Eyro, The Compariy's exposure o foreign currency visk iz as fcilows:

2024 2023
Rupees Eura Funees Eurc
Financial liabifities
Lorg Term Loan 154,773,817 519500 £29,176.245 732,503
The foliowing signdficant exchangs rates were apahczshle during e year:
Reporting date rate
Suying / Selling Buying / Selling
3 297.3550 28371/

Lurg to Pakistan Ruzes 29762 47’ 313 7963

31.3.2 Interest rate risk

ratE risk rep s the fisk that the fair value of future cash fiows of & Tmanclal nsrament wil fuctuates because of
<HANgEs i1 Marset intarest rates. The Comzany has long 1erm interest bearing financial assetz and liabil ties whoss fair valge oF
future czsh flows will flucteats bacavse of COENges N Tarket interest rates,

31.3.3 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the far vaiue or fLture cash flows from a linancal irstrument will flactuate due 1o changes in mirket
arices lother than these arising frort interest rasa risk er currency risk), whether thase changes ars caused by factors spaofic to
the individual Faanclal nstrument ae. i1s issuer, ar Tactars affecting all similar financia! instruments traded in the markes, The
Company has no exposure 1o prica riss except in shor term investmerts held at 157 valie,

31.3.4 Fair value of firanoal assets snd lishilities

The @iryag values of financial aisets and financial liskilitias reparted in the statament of firancial pasiton spprosimate their
fair values.

32 INFORMATION FOR ALL SHARES ISLAMIC INDEX SCREENING

2024 w023

Dascription Carsled Under Carded Jnder

ton Shariah Sharah Non Shariah Sharigh

arrangements srrangements arrangements HFrACEAMN@ITS
Assats
Long térm cepasits . 5,633,330 - 2,023,400
Advance 10 ampiayees - 5,835,168 . 3.876,860
Cash 3t gank - in currant accours - 42,516,802 . 128420157
Laabilities
Long term lcans . 12258394 - 43,615,395
Lorg termi loan from related party - 158,771 817 - 229,176,245
Short term burrawings - 433356474 - 402,333,445
Loan fram raiated pary . 57,587,354 - 57,987,369
g.rf_m on debt - 6,320087 . 4,086,645
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33 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company rranages Its capital structure and makes adjustmants to it in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital SAructure, the Company may sdjust the dividend
payments 1o Shareholders or issue new shares, The mansgament ssacs to maintin o balanse between
higher raturns trat might be possitée with higher Izvels of Sorrawings 2nd the advgntages and security
afforded by a sound capital position.

The Company's objectives when managieg capital are 10 ensure the Company's ahifity nct enly to
continue as a geing concern but also 1o mast its requirements for expansion and enhancerment of its

business, tc maximize retum of sharsholders and to o ativize capital structure and to reduce the cost of
Capital

34 MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES

Fair value is defined as the price that would be rece vid e sell an acset or paid to transfer 2 liability inan
croerly transaction between market participznzs at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of f3ir value & the presumption that the Company Is 3 golng concern without
2ny Intenton or requirement ta curtall materially the scale of iss operations of to ungiertake a transaction
on adverse erms,

Tae fair value of financial assets and E25ilitiés traded in s¢ive markats | o, listed =quity shares are based
on the cuoted markzt prices at the dase of tading on the pericd end date. The quoted market prices.
useed for financial assets held Sy the Company is currant bid price.

A finsncial instrumant is regarded 55 qucted in an actve market If quated prices are readily anc regularly
asailable from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, ang
those prices represant actuzl und regularly occurnng market transaciions on an zrm's length basis,

IFRS 13, 'Fair Velue Measurements' requlires the Company to classify fsir value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inpute used 'n making the measurements. The fair
value higrarchy nas the following lesels:

Fair value measurement using quotes (unacjusted) in active markets for Identical assat or
ey e
fiahility,
Level2:  Fair vaiue measuremenss using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thet
are observable for the zsset or liasility, either directly {i.2. as prices) or indirectly (i.e, dasivad
from prizes).

Levei3:  Fair value measurement using inputs for the asset of llablity thet are net based on cosenvable
marke: data (i.e. unchservable inputs).

As at JUNE 30, 2024, all financiel assets and Snancial liabifittes are carriec at amortised cost which is
approximate to their fair walue.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value oF an asset o 3 liability fall into different levals of the fair
vzlue hierarchy, then the fair valus measuremant s cateporizad In Its entirety in the same leval of the fair
velue hiergrchy 3 the lowest levelinput that is significent tc the entire measurement.

For assets and liavilities that are recogn sed in the unconsolidated fnancal statements at fair value on 3
recurring basis, the maragement recognises transfers between levals of the fair walue hierarehy at the
@nd of the reporing period during which the change has vccurred. There were no transfers between
&ijferent l2vels of fairvalues mentionad above,
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35 ANNUAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY

2024 2023
e [+ T S
lastalled capacity 17,000 17,000
Actugl production 12,680 10,232

36 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The fifth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 has introduced ssrssin presentation and dassfication
requirements for the elaments of financial statements. Accordingly, the corresponding figures have been
rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the requirements of
Companies Act, 2017

37 GENERAL
37.1  Figures have been raunded-off 10 the nearest rupes unlnss otharwise stated.
37.2 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2024 2023
N N
Total number of employess at the year end 62 56
Averege number of employaes during the yezr 53 51

33 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue in the Boarc of Directors meeting held on
LY
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13.2

133

135

Operating Fined Assets
2024
ot Opifectiioh Netbookwaloe
As atduly 1, " Revalution As atjune 30, Asatluly 3, As atJune 30, as atJune 30,

Owned Assets e Additions Transfor Disposals Sk 2024 2023 FortheVear  Transfors  On disposal 2024 2028 depreciotion
teasehold land 46,470,000 153,530,000 200,000,000 - - - - - 200,000,000 0%
Factory building 134,325,840 - 52,716,176 187,042,016 24,759,381 7,015878 - - 31,775,259 155,266,756 5%
Plant and machinery 216,057,781 65,173,039 123,188,746 404,419,627 60,312,515 25,675,746 - - £5,988,261 318,431,366 10%
Furniture and fixture 3,260,062 - 3,260,062 1,083,125 219,594 - - 1,282.819 1,977.243 10%
Office Equipment 3,400,993 40,000 3,480,951 956,817 266,212 - - 1,223,020 2,217,962 10%
Computer 2,324,489 1,174,900 - 3,490,360 293,581 388,624 - - 1,280,205 2,219,184 20%
Vehicle £,049,417 3,243,000 12,035,00t) 7,262,417 23,165 1,062,777 - {117,860} 1,833,082 5,519,335 207

Rupees 411,868,580 035, 808,923,501 58,576,583 633,931 - 685,531,846
2023
ot Sepuivion Net book vus —
Asatuly 1, ” Revalution As at june 30, Asatluly 1, As at June 30, as at June 20,
d As
Owned Assots 2022 Additions Tearsfer Disposals i 2023 For the Year Transfers Ondisposal 023 Fds deprediation

Luase hold land 46,470,000 - 46,470,000 - - . . - 46,470,000 0%

Factory building 134,281,146 44,694 134,325840 18992922 5,766,459 . - 24759381 109,566,459 5%

Plant and machinery 194,754,359 21,303423 216,057,781 44,2457 16,065,795 - - 60,312,515 155,745,266 10%

Farniture and fixture 3207.452 52600 3,260,062 822051 231,074 1,053,125 2,196,937 0%

Office Equipmient 2,725,991 675,000 3,400,951 719,805 237,011 . - 956,517 2,444,174 0%

Computer 1,755,089 569400 2,324,489 629,685 261,895 . 891,581 1,432,908 200

Vehicle 1,965,303 4,083,114 6,049,417 A79395 413,770 . - 893,165 5,156,252 20%

Rugees 335,160,349 26,728231 411,888,580 65489579 22,987,004 - & 88,876, 323,011,996

Allocation of deprecistion

_ 2024 — _ 2023 _
Rupees Rupees
Deprediation - Factory 32.911,318 22074528
Depraciation - Admin 1,722,613 912,676
34,633,331 22,987,004
Particulsr of immovable property
Location Usage of immovable property Total area
Port Qasim, Karachi Factory and production plant 2.5 Acre

The Company had last tevalued it< land, buliding and plant and machinery an November 22, 2023. Tha revaluation exeecise was caried out by Oceanic Suveyors (Privete) Umited, an independent valuer. The vauer Is listed on the approved pane of valuers
of Pakistan Banks' and Leasing Pakisten. The land was revaluad on the basis of current market price whereas buildings and plant and machinery were revalued using the Asset Sased Valuation Methad. The valuation exercise
1esulted in a net surplus of Rs,329.434 million 25 on the date of revaluation.

The incremental value of building and plant & mahinery 5o revalued are being depreciated over the remaining useful lives of these assets at the date of revaluation.

Revaluation surplus amaunting 1o Fs. 329.434 mifion includes revaluation on land which remains undepreciated as at June 30, 2024.

In current year, estimoted forced sales value of revalued assels was Rs, 522 milion,
Focred sales value

7|
Rupees
Lease hold fand 170,000,000
Factory tullding 128,000,000
Flant and machinery 224,000,000
mwsﬁ
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136 Had there bear no revaluation, the net book value of the spacific chassas of property, plant & cquipment would have been o3 follows:

Net book value
oo T s 7
Rupees Rupees
Lease hold land 46,470,000 46,470,000
Factory building 101013026 109,566,459
Plant and machinary IRE,056,610 155,745,266

uum_wwunhun 311 _wnn—ﬂuw

13.7  Detsil of assets disposed off during the year;
Description of assots

Book value

AT _ T _ _ E.M._._E.._. Tﬁ_. i a.._xzu__ Relationship of _._H a.r..uw. qzh..__w the Company or _

117860 1917140 2,035,000 17,88 z.&h_.“ax Negotiation Procurement manager

LED-4492 HONDA CITY ASPIHE
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6.6. LATEST MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS AS AT 31°** DECEMBER 2024

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

o
O6p £66 °

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Un-audited -06  (Un-audited - 06

months) months)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Note ---Rupees--- ---Rupees-—
Sales - net 19 3,790,580,271 3,016,189,038
Cost of sales 20 (3,351,412,941) (2,699,847,526)
Gross profit 439,167,330 316,341,512
Selling and distribution expenses 21 (85,827,571) (43,101,802)
Administrative expenses 22 (25,864,523) (17,780,918)
Operating profit 327,475,237 255,458,792
Other expenses 23 (27,766,614), (14,163,915)
Un-realized foreign exchange gain - 136,149
Other income 24 96,931,515 3,135,501
Finance costs 25 (63,487,710) (60,567,732)
5,677,191 (71,459,997)
Profit before income tax and levy (minimum tax) 333,152,427 183,998,795
Minimum tax 0 - (20,504,787)
Profit before income tax 333,152,427 163,494,009
Income tax 26 (705,187) (735,570)
Profit for the period 332,447,240 162,758,439

The annexed notes form an Integral part of these financial Statement

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED
CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ‘
\
[

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024 (UN-AUDITED)

{n:aidited <06 (Audited - 01 year)

months)
Dec 31, 2024 Jun 30, 2024
Note Rup Rup

Equity and Liabilities

Authorized capital
310,000,000 (June 30, 2024: 1,000,000 Ordinacy shares of Rs,
1 A 100,000,000
100/- each) Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- 310,000,000 0 [

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 242,255,384 90,000,000
Capital reserve
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 6 313,234,015 320,711,356
Revenue reserve

Unappropriated profit 1,036,465,806 696,541,225

1,501,955,206  1,107,252,581

Non Current Liabilities
Long term loans 7 1,250,000 1,875,000
Long term loan from related party 8 - 138,981,808
1,250,000 140,856,808

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long term loan 7 1,250,000 10,384,394
Current portion of long term loan from related party 8 - 15,790,009
Short term borrowings 9 413,783,267 433,956,414
Loan from related party 10 74,798,175 57,987,364
Trade and other payables 11 446,013,431 243,201,472
Accrued markup 10,225,363 27,803,048
946,070,236 789,122,702
Total equity and liabilities 2,539,275,442 2,037,232,091
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 12 718,910,853 693,777,870
Long term deposits 13 6,264,304 5,633,330
725,175,157 699,411,200
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock In trade 14 349,435,129 311,028,794
Trade debts 15 1,243,152,784 891,085,143
Advances, deposits and prepayments 16 102,334,938 47,065,292
Taxation - net of provision 17 37,424,704 46,018,985
Short term investment 106,075 106,075
Cash and bank balances 18 81,646,656 42,516,602
1,814,100,285 1,337,820,891
Total assets 2,539,275,442 2,037,232,091
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial Statement |
B Sy
* CHIBF FINANCIAL OFFICER / CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th .l_ob{, d Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),

Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan
Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

CONDENDSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

(Un-audited - 06  (Un-audited - 06 |
months) months)
Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31,2023

Note: iwrssae] Rupees----------

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before income tax and levy (minimum tax) 333,152,427 183,998,795
Adjustments for non cash items: -
Depreciation 20,776,849 11,417,397
Finance cost 25 63,487,710 60,567,732
Unrealized exchange (gain)/loss (62,854,116) -
Allowance for expected credit loss 16.1 2,408,438 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 356,971,307 255,583,923
Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stock In trade (38,406,335) 47,630,517
Stores and spares - (2,194,253)
Trade debts-considered good (354,476,079)  (305,700,867)
Advances, deposits and prepayments (55,269,646) (40,325,487)
Increase in current liabilities:
Trade and other payables 202,811,959 109,048,138
Cash flows from operating activities 111,631,207 64,441,970
Minimum tax / income taxes paid | 7,889,094 (39,667,867)
Finance costs paid / reversed (81,065,394) (59,290,239)

1731763001 __ [GR QSR 106
Net cash generated /(used in) operating activities 38,454,908 (34,516,136} |
Cash flow from investing activities !
Capital expenditure incurred 13.1 (45,909,833) (48,720,440) [
Proceed from disposal - 2,035,000
Short term investment - (100,000)
Long term deposits paid (630,974) -
Increase in paidup capital 152,255,384 -
Net cash {(used in) investing activities 105,714,577 (46,785,440)
Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of long term loans (9,759,394) (15,679,500)
Receipt from SBP Salary Finance - -
Repayment to related party (75,106,890) (23,272,607)
Short term borrowings - net (20,173,147) 82,357,397
Net cash generated from financing activities (105,039,432) 43,405,290
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents 39,130,053 (37,896,286)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 42,516,602 128,420,157
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 81,646,656 90,523,871
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial Statement

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

o« Q
Registered Address: Office No. 601,:6th Floof, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-#ami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

Balance as at June 30, 2023 (Audited)

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment realized on account
of incremental depreciation during the year

Balance as at December 31, 2023 (Un-audited)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 (Audited)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment realized on
account of incremental depreciation during the year

Paid capital

Total comprehensive income for the period ended Sep 30, 2024

Total comprehensive income as at Dec 31, 2024 (Un-audited)

CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (UN-AUDITED)

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

Revenue Reserve Capital Resarve
Revaluation
Share Capital Total
s Unappropriated surplus on S5
Profit property, plant
and equipment
90,000,000 308,055,072 - 398,055,072
- 162,758,439 162,758,439
90,000,000 470,813,511 - 560,813,511
90,000,000 696,541,225 320,711,356 1,107,252,581
- 332,447,240 - 332,447,240
- 7,477,341 (7,477,341)
152,255,384 152,255,384
152,255,384 339,924,581 (7,472,341) 484,702,624
242,255,384 1,036,465,806 313,234,015 1,591,955,205
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan
contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com

P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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()

e %
BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4
)
%kp gg6

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

g Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

(Un-audited - 06 (Audited - 01
months) year)
Dec 31, 2024 Jun 30, 2024
Note Rup
5 Issued, subscribed and paid up capital
242,255,384 Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each (fune 30, 2024 :
90,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 100/- each) 242,255,384 90,000,000
242‘255@84 90i000i000
Pattern of shareholding Dec31,2024 Jun 30,2024
Shareholding | Percentage Shareholding | Percentage
(Rs.) of Holding (Rs.) of Holding
Frisian Egg Intemational B.V. 121,127,492 50.00% 44,999,800 50.00%
Muhammad Adil Ali 9,690,215 4.00% 3,600,000 4.00%
Wagqas Gulzar 24,225,538 10.00% 9,000,000  10.00%
Johan Stuiver 100 0.00% 100 0.00%
Paul Ettema 100 0,00% 100 0.00%
Muhammad All Ansari 3,901,000 1.61% 3,901,000 4.33%
Naheed Ali Ansari 3,369,354 1.39% 1,500,000 1.67%
B&Z Enterprises (Pvt.) Ltd. 79,941,585 33.00% 26,999,000  30.00%
242,255,384 100% 90,000,000 100%
6  Revaluation Surplus On Property, Plant And Equipment
Balance at the beginning of the year 320,711,356 -
Revaluation increase during the year - 329,434,921
incremental depreciation charged during the year (7,477,341) (8,723,565)
313,234,015 320,711,356
7 Longterm Loans
Diminishing Musharikah - Meezan Bank 7.1 - 9,134,394
Less: Current portion - (9,134,394)
Diminishing Musharikah - MBL Generator 7.2 2,500,000 3,125,000
Less: Current portion (1,250,000) (1,250,000)
1,250,000 1,875,000
Total 1,250,000 1,875,000
8  Long term loan from related party
From related party - Frisian Egg International BV 7.1 154,771,817 229,176,245
Repayment during the year (15,790,009) (66,418,835)
138,981,808 162,757,410
Realized foreign exchange loss / (gain) (62,854,116) -
Un-realized foreign exchange loss / (gain) - (7,985,593)
76,127,692 154,771,817
Less: Current maturity = =
76,127,692 154,771,817
Loan Convertible to equity (76,127,692) (15,790,009)
- 138‘98#808

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-/Il (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

9  Short term borrowings

Tijarah Financing - Meezan Bank Ltd. 9.1 314,742,766 204,393,847 {
Musawammah Financing - Bank Al Habib Ltd. 9.2 (0) 149,949,174 ‘
Tijarah Financing - Habib Bank Ltd. 9.3 99,040,502 44,803,394 1
M h Financing - M Bank Ltd. - 34,810,000 ‘

413,783,267 433,956,414

10 Loan from related party |

Opening balance 57,987,364 57,987,364
Receipts during the year 107,350,903 -
Repayments during the year (90,540,092) -
10.1 74,798,175 57,987,364
Loan convertible to equity -
74,798,175 57‘987‘364
10.1 Loan from associated Company (Unsecured) 64,895,933 64,895,933
Loan from director (Unsecured) 9,902,242 9,902,242
Loan from close family member/sponsor - - }
74,798,175 74,798,175 ‘
11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES “
Creditors 316,837,584 158,937,546 |
Withholding tax payable 489,861 1,534,947 |
Other payables 222,386 192,640 ‘
Sales tax payable 83,616,449 45,068,391 |
Accrued expenses 5,064,966 5,347,635 |
Workers profit participant fund 11.1 22,067,429 22,586,180 [
Workers welfare fund 15,381,777 8,582,748
Sale tax withholding 2,332,980 951,385
446‘013‘431 243‘201‘472
11.1 Opening balances 22,586,180 9,782,163
Interest charged during the year - 845,442
Paid during the year (18,410,933) (10,627,605)
Allocation for the year 17,892,182 22,586,180
closing 22,067,52. 22i586i180

12 Property, plant and equipment

Operating fixed assets 704,946,102 685,531,846
Capital Work in Progress 13,964,752 8,246,024

71859105853 693,777,870

13 Long term advances and deposits

Deposits against ljarah finance 3,057,572 3,057,572
Others 3,206,732 2,575,758
6,264,304 5,633,330

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

14 Stock in trade

Raw material 207,234,590 177,543,230 |
Packing material 23,178,266 33,911,269
Finished good 119,022,273 99,574,295
16.2 349,435,129 311,028,794
15 Trade debts
Unsecured
Considered good 1,243,152,784 891,085,143
Considered doubtful 20,593,849 18,185,411
1,263,746,632 909,270,554
Allowance for expected credit loss 16.1 (20,593,849) (18,185,411)

1,243,152,784 891,085,143

16.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Balance as at July 1 18,185,411 12,146,072
Change for the year 2,408,438 6,039,339
Balance as at June 30 20'593IM9 18|185‘411
16 Ad e, deposits and prepay s

Advance for services and supplies 35,805,264 4,994,698
ERP License 821,611 1,594,586
Advance to employees 2,745,806 1,871,376
Prepayments 2,643,809 906,716
Advance sales tax 50,000,000 30,000,000
Loan to employees 9,234,668 6,835,168

Short term Lien to Mark 1,083,779 862,748 1

102‘334‘938 47,065,292 ;

|

17 Taxation - Net of provision tax/levy

Tax receivable as at 01 July 46,018,985 13,136,079
Tax payments / adjustments made during the year (7,889,094) 73,674,982
38,129,891 86,811,062 |
Less: Provision for tax - current year (705,187) (40,792,077)
Tax receivable as at December 31, 2024 37,424,704 46,018,985

i
_—r
18 Bank balances l

Cash at bank - in current account 17,174,806 7,805,099
Cash at bank - in saving account 64,471,850 34,711,503
81,646,656 42,516,602

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lil (BTC-3),
Plot No, D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

0p A
£ G
viee (Un-audited - 06  (Un-audited - 06

months) months)

19 Sales- net Dec 31, 2024 Dec 31, 2023
Sales 19.1 3,510,336,111 3,285,267,123
Export sales 537,063,255 217,979,186
Less: Sales tax (256,819,096) (487,057,271)

3,790,580,271 3,016,189,038

20 Cost of sales

Raw materials consumed 20.1 3,235,550,216 2,567,583,396
Salaries wages and other benefits - factory 13,380,265 9,975,008
Direct labour 12,970,698 11,059,977
Certification expense 234,000 56,500
CIP / Analytical Lab Chemicals 3,947,196 4,576,564
Communication 296,901 310,033
Travelling & Conveyance 25,300 -

Depreciation - Factory 13.1.1 19,902,100 10,636,272
Utilities 49,170,197 34,886,619
Repair and maintenance 2,381,773 1,284,850
Insurance expense 1,177,524 821,220
Lab / factory supplies 1,437,200 661,512
Other factory expense 103,000 -

Pest control 374,074 631,388
Printing and stationary 2,997,910 2,075,502
Rent expense 26,015,004 7,893,017
Security services 525,000 442,500
Testing 372,562 275,100
Other factory - -

Waste disposal = =
3,370,860,919 2,653,169,458

Add: opening stock of finished goods 99,574,295 132,273,640

Less: closing stock of finished goods 14 (119,022,273) (85,595,573)
3,351=412,941 2,699,847,526

20.1 Raw materials consumed

Add: Opening stock 211,454,499 131,425,131

Add: Purchases 3,254,508,573 2,568,825,199
3,465,963,072 2,700,250,330

Less: Closing stock 14 (230,412,856) (132,666,934)

3,235,550,216 2,567,583,396

21 Selling and distribution expense

Freight outward 48,557,356 33,060,073
Marketing & selling expense 37,270,215 10,041,729
85,827,571 43,101,802

22 Administrative expenses

Salaries wages and other benefits 10,822,530 7,437,328
SESSI & EOBI 1,257,351 1,007,829
Auditors' remuneration 221 457,440 -

Communication expense 201,905 140,414

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-Il (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

o Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

90 @0
Orp EGG °

Depreciation 13.11 874,750 781,125
Entertainment 26,300 20,946
Fee & Subscription 209,720 96,625
Utilities - Admin 512,186 2,184,568
ljarah rental 2,837,662 1,805,765
Insurance expenses 351,309 84,930
Miscellaneous expenses 704,676 569,444 |
Repair and maintenance expense 614,891 331,360 |
Printing and stationery 80,170 41,300
Professional charges 3,991,648 565,774 |
Rates, cess and taxes 1,281,538 151,140 |
Travelling and conveyance - Admin 1,590,447 2,562,371
Charity & Donations 50,000 -
25,864,523 17,780,918
22.1 Audit fee 397,440 -
Out of pocket expense 60,000 -
457,440 -

23 Other expense

Allowance for expected credit loss 16.1 2,419,903 -
Other expense - 397,463
Workers profit participant fund 17,892,182 9,908,135
Workers welfare fund 6,799,029 3,858,316
Staff Hajj Sponsorhip Scheme 655,500 -
27,766,614 14,163,915

24 Other Income
Liabllity written back 5 5

Profit on debt 2,431,680 2,536,447
Exchange gain realized 12,320,800 79,329
Exchange gain realized - FCY loan to equity 62,854,116 -
Other income 257,434 519,724
Reversal of markup on loan from related party 19,067,484 -

96l931|515 3‘135‘501

25 Finance cost

Bank charges 4,251,341 1,472,736
Markup on diminishing Musharikah 893,950 4,137,061
Markup on related party loan 8,838,106 2,202,336

Markup on WPPF - -
Markup on Tijarah financing - Meezan 29,671,884 26,180,845
Markup on musawammah - Bank AL Habib 13,773,169 1,917,639
Markup on Tijarah financing - Habib Bank 4,610,961 18,998,052
Markup on muswama - Meezan 1,448,299 5,659,062
63,487,710 60,567,732

26 Taxation

Prior year income tax expense = =
Income tax expense (2,431,680 x 29%) 705,187 735,570

Super Tax - -
705'13_7 735,570

This represent the normal income tax on on profit on debt. The applicable rate of tax is coporate income tax that is
29% for the period.

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-Ill (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan
Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
1072 o e DA ot w5 S ARy IS S L Tl § T Baoe A VOIS =0l AT, NPt il i Y Tl ST YA

Page 134 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

< Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED

4 o
(43
O¢p EGG o

27 Minimum tax - 20,504,787 \

This represents the minimum tax on turnover under section 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levy in
terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/IAS 37.

This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 and onwards. The Company is a SEZ
entity and together with other SEZ entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-6752/2022 before the Sindh High
Court. The aforesaid matter is still pending adjudication and company has good arguable case on the merits with
chance of favourable outcome. However, company has made provision for this minimum tax in the year ended June
30, 2024,

This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 is now repealed through Finance Act
2024, The aforesaid would be nil in the year ended June 30, 2025.

Barkat Frisian Pasteurized Egg Company (Pvt.) Ltd. Is established in Special Economic Zone and has started commercial
operations from Financial Year ended June 30, 2019. Hence income of company Is exempt from Income Tax and
minimum tax for ten years from the date of commencement of operations.

Reference: Clause (126E) of Part | of The second schedule of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (valid till TY 2022)

[(126E) Income derived by a zone enterprise as defined in the Special Economic Zones Act, 2012 (XX of 2012) for a
period of ten years starting from the date the developer certifies that the zone enterprise has commenced commercial
operation and for a period of ten years to a developer of zone starting from the date of signing of the development
agreement in the special economic zone as announced by the Federal Government].

Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

Formerly BARKAT FRISIAN PASTEURIZED EGG COMPANY (PVT.) LIMITED
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Registered Address: Office No. 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-IIl (BTC-3),
Plot No. D-75, Block 7 - Zone C, Khayaban e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Factory Address: WL 36-37, Bin Qasim Industrial Park, Pakistan Steel, Karachi, Pakistan

contact@barkatfrisian.com, www.barkatfrisian.com
P: +92.21. 33480833, 32574668
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6.7. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED

The audited financials of the Company can be downloaded from the following link:
https://barkatfrisian.com/financial-reports/

Financial Highlights

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025

BFAL
Revenue 2,470 4,325 6,068 3,791
Cost of Goods Sold (2,191) (3,877) (5,369) (3,351)
Gross Profit 279 448 700 439
Administrative
Expenses (25) (32) (48) (26)
Selling &
Distribution (42) (68) (102) (86)
Expenses
Operating Profit 212 349 549 327
Other Expense (11) (20) (44) (28)
Other Income 3 10 29 97
Unrealized Foreign
Exchange (25) (73) 8 -
(loss)/profit
Financial Charges (39) (84) (123) (63)
Proﬁt/(Loss) before 139 181 421 333
Taxation
Taxation (1) (34) (41) (1)
Proflt/(Loss) after 138 148 380 332
Taxation
EBITDA 201 288 578 417

Depreciation and
Amortization

Balance Sheet FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025

Audlted Audlted Audlted Un- audlted
Non-Current Assets 322 326 699 725
Current Assets 579 1,031 1,338 1,814
Total Assets 902 1,357 2,037 2,539
Paid up Capital*® 90 90 90 242
Revaluation surplus
on property, plant - - 321 313
and equipment
Unappropriated 160 308 697 1,036
profit
Total Equity 250 398 1,107 1,592

46 Subsequent to 1Q FY25, the company did a stock split in 1:100 ratio and the Company executed a rights issue of 152,255,384
shares on 17th December, 2024. The company previously had a paid-up capital of 90,000,000 shares and after the
rights issue the paid-up capital stood at 242,255,384 shares. The rights issue was executed by converting a foreign
loan from the sponsors, repaying the local loan, and utilizing the proceeds in the rights issue.
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Long Term related

110 71 139 -
party loan
Long term 44 12 2 1
financing
Deferred ) i i i
government grant
Current ma'tunty. of 33 31 10 1
long-term financing
Current maturity of
long-term related 92 158 16 -
party loan
Short-Term 192 402 434 414
Borrowings
Non-Current 154 84 141 1
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 498 876 789 946
Stock in Trade 192 264 311 349
Trade debts 288 595 891 1,243
Trade and other 112 199 243 446
payables
Cash Flow

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025
Statement
Cash Flow from
.. 9 18 59 38
Operating Activities ®) (18)
Cash Flow from
2 1

Investing Activities (38) (27) (79) 06
Cash Flow from 70 132 (66) (105)
Financing Activities
Net increase/
(decrease) in cash

23 88 (86) 39
and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash
equ!val.ents at the 18 a1 128 43
beginning of the
year
Net Cash Balance 41 128 43 82
Capex (37) (27) (78) (46)

FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025
N/A

Sales Growth (%) 119% 75% 40%

EBITDA Growth (%) 129% 43% 101%

Operating profit 109% 65% 58%

er‘(’)ﬁ“ftzftf/:)tax 186% 7% 157% N/A
Margins

Gross Margin (%) 11% 10% 12% 12%
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Operating Profit

. 9% 8% 9% 9%
Margin
EBITDA Margin (%) 8% 7% 10% 11%
Profit after tax 6% 39 6% 9%

Margin (%)

Profitability Ratios FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025

Earnings per share

Adjusted* (PKR) 0.57 0.61 1.57 1.37
Earnings per Share
(Corresponding 153.31 164.20 421.97 369.39

Period) (PKR)

Break-up value per

share without

revaluation surplus 277.65 422.28 873.93 1,420.80
(Corresponding

Period) (PKR)

Break-up value per

share with

revaluation surplus N/A N/A 1230.28 1,768.84
(Corresponding

Period) (PKR)

Break-up value per

share (PKR) 1.03 1.64 3.25 5.28
without revaluation

Break-up value per

share with

N N 4, .
revaluation surplus /A /A ° o-57
(PKR)
Return on equity 76% 46% 50% N/A
(%)
Return on assets 18% 13% 22% N/A
(%)
Ll LR FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025
Ratios
Fixed Asset 7.83 13.34 11.84 5.32
Turnover
Asset Turnover 3.28 3.83 3.58 1.66
Current Ratio 1.16 1.18 1.70 1.92
Capex to total 0.04 0.02 0.04 0.018
Assets
Receivable
Turnover (days) 38 38 45 N/A
Inventory Turnover 19 21 20 N/A
(days)
Payable Turnover 14 15 15 N/A
(days)
Cash Conversion 43 a4 50 N/A

Cycle (days)

4TCompany issued 152 Mn shares after Q1 FY25, with total paid up capital standing at 242 Mn. Earnings per share were
calculated on the quantity of these new shares

Page 139 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

Leverage Ratios FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 2Q FY 2025

Debt to Equity 211% 184% 60% 31%
Total Debt to o 0 0 o

Capital- % 68% 65% 37% 24%
EBITDA / Interest 5.18 3.44 471 6.57
Debt / EBITDA 2.62 2.55 1.14 1.18
(EBITDA-CAPEX) 164 261 500 371
(EBITDA-CAPEX)/ 4.20 3.13 4.08 5.85
Interest

Interest Coverage 454 3.17 4.43 6.25
Ratio

6.7.1. Commentary on Selected Ratios
6.7.1.1. Profitability

From FY22 to FY24, the company demonstrated remarkable growth in revenue, achieving a CAGR of 56.7% and
increasing its revenue from PKR 2.5 billion to PKR 6.1 billion. This outstanding performance not only facilitated
a boost in net profit from PKR 137 million in FY22 to a profit after tax of PKR 380 million in FY24, but also
highlighted the company's exceptional capability to drive growth in both top-line and bottom-line metrics.
Additionally, profit after tax experienced a robust CAGR of 66% from FY22 to FY24, further underscoring the
company’s impressive financial trajectory. Moreover, the Company has reported a net profit of PKR 332 Mn in
Q2 FY25 demonstrating a concrete growth trajectory in FY25.

6.7.1.2. Growth Ratios

The Revenue of the company has demonstrated an outstanding 45% YoY growth in FY24 and 3-year CAGR of
56.7%. Operating Profit also grew 58% in FY24 with a resultant 157% growth in net profit. This groundbreaking
performance testifies the impeccable capability to drive, growth, profitability and growth.

6.7.1.3. Gross and Operating Margins

The company has maintained stable margins from FY22 to FY24, with average gross margins of 11% and
operating margins around 9%. In the past 3 years, the Company has successfully stabilized its net profit margin
at 6% with the exception in FY23. This volatility was caused by sudden jump in finance cost due to massive
increase in interest rates. In FY23, the economy faced severe challenges including a high interest environment
which impacted all businesses. BFAL however demonstrated strong resilience with a sharp rebound in margins
and profitability in FY24. This momentum has continued in 2QFY25 with further expansion in net profit margins
to 9%.

6.7.1.4. Return Ratios:

The company has experienced significant growth in earnings per share (EPS), achieving an impressive compound
annual growth rate (CAGR) of 66% from FY22 to FY24, rising from PKR 151 to PKR 422. Return on equity (ROE)
increased notably from 46% in FY23 to 50% in FY24. Similarly, return on assets (ROA) rose from 18% in FY22 to
22% in FY24, despite the significant growth in assets as the business expanded.

6.7.1.5. Leverage Ratios

The company’s debt-to-equity ratio has declined over the observed period, indicating a reduced reliance on debt
financing. Specifically, the ratio improved from 2.1 times in FY22 to only 0.60 times in FY24. This trend suggests
a stronger equity position and greater financial stability. Additionally, the EBITDA-to-interest ratio has
demonstrated a stable trajectory, slightly decreasing from 5.14 times in FY22 to 4.7 times in FY24. This decrease
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in FY24 can be attributed to rising interest rates driven by high inflation and an uncertain macroeconomic
environment. Despite this dip, the overall trend remains favorable, reflecting the company’s ability to generate
higher earnings relative to its interest obligations

6.7.1.6. Cashflow from Operations

Initially, the Company had negative Cashflow from Operations in FY 22 and FY 23 resulting from high trade debts
and interest costs. However, the Company has opted for efficient operational practices and has had a positive
Cashflow from Operations in FY 24 and in 2Q FY 2025.

SUMMARY OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED
6.8. REVENUE BREAKUP

Revenue Breakdown of BFAL is given below:

Value Value
(PKR- ((GE
Mn) Mn)
Q2FY | Q2FY
FY 2022 | FY 2022 | FY 2023 2 023 FY 2024 ZOZ 4 2025 -

Local Sales 2,418 97.9% 4,076 94.2% 5,437 89.6% 3,256 | 85.8%
2 | Export Sales 51 2.1% 250 5.8% 631 10.4% 537 14.2%
Total Sales 2,470 100% 4,325 100% 6,068 100% 3,791 100%

6.9. REVENUE BREAKUP - REGION WISE

BFAL began exporting in FY 2022. The region wise sales breakup is given below:

Value Growth Value Value )
m a0 (PKR-Mn) | SrOWth (%) (PKRM) ey

FY 2022 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2024

1 Pakistan 2,418 118.3% 4,076 68.6% 5,437 33.4%

,  UnitedArab 43 - 227 427.9% 217 (4.4%)
Emirates

sl som

4  Qatar 8 - 12 - 9 (25%)

5 Kuwait - - 6 - 39 550%

6 Oman - - - - 65 -

7 Bahrain - - - - 27 -

8 Egypt - - - - 59 -
Total 2,469 118.1% 4,325 75.1% 6,068 40.3%

6.10. EXPENSES BREAKUP

The following table shows the expenditures of the Company:

T bgenses | Fvaoz Py 2023 P 2024 | QzFv202s
I T N R R R

Cost of Goods Sold 2,191 3,877 5,369 3,351
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Raw materials consumed 2,047 3,763 5,132 3,236
Utilities 31 55 76 49
Depreciation 23 22 33 20
Administrative Expenses 25 32 48 26
Eael:;if?tsswages and other 11 14 20 10
Utilities 2 3 5 0.5
:i::ienngs::d Distribution 42 68 102 85
Freight Outward 42 48 78 48
Marketing and Selling 0 19 24 37
Other Expenses 11 20 44 28
\;tljz:jker's Profit Participant 7 10 »3 18
Worker's Welfare Fund 3 4 9 7

6.11. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL PURCHASES

The following table accounts for the material purchases of the Company:

Purchas % Purchas . .
es 6 of es % of % of
during Total during Total Total
AT FY 2022 Purchas FY 2023 Purchas Purchas
es es es
during during during
FY 2022 FY 2023 2024
Ghulam
1 Mustafa Pakistan Shell Egg 175 23% 792 37% 1,031 29%
Enterprises
Abdullah
2  Poultry Pakistan Shell Egg 17 2% 137 6% 758 21%
Farm
Marhaba
Protein
3 Farms Pakistan = Shell Egg 226 30% 519 24% 513 14%
(Pvt.)
Limited
Islamabad
4  Feeds (Pvt.) Pakistan = Shell Egg 35 5% 131 6% 325 9%
Ltd.
5 ﬁ:?ltry Pakistan = Shell Egg - 0% - 0% 261 7%
Maryyam
6 Poultry Pakistan = Shell Egg 80 11% 172 8% 217 6%
Farm
Crown
7 FF?VT;W Pakistan ShellEgg 162 21% 106 5% 140 4%
Limited
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g BWPoultry o listan  Shell Egg 10 1% 158 7% 140 4%
Form

9 RajaFarm Pakistan = Shell Egg 29 4% 93 4% 137 4%
Hongchang

10 Packing China  Packing 21 3% 15 1% 25 1%
Material material
and Co

Total 754 100% 2,124 100% 3,547 100%

6.12. SUMMARY OF OTHER INCOME

The essential details regarding the company's Other Income are given below:

Other Income FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 Q2FY 2025

_

Other Income (PKR Mn)

Other income as % of operating profit (%) 1% 3% 5% 30%

Other income as % of net sales (%) 0.1% 0.2% 0.5% 2.6%

*This high other income resulted due to exchange gain resulting from conversion from loan to equity.

6.13. BREAKDOWN OF OTHER INCOME

The following table shows the breakup of other income:

Liability written back 21.1
Dividend Income - 0.0

Profit on debt 1.7 4.1 6.3 2.4

Amortization of deferred government
grant

0.4 0.1 -

Exchange gain realized 0.6 - 1.3 12.3
Exchange gain realized - FCY loan to
equity

Other income 0 5.6 0.5 0.26
Reversal of markup on loan from related
party

Gain on disposal of fixed asset - - 0.1 -

- - 62.8

- - - 19.1
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6.14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

6.14.1. Contingencies

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited. is established in Special Economic Zone (SEZ) and has started commercial operations
in 2019. Hence income of company is exempt from Income Tax and minimum tax for ten years from the date of
commencement of operations. The minimum tax u/s 113, was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 and
onwards. The Company is a SEZ entity and together with other SEZ entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-
6752/2022 before the Sindh High Court. The aforesaid matter is still pending adjudication and company has
good arguable case on the merits with chance of favorable outcome

6.14.2. Commitments

The total ijarah rentals due under the ijarah agreements aggregate to amounting Rs. 24.948 million (2023:
10.915 million) and are payable in equal monthly installments. The ljarah is partially secured by a personal
guarantee of all local sponsors and post-dated cheques. The company intends to exercise the option of
purchasing the assets under ljarah at residual value upon completion of ljarah term.

6.15. COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS WITH PEER GROUP COMPANIES:

EPS Free Float
BVP5! P/B 1{0]3 ROA

company (TI;VI) : P/E53 (Slclanr)i: :
The
Organic 12.7
Meat 4.1 133%  4.8% 34.4 33.8 8.1 1.0 <y. 10.0% 74.25 50.0%
Company °
Limited
At-Tahur o o o o 0
Limited 1.6 23.1% 3.4% 238 246 155 1.0 6.9% 4.8% 54.66 25.0%
Big Bird
Foods 3.0 22.1% 118 19.0 505 16.7 2.7 164 8.6% 104.62 @ 35.0%
Limited % %
Mitchells
E;‘:';S 201 30.7% 107/'8 266 293.3 14.6 13' 1209'7 269%  6.86  30.0%

0 (o]
Limited
Ismail

1 18.

Industries 59.1 20.3% 3.3% 338 947 33.0 5.8 8.7 3.9% 3.32 5.0%
Limited 5 3 %
Friesland
Campina 12.8
Engro 2.5 15.0% 1.8% 21.1 782 30.7 3.7 (y 4.5% 76.66 10.0%
Pakistan °
Limited
Nestle
Pakistan 286. 345% 6.5% 374. 7,433 26.0 19. 9?'4 13.8% 2.27 5.0%
Limited 4 4 3 9 %

48 The TTM is from September,2023 till September, 2024

4 LTM Gross Profit Margin-Consolidated FS

%0 LTM Net Profit Margin-Consolidated FS

51 The BVPS is calculated as of September, 2024

52 Closing price is at 31% January, 2025

53 P/E is at 315 January, 2025 (Market Capitalization / TTM Profit After Tax)
5 P/B is at 31% January, 2025 (Market Capitalization / Total Equity)

% Free Float is at 31% January, 2025
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Unilever
Pakistan 1,20 23.4 2,36 22,30 52.0

0, o %
Foods 9, 397% T U Te 184 94 7.7 252% 031 48%

Limited

Rafhan

e 74;8' 19.6% 1;;4 21'?’72 9’?648 128 3.4 2;5 16.0% 079  85%
Limited

Murree

Brewery 106. 11.8 @ 565. 20.0 0
Company 4 24.3% % 0 805.2 7.6 1.4 % 16.0% 11.07 40.0%
Limited

National 11.2

Foods 6.9 27.0% 1.8% 634 182.0 263 29 % 3.7% 58.28 25.0%
Limited ?

Fauji 11.4

Foods 0.5 18.7% 5.6% 3.7 15.7 311 4.2 % 7.6% 503.99 @ 20.0%
Limited ?

Sector
Weighted
Average
Mean
Sector
Median

21.45 5.83

17.58 3.54

KSE 100°® 6.3 1.4

BFAL Pre
Issue
BFAL Post
Issue

2.3 12% 8% 6.6 13.0 5.7 2.0  46.4% 26.1% 67.735 21.8%

1.8 12% 8% 5.1 13.0 7.3 25 | 46.4%  26.1% 67.735 21.8%

6.16. REVALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS

The revaluation of leasehold land, building and plant and machinery were revalued resulting in the net surplus
of Rs. 329.434 million. The revaluation was incorporated in books on June 30, 2024. The valuation was conducted
by an independent valuer Oceanic Surveyors (Pvt.) Ltd. Land, Building and Plant and Machinery were valued on
the basis of fair market value. The company has a policy of revaluing land, building and plant and machinery
after every five years.

Closing Book | Addition/Dis | Revaluation | Depreciation | Fair Value in
Value in PKR | posal during Surplus during the PKR at

30t June the year during the year 30t June
2023 year 2024

Operating

. 323,011,996 67,718,860 329,434,921 34,633,931 685,531,846
Fixed Assets

6.17. DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to follow a consistent profit distribution policy at the rate of 20% per annum of its
earnings for its shareholders subject to profitability, availability of adequate cash flows, the Board’s
recommendation and shareholders’ approval, where required.

% KSE-100 P/E TTM is at 31% January, 2025
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The rights in respect of capital and dividends attached to each ordinary share are and will be the same. The
Company in its general meeting may declare dividends but no dividend shall exceed the amount recommended
by the Directors. Dividend, if declared, in the general meeting, shall be paid according to the provisions of the
Companies Act 2017.

The Board of Directors may from time to time declare interim dividends as appear to be justified by the profits
of the Company. No dividend shall be paid otherwise than out of the profits of the Company for the year or any
other undistributed profits.

No unpaid dividend shall bear interest or mark-up against the Company. The dividends shall be paid within the
period laid down in the Companies Act.

Under Section 242 of the Companies Act, any dividend payable in cash by a listed company, shall only be paid
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Therefore, the
applicants must fill-in the relevant part of the Shares Subscription Form under the heading, “Dividend Mandate”

Covenants/Restriction on Payment of Dividends:
There is no restriction on the Company by any regulatory authority, creditor, stakeholder etc. on the distribution
and capitalization of its profits.

Cash Dividend or Bonus Issue Track Record:

To date, the Company has neither distributed any cash dividends nor issued any bonus shares.
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7. BOARD AND MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

7.1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Directors of the Company are listed below:

Past Directorshi
. . Current . . .
Designation | Address . . Directorshi | p in BFAL
Directorships .
ps since
M74/1,
Muhamma . Khayaban e 42201-
1 o Executive N/A 2017
d Adil Ali Ittehad, Phase  7280142-3 None
7, DHA, Karachi
44A, 9th Street,
Waqas Non - 42301-
2 . Phase 2 ext., None N/A 2017
Gulzar Executive . 4272067-1
DHA, Karachi
1. Adorn
International
Pvt) Ltd
M74/4, (Pvt)
2. Barkat Steel
. Non — Khayaban e 42000-
3 | Anwar Ali . (Pvt) Ltd N/A 2024
Executive Ittehad, Phase  0544407-3
. 3. Buksh
7, DHA, Karachi .
Industries
(Pvt) Limited
1. Dutch Egg
membrane
Protein
Powder BV
2. Frisian Egg BV
Dutch Egg
Convenience
Petersburg 23, BY
Johan Non — 9241 WK BW9CBP69
. . . 4. Chengdu N/A 2017
Stuiver Executive Wijnjewoude, 3 .
Frisian Egg BV
Netherlands .
5. Frisian Egg
International
BV
6. Egyptian
Pasteurized
Egg Co.
1. International
Egg Trading
Berdinge 13, BV
Paul Non — 8532 CE Dutch Egg
R . BV7L499K8 N/A 2017
Et'tema Executive Lemmer, membrane
Netherlands Protein
Powder BV

Frisian Egg BV
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4. Dutch Egg
Convenience
BV

5. Frisian Egg
International
BV

6. Global Egypt
Trading for
Foodstuff

7. Warber
Consultancy
BV

1. Employers

R145, Block ]
Mehmood 42201- Federation of
6 Independent | 13D, Gulshan e . N/A 2024
Arshad . 3480876-9 Pakistan
Igbal, Karachi
Appt 2302, W
. Symmetry
Nadia Tower, COM3  42301- .
7 . Independent Group Limited N/A 2024
Ishtiaq Apartment, 6797730-2

Clifton, Karachi
7.2. NUMBER OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 154 of the Companies Act, 2017 a listed Company shall not have less than seven (7) directors.
At present, the Board consists of 7 directors, including the Chief Executive Officer.

7.3. PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
7.3.1. Mr. Johan Stuiver

Mr. Johan Stuiver is a seasoned professional with over 25 years of experience in the European poultry and food
sectors. His leadership has been pivotal in expanding the Frisian Egg Group across three continents, establishing
it as a global leader in the egg industry.

He has played a significant role in setting up and managing egg processing projects in Turkey, Egypt, China,
Pakistan, and the Netherlands and holds key shareholding and directorships in Frisian Egg ventures. Currently,
he leads an egg membrane project in Europe with the potential to introduce industry-changing products.

As the Chairperson and Non-Executive Board Member of BFAL, Mr. Stuiver oversees the company’s technical
and R&D functions, contributing innovative solutions that have driven the company’s success.

His expertise in R&D and engineering, coupled with a commitment to excellence, makes him a critical asset in
achieving BFAL’s strategic objectives.

7.3.2. Mr. Muhammad Adil Ali

Mr. Muhammad Adil Ali brings over 15 years of experience in the poultry and food manufacturing industry. As
the founder and CEO of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL), he has transformed Pakistan’s egg processing sector
by shifting from raw egg products to a modern, value-added, export-oriented enterprise.

Under his leadership, BFAL has achieved significant milestones in operational efficiency, product innovation, and
market expansion, positioning the company as a key player in international markets through advanced
processing technologies and a focus on sustainable growth.
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Mr. Adil also serves on the Advisory Board for Pakistan Baking Summit, demonstrating his broader influence in
the food industry. With a track record of creating shareholder value and driving market growth, he continues to
shape the future of Pakistan’s food processing sector.

He holds a Master’s in Business Administration from Institute of Business Management and has prior experience
in his family business, where he developed poultry and feed operations.

7.3.3. Mr. Paul Ettema

Mr. Paul Ettema is a member of the Netherlands Institute of Chartered Accountants and a registered public
accountant and tax lawyer. With over 25 years of experience in finance and accounting, he joined the Frisian Egg
Group as a major shareholder in 2014, where he has played a key role in the group’s sustainable expansion. He
also holds directorships across all Frisian Egg companies.

As a board member of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL) since its incorporation, Mr. Ettema has provided
strategic guidance and financial oversight, ensuring the company’s growth and operational excellence.

His expertise in finance and legal matters, combined with his commitment to organizational success, makes him
an essential contributor to BFAL’s vision and strategy.

7.3.4. Mr. Anwar Ali

Mr. Anwar Ali is a seasoned leader with over 30 years of experience in the poultry industry. As the CEO of Adorn
International (Pvt) Ltd., he has transformed the company from managing 20,000 birds to over 300,000 birds,
alongside commercial feed production.

He also serves as a non-executive director at Buksh Industries (Pvt) Ltd., a leading exporter of textile products
to the USA, and holds a directorship at Barkat Steel (Pvt) Ltd., specializing in the production of steel drums for
the oil industry.

As a non-executive director on the board of BFAL, Mr. Ali’s diverse experience and strategic vision make him a
valuable contributor to the company’s success.

7.3.5. Mr. Wagas Gulzar

Mr. Wagas Gulzar is an accomplished professional with over 10 years of experience in entrepreneurship,
operations, and business development, spanning industries such as textiles, e-commerce, and sports. He
began his career in his family’s textile business, Finetex Industries, where he streamlined operations and
identified new growth opportunities. In 2016, he expanded into e-commerce by launching an online gadget
store, followed by co-founding Barkat Frisian Agro Limited in 2017, Pakistan's first producer of pasteurized egg
products.

Alongside his entrepreneurial ventures, Mr. Gulzar co-founded Padel in Pakistan in 2023, a rapidly growing
community focused on promoting the sport of padel nationwide. In 2024, he launched Pakistan’s first online
padel store, further enhancing accessibility to high-quality equipment.

7.3.6. Mr. Mehmood Arshad

Mr. Mehmood Arshad is a prominent figure in Pakistan’s social and economic circles and a recognized global
speaker on the Halal Eco-System. He serves as a director at UHF Solutions (Pvt) Limited, one of Pakistan’s fastest-
growing IT firms. As a Board Member and Chairman of the Economic Council at the Employers’ Federation of
Pakistan, Mr. Arshad actively contributes to R&D and international linkages, benefiting Pakistan’s leading
industrialists. He has also been associated with the Pak Qatar Group as Executive Director, overseeing the largest
investment from Qatar into Pakistan’s financial sector.

Mr. Arshad is the Founder Chairman of the Standing Committee on Islamic Banking & Takaful at FPCCI and the
Chairman of Pakistan-Qatar Business Council, where he fosters economic ties between Pakistan and Qatar.
Additionally, he founded TAWUN, an organization promoting the Halal Financial System globally.
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7.3.7. Mrs. Nadia Ishtiaq

Mrs. Nadia Ishtiaq is the Executive Vice President - Head of Investment Banking & Private Equity at Pak Oman
Investment Company Ltd., with over 21 years of diverse experience in Investment and Corporate Banking. Her
expertise spans Equity and Advisory, Syndications, Debt Capital Markets, and Project Finance.

Throughout her career, she has led notable transactions for corporations, SMEs, startups, and the Government
of Pakistan. Her contributions include pioneering initiatives such as the launch of E-IPO in Pakistan and the
issuance of the first commercial paper for a startup, showcasing her role in driving innovation within the
country’s financial sector.

Mrs. Ishtiag has also served on the Listing Committee of the Pakistan Stock Exchange as an Industry Expert,
further solidifying her position as a leader in the financial landscape.

With her exceptional skills and proven track record, she brings valuable expertise to drive growth and innovation,
particularly in the digital technology sector.

7.4. PROFILE OF MANAGEMENT
7.4.1. Mr. Muhammad Adil Ali - Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Muhammad Adil Ali brings over 15 years of experience in the poultry and food manufacturing industry. As
the founder and CEO of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL), he has transformed Pakistan’s egg processing sector
by shifting from raw egg products to a modern, value-added, export-oriented enterprise.

Under his leadership, BFAL has achieved significant milestones in operational efficiency, product innovation, and
market expansion, positioning the company as a key player in international markets through advanced
processing technologies and a focus on sustainable growth.

Mr. Adil also serves on the Advisory Board for Pakistan Baking Summit, demonstrating his broader influence in
the food industry. With a track record of creating shareholder value and driving market growth, he continues to
shape the future of Pakistan’s food processing sector.

He holds a Master’s in Business Administration from Institute of Business Management and has prior experience
in his family business, where he developed poultry and feed operations.

7.4.2. Mr. Farooq Zafar - Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Farooq Zafar, the Chief Financial Officer of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited (BFAL), is an Associated Member of
the Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountants with nearly 16 years of experience in Finance and Audit. He
has been with BFAL since 2019, overseeing the company’s Finance and Treasury operations, including budgeting,
tax matters, cash and bank management, and coordination with auditors.

In addition to his core responsibilities, Mr. Farooq specializes in financial planning and analysis, budgeting, and
strategic financial decision-making. His leadership in optimizing operational costs and improving financial
performance highlights his critical role in driving the organization’s success

7.4.3. Mr. Muhammad Ali — Company Secretary

Mr. Muhammad Ali is an industry veteran with over 40 years of experience in accounting, finance, and corporate
matters. He currently serves as the Group Company Secretary of Buksh Group, a conglomerate with diverse
business interests spanning textiles, poultry, steel, and food processing.

Mr. Ali possesses strong secretarial management skills, overseeing corporate governance and ensuring
regulatory compliance. His extensive knowledge of taxation laws and regulations enables him to effectively
manage compliance requirements. Additionally, his ability to build relationships with financial institutions and
stakeholders enhances his contributions to the company’s growth.

He also holds directorships in several key companies, including:
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e Buksh Industries (Pvt) Ltd., a leading exporter of textile products to the USA.
e  Barkat Steel (Pvt) Ltd., specializing in steel drum production for the oil industry.
e Adorn International (Pvt) Ltd., managing poultry and feed operations.

Mr. Muhammad Ali’s expertise and leadership make him a valuable asset in driving organizational success and
ensuring operational excellence.

7.4.4. Mr. Ammad Badar — Head of Production & Projects

Mr. Ammad Badar is a dynamic leader with over 14 years of experience in the food manufacturing industry,
specializing in production management, engineering solutions, and operational optimization. With a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering, he blends technical expertise with practical know-how to design systems that
enhance efficiency, maintain quality, and uphold safety standards.

In his role as Head of Production and Projects, Mr. Badar aligns production operations with the company’s
strategic objectives. He has successfully led projects involving advanced engineering systems, process
innovations, and capacity planning, ensuring adherence to strict timelines and budgets. His ability to manage
resources, lead multidisciplinary teams, and implement process improvements has driven measurable business
growth.

Mr. Badar is highly regarded for his strategic vision and his capacity to turn challenges into opportunities for
progress. His extensive background in engineering and production, combined with his commitment to
operational excellence, positions him as a key contributor to the company’s success and sustainability.

7.4.5. Mr. Muhammad Asif- Head of Procurement

Mr. Asif Ismail brings extensive experience in procurement and purchasing, particularly in the egg industry,
where he plays a vital role in sourcing high-quality eggs from various poultry farmers across Pakistan. His
expertise lies in ensuring quality standards of the eggs procured, contributing significantly to the company’s
reputation for excellence in the food manufacturing sector.

Mr. Asif is well-versed in procurement strategies and quality control processes, enabling him to effectively
manage the entire sourcing process. His experience includes negotiating with suppliers, ensuring the timely and
cost-effective acquisition of eggs, while maintaining strict quality standards to meet the company’s production
needs.

In his key role, Mr. Asif Ismail is a critical asset to the company, ensuring a consistent and reliable supply of high-
quality eggs to support production and meet market demands.

7.4.6. Mr. Irfan Sharif — Head of Operations & Food Safety

Mr. Irfan Sharif brings 19 years of extensive experience in the food manufacturing industry, with a deep expertise
in operations, quality assurance, and compliance. His contributions have been instrumental in driving the
company’s growth and ensuring operational efficiency.

In his current role, Mr. Irfan oversees critical functions, including day-to-day operations, quality assurance, and
ensuring adherence to industry regulations and compliance requirements. His expertise in quality control
ensures that the company’s products consistently meet the highest standards of quality, while exceeding
customer expectations and regulatory mandates.

Mr. Irfan holds a Master’s degree in Food Sciences and Technology from Karachi University, equipping him with
advanced knowledge in food production, safety standards, and technological advancements. His experience and
educational background make him an invaluable asset, ensuring smooth operations and the sustained success
of the company.
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7.5. QUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

No person shall be appointed as a director of the Company who is ineligible to be appointed as Director on any
one or more of the grounds enumerated in Section 153 of the Companies Act or any other law for the time being
in force.

7.6. APPOINTMENT AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As per Article 49, the company shall have at least seven (7) directors at all times. Further, no person shall be
appointed as a director unless they are a member of the company, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2017.

According to Article 52.1, at the first annual general meeting of the company, all directors shall retire from office,
and directors shall be elected in their place for a term of three (3) years in accordance with the Act. Article 52.2
provides that a retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. Any casual vacancy occurring on the board may
be filled by the directors, but the person so appointed shall be subject to retirement at the same time as the
director in whose place they were appointed, as stated in Article 52.5. Additionally, Article 52.6 states that the
company may remove a director in accordance with the provisions of Section 163 of the Act.

In line with Article 63, the company shall have a Chief Executive appointed in accordance with the provisions of
the Act. Article 64 deems the Chief Executive to be a director if they are not already one, entitling them to all
rights and privileges associated with the office. Lastly, Article 65 provides that the Chief Executive may be
removed before the expiration of their term by a unanimous resolution of the board or by the company through
a special resolution.

7.7. INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND PROMOTERS

The directors and promoters of the company may have a direct or indirect interest in contracts, arrangements,
or dealings with the company, as permitted under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, and the Articles
of Association. In accordance with Article 51, no director or intending director is disqualified from entering into
contracts, transactions, or proposals with the company in a professional capacity or otherwise, provided that
the nature of their interest is fully disclosed at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Act.

Furthermore, the directors are required to abstain from participating in discussions or voting on matters in which
they have a personal interest, as per the provisions of Article 51. Such contracts or arrangements are subject to
approval by the Board of Directors.

7.8. REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTOR

In accordance with Article 50 of the Articles of Association, the remuneration of the directors is determined by
the company in a general meeting, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017. The directors may also
be reimbursed for expenses incurred in attending meetings or performing any duties related to the company’s
business.

This remuneration policy ensures that compensation aligns with the responsibilities and contributions of the
directors, maintaining transparency and compliance with legal requirements.

Remuneration of Directors ‘ FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024
Directors - - -
Chief Executive 2,275,007 2,275,000 2,700,000
Executives 6,079,922 9,189,072 10,386,742
Total 8,354,929 11,464,072 13,086,742

7.9. VOTING RIGHTS

As outlined in Article 42 of the Articles of Association, every member present in person at a general meeting is
entitled to one vote on a show of hands, irrespective of the number of shares held. On a poll, every member,
whether present in person, by proxy, or by representative, is entitled to one vote for each share held.

Additionally, Article 42A provides for e-voting, enabling members to exercise their voting rights electronically in
accordance with the applicable rules and regulations prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
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Pakistan (SECP). Both members and non-members can be appointed as proxies for e-voting purposes, provided
the appointment follows the timelines and procedures defined by SECP.

In case of joint shareholders, Article 44 specifies that only the vote of the senior-most member present will be
accepted, as determined by the order of names in the register of members.

7.10. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has set up an effective internal audit function managed by suitable qualified and
experienced personnel who are well conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company and are
involved in the internal audit function on a full-time basis.

The Audit Committee comprises of the following members:

1. Nadia Ishtiaq - Chairperson
2. Paul Ettema- Member
3. Mehmood Arshad- Member

7.11. HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors has set up an effective Human Resources function managed by suitable and qualified
personnel who are conversant with the policies & procedures of the Company and are involved in Human
Resources function on a full-time basis.

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee comprises of the following members:

1. Mehmood Arshad - Chairperson
2. Paul Ettema — Member
3. Muhammad Adil Ali— Member

7.12. POWERS OF DIRECTORS

The powers of the Directors are outlined in Article 62 of the Articles of Association. As per Article 62.1, the
Directors are responsible for managing the business of the Company and have the authority to exercise all
powers of the Company that are not specifically reserved for the general meeting by the Act or the Articles. This
includes the power to pay expenses related to promoting and registering the Company. Article 62.2 further
grants the Directors broad authority to handle the Company’s financial transactions, including the issuance and
execution of cheques, promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchange, and other financial instruments, as well as
signing receipts for payments made to the Company. These actions must be conducted in accordance with the
resolutions passed by the Board. Additionally, Article 62.3 mandates that the Board keep detailed minutes of
appointments, attendance, and resolutions at meetings of the Company, Directors, and Board committees.

7.13. INDEMNITY AVAILABLE TO DIRECTORS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

As per Article 86, every officer, Director or agent for the time being of the Company may be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against any liability incurred by him/her in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal, arising out of his/her dealings in relation to the affairs of the Company, whether the outcome of any
such proceedings is in his/her favor or otherwise, except those brought by the Company against him/her, or in
connection with any application under the Act in which relief is granted to him/her by the Court.

7.14. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company shall comply with all the rules and regulations applicable to the Company with regards to the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulation, 2019.
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8. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND OVERDUE LOANS

8.1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There is only routine litigation incidental to business operations to which the Company is a party. However, said
litigation is expected not to have any material impact on the Company or its shareholders in the future. The
company is established in Special Economic Zone and has started commercial operations from 2019 Hence
income of company is exempt from Income Tax and minimum tax for ten years from the date of commencement
of operations. The Company is now fully exempt from income tax till tax year 2029.

However, the company was charged with minimum tax levy in FY 24. This minimum tax u/s 113, which was levied
by the Government for tax year 2023 and onwards. The Company is a SEZ entity and together with other SEZ
entities challenged it vide petition no. C.P.D-6752/2022 before the Sindh High Court. The aforesaid matter is still
pending adjudication and company has good arguable case on the merits with chance of favorable outcome.
However, company has made provision for this minimum tax in the year ended June 30, 2024. This minimum tax
u/s 113, which was levied by the Government for tax year 2023 is now repealed through Finance Act 2024. The
aforesaid would be nil in the year ended June 30, 2025.

Note: There are no other pending litigations against the Company, its Sponsors, substantial shareholders,
directors or associated companies over which issuer has control other than those already mentioned above.
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8.2. OVERDUE LOANS

There are no overdue loans (local or foreign currency) on the Company, its Sponsors and promoters, substantial
shareholders, directors and associated group companies (over which the Company has control). The Company,
its CEO, its directors and its Sponsors, under the oath, undertake that they have no overdue payment to any
financial institutions.

8.3. ACTIONS TAKEN BY PSX AGAINST THE ISSUER OR ASSOCIATED LISTED COMPANIES OF THE
ISSUER DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS DUE TO NON-COMPLIANCE OF ITS REGULATIONS

No action has been taken by the Securities Exchange against the issuer or its associated companies over which
the issuer has control.
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9. UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT, COMMISSIONS, BROKERAGE AND OTHER EXPENSES

9.1. CREDIT UNDERWRITING
Book Building Portion

Arif Habib Limited has been appointed as the Book Runner to the Issue. The Book Runner will credit underwrite
67,735,000 shares being offered for subscription through the book building representing 100% of the Issue as
required under regulation 7(6) of the PO Regulations, with the limitations in effect that the Book Runner shall
only underwrite the default portion of the Book Building, if any, at the Strike Price determined through the Book
Building process.

9.2. COMMISSION OF THE BANKERS TO THE ISSUE

Commission at the rate of 0.25% (inclusive of all taxes) of the amount collected on allotment in respect of
successful applicants will be paid by the Company to the Bankers to the Issue for services to be rendered by
them in connection with the Retail Portion of the Issue.

9.3. FEE AND EXPENSES FOR PSX E-IPO SYSTEM (PES) AND CENTRALIZED E-IPO SYSTEM (“CES”)
Commission on application received through the e-IPO Systems of PSX and CDC will be paid to PSX and CDC
which shall not be more than 0.8% of the amount of the total applications. PSX and CDC will share the fee with
other participants of the e-IPO System at a ratio agreed amongst them.

9.4. BROKERAGE
For this Issue, brokerage shall be paid to the TRE Certificate Holders of PSX at the rate of 1.00% of the value of
shares (including premium, if any) on successful applications for Book Building and General Public Portion.

9.5. ESTIMATED EXPENSES OF THE ISSUE
Expenses to the Issue are estimated not to exceed PKR 40,312,340/-. The break-up of these preliminary expenses
is given below:

Cpartoars | e | Expense (P

Advisory, Arrangement & Book Running Fee 2.30% 19,683,250
Commission to bankers for General Public 0.25% 246,041
CDC and PSX e-IPO facility charges 0.80% 1,180,995
Bankers to the issue out of pocket expenses 200,000
TREC Holders Commission 1.00% 7,837,300
PSX Initial Listing fee 309,990
PSX Book Building software charges 1,000,000
Share Registrar, Transfer Agent and Balloting Agent 800,000

Printing of Prospectus and Forms
Publication of Prospectus and Advertisements in

Newspapers and Urdu Translation of Prospectus 6,000,000
Marketing, Roadshows and other activities

CDC Fresh Issue fee 1,133,755
CDC Eligibility fee 1,000,000
SECP Supervisory fee 30,999
SECP IPO Application Processing fee 200,000
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,000,000
Total 40,312,340
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10. MISCELLANEOUS INFORMATION

10.1. REGISTERED OFFICE / CORPORATE OFFICE
10.1.1. Registered Office / Corporate Office

Office No: 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-lll (BTC-3), Plot No. D, 75, Zone C, Block 7, Khayaban-e-Jami,
Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Tel: +92 21 3348 0833
Email: corporate@barkatfrisian.com

10.2. BANKERS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS TO THE COMPANY

S. No. Name Address Contact No. Email
1 Habib Bank HBL Tower — Corporate Banking, 1st Mr. Ahmed mustafa.baigl @hbl.com
Limited Floor, Plot No. G-4, KDA Scheme #5, Mustafa Baig
Block 7, Clifton, Karachi 0320-2554530
2 Meezan Bank 2nd Floor, Meezan House, C-25, Mr. Ahmed Bin Ahmed.Saleh@meezanbank.com
Limited Estate Avenue, SITE, Karachi Saleh

0301-8723369
3 Bank Al Habib Finlay House, 1st Floor, Room 103, Mr. Raza Ahmed Raza.Siddig@bankalhabib.com
Limited I.I. Chundrigar Road Karachi 0333-3886993

10.3. AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY

Name: Naveed Zafar Ashfaq Jaffery & Co., Chartered Accountants
Address: Beaumont Rd, Civil Lines Karachi, Karachi City, Sindh
Contact Person: Ahsan Elahi Vohra

Designation: Partner

Tel: 021-35671909

Email: khi@nzaj.com.pk

10.4. LEGAL ADVISOR OF THE COMPANY

Name: A. Qadir & Company

Address: Office Nos. 206 and 209, Business Arcade, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Block 6, PECHS, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: 021-34315163-6

Email: ehtisham@aqgadirncompany.com

10.5. COMPUTER BALLOTERS & SHARE REGISTRAR

Name: CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

Address: CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi — 74400.
Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Website: www.cdcpakistan.com

Phone: 021-111 111 500

10.6. SHARIAH ADVISOR

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors Limited

Suite 807, 8th Floor, Horizon Towers, Com2/6, Khayaban-e-Saadi,
Block 03, Clifton, Karachi.

Phone: +92-21-35305931-37

Email: info@alhilalsa.com

Web: www.alhilalsa.com
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10.7. LEAD MANAGER & BOOK RUNNER

Name: Arif Habib Limited

Address: Arif Habib Center

23, MT Khan Road, Karachi

Tel: 021-3828 0273, 021-3828 0271
Fax: 021-3243 3542

Email: hamza.rehan@arifhabibltd.com
Website: www.arifhabibltd.com

10.8. BANKER TO THE ISSUE FOR BOOK BUILDING

Meezan Bank Limited

10.9. BANKERS TO THE ISSUE FOR GENERAL SUBSCRIPTION

Habib Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
Bank AL Habib

WFWNHE

The Book Runner has established bid collection centers at the following addresses:

Contact .
. Hamza Rehan Usama Hanif
Officer:
Designation Associate Analyst
Direct No.: 021 38280273 021 38280226
Email: Hamza.rehan@arifhabibltd.com usama.hanif@arifhabibltd.com
Organization  Arif Habib Limited Arif Habib Limited
. . . Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road,
Postal Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road, Karachi .
Karachi
Address: - —— - —
Arif Habib Limited Arif Habib Limited
Contact . .
. Muhammad Faizan Qureshi Muhammad Imran
Officer:
Designation Analyst Branch Manager
Direct No.: 021 38280276 021-32470920-25 Ext # 4849
Email: faizan.qureshi@arifhabibltd.com bm.khi9909 @meezanbank.com
Organization  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited
Postal Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road, Karachi =~ Ground Floor, Room # 7-13, Stock Exchange
Address: Arif Habib Limited Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.
Islamabad
Contact . . .
. Asad Abbas Najfi Sumaira Subhan Wazir
Officer:
Designation Manager Branch Manager
Direct No.: 051 289 4505 051-2894676, 051-2894671-4 Ext # 6674
Contact No.: 03455111156 0301-5686763
Email: asad.abbasnajfi@arifhabibltd.com bm.isd30@meezanbank.com
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Organization  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal Office No. 506, 5th Floor, ISE Towers, Jinnah Room # 218, 2nd Floor, 55-B, ISE Tower,

Address: Avenue, Islamabad Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad

g::z::t Muhammad Mibsam Malik Tayyab Moazam

Designation Junior Officer Branch Manager

Direct No.: +92-21-38003309 042-35870929, 042-5879870-72 Ext # 5001

Contact No.: 03004574734 0301-1189235

Email: muhammad.mibsam@arifhabibltd.com bm.lhr01@meezanbank.com

Organization  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal Office No. G-5 & G-6, Ground Floor, LSE Plaza, Meezan Bank Limited, Gulberg Branch

Address: 19 Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal Lahore (0201) 60 Main Boulevard, Gulberg, Lahore

Contact

Officer: Muhammad Naseem Asmat Amer Adnan

Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager

Direct: +92 41 8531010-13 041-2603586, 041-2602586-88 Ext # 5212

Contact No.:  0322-8661318 0304-0920999

Email: naseem.asmat@arifhabibltd.com bm.fsd02@meezanbank.com

Organization  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal Office # 4™, 3™ Floor, Legacy Tower. Near Kotwali Road, Faisalabad (04_02) P-66

Address: Kohinoor city, Faisalabad AII.ama lgbal ~ Road  (Kotwali  Road),
Faisalabad

g?;:i:t Zeeshan Ahmad Muhammad Ali

Designation Assistant Manager Operation Manager

Direct: - 091-2612023, 091-9214001-4 Ext # 6237

Contact No.: 03459381820 0333-9225261

Email: zeeshan.ahmad@arifhabibltd.com om.pew04@meezanbank.com

Organization:  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal F-16/F-17, 1ST Floor, The Mall Tower, il-l-—:r(ﬁ‘Az:Eg,\lC:\-ll,ear Al-Amin Hotel, GT

Address: Peshawar Cantt.

ROAD, PESHAWAR.

g;fr:zz:t Alam Akhtar Khalid Mahmood

Designation Senior Manager Branch Manager

Direct: +92 61 8000 800, +92 61 451 4412 061-4513672, 061-4785604-7 Ext # 5284
Contact No.: 03216393919 0300-6340448

Email: alam.akhtar@arifhabibltd.com bm.mtn01@meezanbank.com
Organization:  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal Office # 305, 3rd Floor, United Mall, Abdali Plot No0.92,93,94, LMQ Road, Chowk
Address: Road, Multan Nawan Shaher, Multan
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Contact

Officer: Tahir Jamil Qureshi Muhammad Yasir Saleem

Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager

Direct: 052-4295301-03, Ext # 5342 0992-344701-03, Ext # 6287

Contact No.:  0300-9614949 0321-9544858

Email: bm.skt01@meezanbank.com bm.abd01@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal . . Plot No. 843-846, Manshera Road, Near
Address: Pakka Garha, Kashmir Road Sialkot SNGPL Office, Abbottabad
T aweta [ hadKeshmir |
g::z::t BM # Muhammad Tahir Panezai Kashif Hussain

Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager

Direct: Direct: 081-2829755, 081-2829470-72-73 Ext 05822-920461, 058810-42154-56 Ext #

#4403 6367

Contact No.:  Cell#0309-7772570, 0334-3888488 0300-8157502

Email: bm.qta0l@meezanbank.com bm.mzd01@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited Meezan Bank Limited

Postal 1-25/12-13, Barrech Complex, Mannan Secretariat Road, Sathra Muzaffarabad,
Address: Chowk, Jinnah Road Quetta Azad Jammu & Kashmir

g?fr:(::t Shafgat Wali Khan

Designation Branch Manager

Direct: 05811-458038, 05811-458039-41 Ext # 6448

Contact No.:  0346-9219217

Email: bm.glt9834@meezanbank.com

Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited

Postal Shop# 433, Northern Light Infantry (NLI)

Address: Market, Gilgit, Baltistan
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11. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

11.1.1. Details of Short-Term Financing Facilities*

Limit
Mark-up Date Expiry /
(PKR Commission | sanctioned | Review Date
millions)

Facility

Tijarah 315 3MK+ 1.50%
Musawammah — Sub Limit 315 3MK+ 1.50%
Meezan
Bank LG — Bid Bond / Performance 50 0.2% per QTR 1-May- 31-Jan-2025
Limited 2024
. 0.25% per
Sight LC 100 QTR
- 0.25% per
Usance LC — Sub Limit 50 QTR
Habib Relevant 19-Feb-
Bank Tijarah 100 KIBOR + 2024 31-Oct-2025
Limited 1.25%

*As the company is setting up a new production facility in Faisalabad, it plans to secure additional working capital
lines and is currently in negotiations with relevant financial institutions.

11.1.2. Details of Long-Term Financing Facilities

Limit
Facility Mark-up Date Expiry /

(PKR millions) Commission Sanctioned Review Date

Diminishi Limi
iminishing imit 5-year +1-year

Musharika - (14.19+3.75)/Existing = 3MK + 2.5 1-Jun-2019 race period
Sub Limit Limit: 24.67 gracep
Meezan Bank
Limited Limit
ljarah (11.10+17.93)/Existing = 3MK + 1.5%" 1-Nov-2022 Upto 5 years

Limit: 9.13+3.12

11.1.3. Details of Letters of Credit / Bank Guarantees

Currently, the Company has not opened any Letters of Credit/ Bank Guarantees
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11.2. SUPPLIERS & VENDOR

The Company is in formal agreement with the following suppliers:

Goods / Long term or
Country of . Formal .
Vendor .. Service Date of Expiry short-term
Origin Agreement
Procured Agreement
Local:
Top . Till Completion
. . . Construction .
Engineering Pakistan Work Yes of Faisalabad Short- Term
or
Work Project
. Consultancy . .
Universal . Till Completion
. . . Services for Egg .
Engineering Pakistan Yes of Faisalabad Short — Term
. Plant MEP .
Services o Project
Designing
Adorn
International Pakistan Poultry Egg Yes 31-07-25 Long — Term
Pvt Ltd
Adil Poultry .
Pakistan Poultry Egg Yes 31-07-25 Long — Term
Farm
Amna Poultry .
Pakistan Poultry Egg Yes 31-07-25 Long — Term
Farm
Marhaba
Protein Farms Pakistan Poultry Egg Yes 31-03-25 Long — Term
Pvt Ltd
Ghulam Poultry Egg
Mustafa Pakistan Supply Yes 30-06-25 Long — Term
Enterprises Commissioning
C-Shine
. . Pest Control
Sustainable Pakistan . Yes 31-01-25 Long — Term
. Services
Solutions
International
International . . Upon mutual
. Kingdom of Technical
Egg Trading Yes consent of both Long — Term
Netherland Agreement .
B.V. parties

11.3. CUSTOMERS

BFAL has formal agreements with the companies listed below. Aside from these agreements, BFAL does not have
any other formal arrangements; customers place purchase orders as needed whenever they require BFAL's
services.

Goods / Long term or
Country of X Formal .
Vendor . . Service Date of Expiry short-term
Origin . Agreement
Provided Agreement
Local:
National Foods . Pasteurized Egg
L Pakistan Yes June 2029 Long - Term
Limited Products

International
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Mondelez

. . Pasteurized Egg December
International Singapore Yes Short —Term
Products 2025
AMEA PTE Ltd
Kerry Oman .
Pasteurized Egg December
SPC (Kerry Oman Yes Short — Term
Products 2025
Group)
AATCO Food .
. Pasteurized Egg December
Industries LLC KSA Yes Short —Term
Products 2025
(Kerry Group)
Sri Lankan . Pasteurized Egg September
. Sri Lanka Yes Short — Term
Catering Products 2025

11.4. DISTRIBUTORS

Formal Long term or
Agreement Date of Expiry short-term
(Yes / No) Agreement

Country of Goods /

Origin Service Sold

Bakery Line Distribution of

Catering Kuwait L. Yes 30th April 2025 Short Term
Finished Goods

Company

11.5. TRANSPORTERS

Countrv of Goods / Formal Long term or
Ori i:' Service Sold Agreement Date of Expiry short-term
g (Yes / No) Agreement
M. Fayyaz .
Transportation
Goods Pakistan of Finished Yes 28th February Short Term
Transport 2025
Goods
Company
Transportation
31st )
Shah Transport Pakistan of Finished Yes szgznsuary Short Term

Goods

11.6. INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Copies of the Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Audited Financial Statements, the Auditor’s
Certificates, copies of the agreements referred to in this Prospectus may be inspected during usual business
hours on any working day at the registered office of the Company from the date of publication of this Prospectus
until the closing of the subscription list.

11.7. MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

The Memorandum of Association, inter alia, contains the objects for which the Company was incorporated and
the business which the Company is authorized to undertake. A copy of the Memorandum of Association is
annexed to this Prospectus and with every issue of the Prospectus except the one that is released in newspapers
as advertisement.

11.8. FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY

The financial year of the Company commences on 1t July and ends on 30" June.

Page 162 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

12. BOOK BUILDING PROCEDURE/INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTRATION AND BIDDING

12.1. BOOK BUILDING PROCEDURE

12.1.1. Brief Structure

The Present Issue

The Issue comprises of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares of face value worth PKR 1/- each, which constitutes 21.85%
of the Post-IPO Paid Up Capital of the Company.

The entire Issue of 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares will be offered through the Book Building process at a Floor Price
of PKR 13.00/- per share with a price band of 40% above the floor price i.e. PKR 18.20/-.

The bidders shall be allowed to place bids for hundred percent (100%) of the Issue size and the Strike Price shall
be the price at which the hundred percent (100%) of the Issue is subscribed. However, the successful bidders
shall be provisionally allotted only seventy-five percent (75%) of the Issue size i.e. 50,801,250 shares and the
remaining twenty-five percent (25%) i.e. 16,933,750 shares shall be offered to the retail investors.

Unsubscribed shares, if any, of the General Subscription portion will be allocated to Successful Bidders of the
Book Building portion on a pro-rata basis.

The bidders shall give an undertaking along with the application that they would subscribe to the
unsubscribed shares, if any, by the retail investors and their remaining bid money would remain deposited/
blocked till allotment of unsubscribed shares, if any, of the retail portion to them on pro-rata basis. In case
the retail portion is fully subscribed, the bid money shall be unblocked within one (1) working day or refunded
within three (3) working days of the closing of the public subscription.

Within 3 working days of the closing of the Bidding Period, a Supplement to the Prospectus will be published in
at least all those newspapers in which the Prospectus is published. The Supplement will contain information
related to the Strike Price, the Offer Price, dates of the Public Subscription, and category wise break-up of the
Successful Bidders. Format of the Supplement is given on page 3 of this Prospectus.

12.1.2. Types of Bids and Procedure for making a Bid

Book Building is a process whereby investors bid for a specific number of shares at various prices. The Issuer set
a Floor Price, which is the minimum / lowest price a Bidder can bid at. An order book of bids is maintained by
the Book Runner, which is then used to determine the Strike Price through the “Dutch Auction Method”.

Under the Dutch Auction Method, the Strike Price is determined by lowering the Bid Price to the extent that the
total number of shares issued through the Book Building process are subscribed.

A bid by a Bidder can be a “Limit Bid”, or a “Step Bid”, each of which are explained below:

Limit Bid: Limit bid is at the Limit Price, which is the maximum price a Bidder is willing to pay for a specified
number of shares.

In such a case, a Bidder explicitly states a price at which he / she / it is willing to subscribe to a specific
number of shares. For instance, a Bidder may bid for 1 Mn shares at PKR 13.00/- per share, based on which
the total Application Money would amount to PKR 13.00 Mn. In this case the Bid Amount will be also be
PKR 13.00 Mn. Since the Bidder has placed a Limit Bid of PKR 13.00/- per share, this indicates that he / she
/ it is willing to subscribe the shares at a price up to PKR 13.00/- per share.

Step Bid: A series of Limit Bids at increasing prices. The amount of any individual step shall not be less than PKR.
1,000,000.

Under this bidding strategy, Bidders place a number of Limit Bids at different increasing price levels. A Bidder
may, for instance, make a bid for 5 Mn shares at PKR 13.00 per share, 3 Mn shares at PKR 14.50 per share
and 2 Mn shares at PKR 16.00 per share. Therefore, in essence the Bidder has placed one Step Bid comprising
of three Limit Bids at increasing prices. The Application Money would amount to PKR 140.5 Mn, which is the
sum of the products of the number of shares Bid for and the Bid price of each Limit Bid. In such a case, (i)
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Individual Investors shall deposit PKR 140.5 Mn in the Book Building Account as Margin Money which is
100% of PKR 140.5 Mn and (ii) Institutional Investors shall deposit at least PKR 35.12 Mn in the Book Building
Account as Margin Money which is 25% of PKR 140.5 Mn.

RESTRICTIONS:

(i) AN ELIGIBLE INVESTOR SHALL NOT:

(a) MAKE BID BELOW THE FLOOR PRICE AND ABOVE THE UPPER LIMIT OF THE PRICE BAND;

(b) MAKE BID FOR MORE THAN 10% OF THE SHARES ALLOCATED UNDER THE BOOK BUILDING
PORTION

(c) MAKE A BID WITH A PRICE VARIATION OF MORE THAN 10% OF THE PREVAILING INDICATIVE
STRIKE PRICE AS PER REGULATION 10(2)(iii) OF THE PO REGULATIONS

(d) PLACE CONSOLIDATED BID

(e) MAKE MORE THAN ONE BID SEVERALLY OR JOINTLY

(f MAKE DOWNWARD REVISION BOTH IN TERMS OF BID PRICE AND BID VOLUME; PROVIDED
THAT INCASE OF UPWARD REVISION OF THE BID PRICE, THE NUMBER OF SHARES BID FOR
I.E. BID VOLUME MAY BE ADJUSTED ENSURING THAT THE BID AMOUNT OR BID MONEY
REMAINS THE SAME; AND

(g) WITHDRAW BID

(ii) RELATED EMPLOYEES OF THE ISSUER, LEAD MANAGER AND THE BOOK RUNNER SHALL NOT
PARTICIPATE IN THE BIDDING PROCESS.

(iii) NO PERSON SHALL TAKE PART IN THE BOOK BUILDING PROCESS, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY
SEVERALLY OR JOINTLY IN ANY MANNER OR ENGAGE IN ANY ACT OR PRACTICE WHICH
CREATE A FALSE AND MISLEADING APPEARANCE OF ACTIVE BIDDING FOR RAISING OR
DEPRESSING STRIKE PRICE IN THE BOOK BUILDING PROCESS.

(iv) AS PER REGULATION 7(8) OF THE PO REGULATION, THE ASSOCIATES OF THE ISSUER AS
DISCLOSED IN THE PROSPECTUS SHALL NOT IN AGGREGATE MAKE BIDS IN EXCESS OF TEN
(10) PER CENT OF THE SHARES OFFERED THROUGH BOOK BUILDING.

(v) AS PER REGULATION 7(9) OF THE PO REGULATIONS, THE ASSOCIATES OF THE LEAD
MANAGER TO THE ISSUE AND BOOK RUNNER SHALL NOT IN AGGREGATE MAKE BIDS IN
EXCESS OF TEN (10) PERCENT OF THE SHARES OFFERED THROUGH BOOK BUILDING.
PROVIDED THAT IT SHALL NOT APPLY TO SUCH ASSOCIATES OF THE LEAD MANAGER AND
THE BOOK RUNNER THAT ARE FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS, MUTUAL FUNDS AND INSURANCE
COMPANIES.

LIST OF ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND UNDERTAKINGS OF THE ISSUER, NAMES OF RELATED EMPLOYEES OF
THE ISSUER, LEAD MANAGER AND BOOK RUNNERS ARE PROVIDED IN SECTION 3A (vi).

Once the Bidding Period has lapsed and the book has been built, the, Strike Price shall be determined on the
basis of Dutch Auction Method.

Successful Bidders shall be intimated, within one (1) working day of the closing of the Bidding Period, about the
Strike Price and the number of shares provisionally allotted to each of them. The bid money of bidders who have
undertaken to subscribe the unsubscribed retail portion shall remain deposited or blocked till allotment of
unsubscribed retail portion, if any, to them on pro-rata basis. Upon intimation by the Book Runner of the final
allocation, successful institutional bidders shall deposit their balance margin money within (3) days of such
intimation. Where a successful Bidder defaults in payment of shares allotted to him / her / it, the Margin
Money deposited by such Bidder shall be forfeited to the Book Runner.

As per regulation 9(16) of the PO Regulations, the successful bidders shall be issued shares at the time of
issuance of shares to the retail investors. Shares to successful bidders shall be issued only in the form of book-
entry through credit in their respective CDS accounts (Investors Account or Sub-Account). All the bidders shall,
therefore, provide number of their CDS accounts in the bid application.

The Bidders must provide the bank account details in their Bidding form, so that cash dividend can be credited
into their respective International Bank Account Number (IBAN).
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12.1.3. Mechanism for Determination of Strike Price

1. Attheclose of the bidding period, the Strike Price shall be determined on the basis of Dutch Auction Method
by the Designated Institution. Under this methodology, the Strike Price is determined by lowering the price
to the extent that the total shares offered under the Book Building Portion are subscribed.

2. The Order Book shall display the bid prices in a tabular form in descending order along with the number of
shares bid for and the cumulative number of shares at each price level.

3. As per the regulation 9(12) of the PO Regulation, in case all the bids made above the Strike Price are
accommodated and shares are still available for allotment, such available shares will be allotted on
proportionate basis against the bids made at the Strike Price.

The mechanism for determination of the Strike Price can be understood by the following illustration:

1. Number of shares being Issued through the Book Building: 67,735,000 Ordinary Shares

2. Floor Price: PKR 13.00/- per Ordinary Share with maximum price band of 40% i.e. PKR 18.20/-per share
3. Bidding Period: February 17, 2025 to February 18", 2025

4. Bidding Time: 9:00am —5:00pm
5

Bidding Revision Time (Upward Revision only): 9:00am — 5:00pm on all days

Bidder Price (PKR/share) Quantity Cumulative Number of shares Category of Order
Institution A 14.10 2,709,400 2,709,400 Limit Price
Institution B 13.95 4,064,100 6,773,500 Limit Price
HNWI A 13.74 5,689,740 12,463,240 Step Bid
Institution C 13.67 4,876,920 17,340,160 Limit Price
Institution D 13.56 3,793,160 21,133,320 Limit Price
Institution E 13.50 2,709,400 23,842,720 Limit Price
HNWI B 13.48 2,980,340 26,823,060 Limit Price
HNWI A 13.46 6,773,500 33,596,560 Step Bid
Institution F 13.44 3,522,220 37,118,780 Limit Price
Institution G 13.40 6,773,500 43,892,281 Limit Price
Institution H 13.33 5,418,800 49,311,081 Limit Price
HNWI C 13.26 3,522,220 52,833,301 Limit Price
Institution | 13.17 5,418,800 58,252,102 Step Bid
Institution H 132 5,418,800 63,670,902 Lnit-Price
Institution J 13.02 4,064,098 67,735,000 Step Bid
HNWI E 13.00 18,965,800 86,700,800 Limit Price

Strike Price determine B?d has been Total shares bid for

through Dutch Auction revised upwards at and above the

and placed at PKR

Method 13.33

Floor Price

On the basis of the figures provided in the above illustration, according to the Dutch Auction Method, the Strike
Price would be set at PKR 13.02 per share to sell the required quantity of 67,735,000 ordinary shares.

At PKR 14.10 per share, investors are willing to buy 2,709,400 shares. Since 65,025,600 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.
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At PKR 13.95 per share, investors are willing to buy 4,064,100 shares. Since 60,961,500 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.74 per share, investors are willing to buy 5,869,740 shares. Since 55,271,760 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.67 per share, investors are willing to buy 4,876,920 shares. Since 50,394,840 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.56 per share, investors are willing to buy 3,793,160 shares. Since 46,601,680 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.50 per share, investors are willing to buy 2,709,400 shares. Since 43,892,280 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.48 per share, investors are willing to buy 2,980,340 shares. Since 40,911,940 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.46 per share, investors are willing to buy 6,773,500 shares. Since 34,138,440 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.44 per share, investors are willing to buy 3,522,220 shares. Since 30,616,220 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.40 per share, investors are willing to buy 6,773,500 shares. Since 23,842,719 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.33 per share, investors are willing to buy 5,418,800shares. Since 18,423,919 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.26 per share, investors are willing to buy 3,522,220 shares. Since 14,901,699 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.17 per share, investors are willing to buy 5,418,800 shares. Since 9,482,898 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.12 per share, investors are willing to buy 5,418,800 shares. Since 4,064,098 shares are still available,
therefore the price will be set lower.

At PKR 13.02 per share, investors are willing to buy 4,064,098 shares. Since after bidding for 4,064,098 shares
at PKR 13.02 per share, no shares will be available therefore the Strike Price will be set at PKR 13.02 per share
for the entire lot of 67,735,000 shares.

The bidders who have placed bids at prices above the Strike Price (which in this illustration is PKR 13.02 per
share), will become entitled for allotment of shares at the Strike Price and the differential would be refunded.

In case all the bids made above the Strike Price are accommodated and shares are still available for allotment,
such available shares shall be allotted against the bids made at the Strike Price on proportionate basis as per
regulation 9(12) of the PO Regulations.

The Bidders who have made bids below the Strike Price shall not qualify for allotment of shares and the Book
Runner shall intimate the respective banks for unblocking their Bid Money within one (1) working day of the
close of the bidding period.

Since this Issue is being made through 100% book building, as per the regulation 7(4) of the PO Regulation, the
Bidder shall be allowed to place bids for hundred (100%) percent of the issue size and the strike price shall be
the price at which hundred (100%) percent of the issue size is subscribed. However, the successful bidders would
be allotted and issued only seventy-five (75%) percent of the issue size and the remaining twenty-five (25%)
percent would be offered to the retail investor. The bidders shall give an undertaking along with the application
that they would subscribe to the unsubscribed shares, if any, out of the retail portion of the Issue and their
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remaining bid money would remain deposited/ blocked till allotment of such unsubscribed shares to them on
pro-rata basis.

The bid money of bidders shall remain deposited or blocked till allotment of unsubscribed shares, if any, to them
on pro rata basis as per regulation 9(15) of PO Regulation.

In case retail portion of the Issue is fully subscribed, the bid money shall be unblocked within one (1) working
day or refunded within three (3) working days of the closing of the public subscription.

12.1.4. Time Frame for Intimation to the Successful Bidders and Mechanism for Payment of the
Balance Amount by the Successful Bidders

Successful bidders shall be intimated, within one (1) working day of the closing of the bidding period, the Strike
Price and the number of shares provisionally allotted to each of them. Upon intimation by the Book Runner of
the final allocation, successful institutional bidders shall deposit their balance margin money within (3) days of
such intimation. Where a successful Bidder defaults in payment of shares allotted to it, the Margin Money
deposited by such Bidder shall be forfeited to the Book Runner.

12.1.5. Book Runner to the Issue:

Arif Habib Limited has been appointed by the Issuer as Lead Manager & Book Runner to this Issue.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Book Runner

The Book Runner to the issue shall be responsible to:

1. ensure that necessary infrastructure and electronic system is available to accept bids and to conduct the
whole Book Building process in a fair, efficient and transparent manner;

2. ensure blocking of bid and margin money of the Bidders in their respective accounts;

3. the Book Runner must be financially capable for honoring its commitments arising out of defaults by their
investors, if any;

4. use the software provided by the Designated Institution for the Book Building on such terms and conditions
as may be agreed with the Designated Institution through an agreement in writing;

5. ensure that the software used for Book Building is based on Dutch Auction Method for display of the order
book and determination of the strike price;

6. ensure that the bidders can access to the System and can revise their bids electronically using the user ID
and the password;

7. ensure that it has obtained list and Unique Identification Number (UIN) of the associates of the Issuer, the
Lead Manager and all the related employees;

8. ensure that names and UIN of all the persons mentioned under Section 3A(v) are entered and capped in a
manner as prescribed in the PO Regulations before commencement of the Bidding Period;

9. ensure that no bid or bids exceeding ten per cent (10%), in aggregate, is or are made by the associated
companies and associated undertakings of the Issuer;

10. ensure that no bid in aggregate exceeding ten per cent (10%) is made by the associated companies and
associated undertakings of the Lead Manager and the Book Runner;

11. enter into an underwriting agreement with the Issuer with respect to underwriting of the Book Building
portion for covering the default risk;

12. establish bid collection centers at least in Islamabad, all the provincial capitals, Azad Kashmir and Gilgit/
Baltistan;

13. maintain record of all the bids received; and

14. ensure that all the Bids received in the Bid Collection Centers are entered into the system developed by the
Designated Institution for the purpose of Book Building within the prescribed time.
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The Book Runner have established bid collection centers at the following addresses (direct & fax numbers in all

centers).

12.1.6. Bid Collection Centers

The Book Runner has established bid collection centers at the following addresses:

Contact
Officer:
Designation
Direct No.:
Email:

Organization

Postal
Address:

Hamza Rehan

Associate

021 38280273
Hamza.rehan@arifhabibltd.com
Arif Habib Limited

Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road, Karachi

Arif Habib Limited

Usama Hanif

Analyst

021 38280226
usama.hanif@arifhabibltd.com

Arif Habib Limited

Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road,
Karachi

Arif Habib Limited

Contact
Officer:
Designation
Direct No.:
Email:
Organization
Postal
Address:

Muhammad Faizan Qureshi

Analyst

021 38280276
faizan.qureshi@arifhabibltd.com

Arif Habib Limited

Arif Habib Centre, 23 M.T Khan Road, Karachi
Arif Habib Limited

Islamabad

Muhammad Imran

Branch Manager
021-32470920-25 Ext # 4849
bm.khi9909 @meezanbank.com
Meezan Bank Limited

Ground Floor, Room # 7-13, Stock Exchange
Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi.

Contact
Officer:
Designation
Direct No.:
Contact No.:
Email:
Organization
Postal
Address:

Asad Abbas Najfi

Manager

051 289 5341

03455111156
asad.abbasnajfi@arifhabibltd.com

Arif Habib Limited

Office No. 506, 5th Floor, ISE Towers, Jinnah
Avenue, Islamabad

Lahore

Sumaira Subhan Wazir

Branch Manager
051-2894676, 051-2894671-4 Ext # 6674
0301-5686763

bm.isd30@meezanbank.com

Meezan Bank Limited
Room # 218, 2nd Floor, 55-B, ISE Tower,
Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad

Contact
Officer:
Designation
Direct No.:
Contact No.:
Email:
Organization
Postal
Address:

Muhammad Mibsam

Junior Officer

+92-21-38003309

03004574734
muhammad.mibsam@arifhabibltd.com

Arif Habib Limited

Office No. G-5 & G-6, Ground Floor, LSE Plaza,
19 Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Igbal Lahore

Faisalabad

Malik Tayyab Moazam

Branch Manager
042-35870929, 042-5879870-72 Ext # 5001
0301-1189235

bm.lhr01l@meezanbank.com

Meezan Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited, Gulberg Branch
(0201) 60 Main Boulevard, Gulberg, Lahore
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Contact

) Muhammad Naseem Asmat Amer Adnan

Officer:
Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager
Direct: +92 41 8531010-13 041-2603586, 041-2602586-88 Ext # 5212
Contact No.:  0322-8661318 0304-0920999
Email: naseem.asmat@arifhabibltd.com bm.fsd02@meezanbank.com
Organization  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited

) h ard Kotwali Road, Faisalabad (0402) P-66
Postal Office # 4™, 3" Floor, Legacy Tower. Near .

. . . Allama Igbal Road (Kotwali Road),
Address: Kohinoor city, Faisalabad .

Faisalabad
Contact .
. Zeeshan Ahmad Muhammad Ali
Officer:
Designation Assistant Manager Operation Manager
Direct: - 091-2612023, 091-9214001-4 Ext # 6237
Contact No.: 03459381820 0333-9225261
Email: zeeshan.ahmad@arifhabibltd.com om.pew04@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited
GT ROAD BRANCH,

Postal F-16/F-17, 1ST Floor, The Mall Tower, Al-Arif House, Near Al-Amin Hotel, GT
Address: Peshawar Cantt.

ROAD, PESHAWAR.

Contact .
. Alam Akhtar Khalid Mahmood
Officer:
Designation Senior Manager Branch Manager
Direct: +92 61 8000 800, +92 61 451 4412 061-4513672, 061-4785604-7 Ext # 5284
Contact No.: 03216393919 0300-6340448
Email: alam.akhtar@arifhabibltd.com bm.mtn01@meezanbank.com
Organization:  Arif Habib Limited Meezan Bank Limited
Postal Office # 305, 3rd Floor, United Mall, Abdali Plot No0.92,93,94, LMQ Road, Chowk
Address: Road, Multan Nawan Shaher, Multan
Contact . . . .
. Tahir Jamil Qureshi Muhammad Yasir Saleem
Officer:
Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager
Direct: 052-4295301-03, Ext # 5342 0992-344701-03, Ext # 6287
Contact No.:  0300-9614949 0321-9544858
Email: bm.skt01@meezanbank.com bm.abd01@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited Meezan Bank Limited
Postal . . Plot No. 843-846, Manshera Road, Near
Pakka Garha, Kashmir Road Sialkot .
Address: SNGPL Office, Abbottabad
Contact . . . .
. BM # Muhammad Tahir Panezai Kashif Hussain
Officer:
Designation Branch Manager Branch Manager
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Direct: 081-2829755, 081-2829470-72-73 Ext 05822-920461, 058810-42154-56 Ext #

Direct:

#4403 6367
Contact No.:  Cell#0309-7772570, 0334-3888488 0300-8157502
Email: bm.qta0l@meezanbank.com bm.mzd01@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited Meezan Bank Limited
Postal 1-25/12-13, Barrech Complex, Mannan Secretariat Road, Sathra Muzaffarabad,
Address: Chowk, Jinnah Road Quetta Azad Jammu & Kashmir
g:zzz:t Shafgat Wali Khan
Designation Branch Manager
Direct: 05811-458038, 05811-458039-41 Ext # 6448
Contact No.: 0346-9219217
Email: bm.glt9834@meezanbank.com
Organization: = Meezan Bank Limited
Postal Shop# 433, Northern Light Infantry (NLI)
Address: Market, Gilgit, Baltistan

12.1.7 Roles and Responsibilities of the Designated Institution

PSX being provider of the Book Building System (Designated Institution), shall ensure that Book Building System
shall smoothly perform following functions:

1.

10.

Record name, UIN, National Tax Number (NTN), postal and email addresses, land line and cell numbers,
International Bank Account Number (IBAN) and branch address and complete CDS Account Number (i.e.
Investor Account Number or Sub-Account Number).

Provide a mechanism for registration of the bidders before commencement of the bidding period till 5:00
p.m. on the last day of the Bidding Period and require the investors to provide at least such information as
mentioned above.

Generate bidders’ Internet Protocol (IPs) address and keep record of all IP addresses from where the bids
are placed.

Record the number of shares bid for, the Bid Price, type of the bid i.e. Limit Bid or Step Bid, date and time
of the entry of the bid.

Display the bids revised, and date and time of upward revision;

a. Neither allow withdrawal of bid, nor accept the bids placed at a Bid Price that is below the Floor
Price or above 10% of the Indicative Strike Price at any point of time and above the upper limit of
the Price Band.

Display, live the total number of shares offered for sale, the Floor Price, Price Band, total number of bids
received, total number of shares bid for and the indicative Strike Price.

Build an order book showing demand for the shares at various price levels in a descending order along with
the accumulated number of shares bid for and percentage of total shares offered under the Book Building
Portion.

Discover the strike price at the close of the Bidding Period.

Generate alerts for the Bidders via Short Message Service (“SMS”) through cell phones and emails upon
entry of the bid, at the time of upward revision of the bid, upon variation in the Indicative Strike Price and
upon discovery of the strike price; and

ensure that the system must provide the bidders the option to upward revise their bids online or through
the Book Runner during the period permitted under these PO Regulations.

The Designated Institution shall ensure that:
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— identity of the bidder is not displayed; and

— no bid is entered into the System after closing of the Bidding Period.
12.1.8 Roles and Responsibilities of the Issuer:

The Issuer shall ensure that:

1.

5.

The Issuer, its Sponsors, promoters, substantial shareholders, directors and associates shall have no
over dues or defaults, irrespective of the amount, appearing in the report obtained from the credit
information bureau;

The Issuer or its directors, Sponsors or substantial shareholders should not have held the office of the
directors, or have not been Sponsors or substantial shareholders in any company:

I which had been declared defaulter by the securities exchange or futures exchange; or
1. whose TRE certificate has been cancelled or forfeited by the securities exchange; or
1. which has been de-listed by the securities exchange due to non-compliance of its regulations.

The Lead Manager, Book Runner, Underwriter, Balloter and Share Registrar and Banker(s) to the Issue,
are appointed through separate agreements in writing.

It has submitted through its Lead Manager, an application along with draft prospectus for listing of its
securities to the PSX.

The shares shall be issued in book-entry form only.

12.1.9 Opening and Closing of the Registration Period

The Registration period shall be for Four (4) working days as under:

REGISTRATION PERIOD

February 13t, 2025 9:00am to 5:00pm
February 14, 2025 9:00am to 5:00pm
February 17', 2025 9:00am to 5:00pm
February 18, 2025 9:00am to 3:00pm

12.1.10 Opening and Closing of the Bidding Period

The Bidding Period shall be for Two (2) working days as under:

BIDDING PROCESS STARTS ON February 17, 2025
BIDDING PROCESS ENDS ON February 18", 2025

12.1.11 Eligibility to Participate in Bidding

Eligible Investors who can place their bids in the Book Building process include local and foreign Individual and
Institutional Investors whose Bid Amount is not less than PKR 1,000,000/- (PKR One Million only).

12.1.12 Information for Bidders

1. The Prospectus for Issue of Shares has been approved by PSX and SECP.

2. The Prospectus, Registration Forms and the Bidding Forms can be obtained from the Registered Office of
BFAL, AHL and the designated Bid Collection Centers. Prospectus, Registration Forms and Bidding Forms can
also be downloaded from the following websites of the Lead Manager, Book Runner, PSX and the Company
i.e. http://www.arifhabibltd.com, http://www.psx.com.pk and

3. Eligible Investors who are interested to participate in bidding for subscribing the Ordinary Shares of the
Company should approach the Book Runner at the addresses provided in Section 12.1.6 for registration for
submitting their Bids.
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The

THE REGISTRATION FORMS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ON THE PRESCRIBED FORMAT AT THE ADDRESSES
PROVIDED IN SECTION 12.1.6. FOR DETAILS ON THE PROCEDURE OF REGISTRATION PLEASE REFER TO
SECTION 12.1.13.

THE BIDS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ON THE PRESCRIBED BIDDING FORM IN PERSON, THROUGH FAX
NUMBERS GIVEN IN SECTION 12.1.6 OR THROUGH THE ONLINE SYSTEM USING THE USER ID AND
PASSWORD ISSUED AT THE TIME OF REGISTERATION OF ELIGIBLE INVESTOR.

REGISTERED INVESTORS CAN PLACE AND REVISE THEIR BIDS UPWARDS BY ACCESSING THE DESIGNATED
INSTITUTIONS ONLINE PORTAL FOR BOOK BUILDING BY USING THE USER ID AND PASSWORD
COMMUNICATED TO THEM VIA EMAIL BY PSX.

EACH ELIGIBLE INVESTOR SHALL ONLY SUBMIT A SINGLE PAY ORDER, DEMAND DRAFT OR EVIDENCE OF
ONLINE TRANSFER OF MONEY ALONG WITH THE REGISTRATION FORM. IT MAY ALSO BE NOTED THAT ONLY
A SINGLE PAY ORDER, DEMAND DRAFT OR EVIDENCE OF ONLINE TRANSFER OF MONEY SHALL BE ACCEPTED
BY THE BOOK RUNNER ALONG WITH EACH ADDITIONAL PAYMENT FORM.

ELIGIBLE INVESTORS WHO ARE ACCOUNT HOLDERS OF MEEZAN BANK LIMITED (THE BANKERS TO THE
BOOK BUILDING PORTION OF THE ISSUE) CAN USE THE ONLINE TRANSFER FACILITY PROVIDED MEEZAN
BANK LIMITED TO DEPOSIT THEIR BID MONEY TO THE BOOK BUILDING ACCOUNT OPENED AT MEEZAN
BANK LIMITED.

12.1.13 Registration Form and Procedure for Registration

A standardized Registration Form has been prescribed by the Issuer. The Registration Form shall be
submitted, duly filled in, at the Bid Collection Centers in person on addresses given in Section 12.1.6 on the
standard Registration Form. The Registration Form shall be serially numbered at the bid collection centers
and date and time stamped at the time of collection of the same from the Bidders.

Upon completion and submission of the Registration Form, the Bidders are deemed to have authorized the
Issuer to make necessary changes in the Prospectus as would be required for finalizing and publishing the
Supplement to the Prospectus in the newspapers in which Prospectus was published and filing the
Supplement with PSX and SECP, without prior or subsequent notice of such changes to the Bidders.

The registration procedure under the Book Building process is outlined below:

The Registration period shall be for Four (4) working days i.e. February 13%, 2025 to February 17,2025
from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM on February 13, 2025, February 14", 2025, February 17%, 2025 and from
9:00 AM to 3:00 PM on February 18, 2025

The Registration Form shall be issued in duplicate signed by the Bidder and countersigned by the Book
Runner, with the first copy for the Book Runner and the second copy for the Bidder.

The Registration Form shall be duly filled in and signed in duplicate and shall be submitted at the Bid
Collection Centers in person, through representative or through fax on addresses and numbers given
in Section 12.1.6.

Upon registration of the bidders in the System, PSX shall assign and communicate the User ID and Password
to the Bidders via email on the email address provided by them in the Registration Form.

The Book Runner may reject any bid for reasons to be recorded in writing provided the reason of rejection
is disclosed to such bidder. Decision of the Book Runners shall not be challengeable by the Bidder or its
associates.

Bid Amount / Margin Money shall be deposited along with the Registration Form through demand draft,
pay order or online transfer through Bidder’s bank account only. In case of Online Transfer, the Bidders
are requested to submit a bank receipt evidencing transfer of the bid money into the Issuer’s
designated bank account. Please note that cash must not be deposited either directly or through
online transfer in the Issuer’s designated bank account.

pay order shall be made in favor of “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK BUILDING”. For online transfer
the payment shall be made into Account No. “0111155617” maintained at Meezan Bank Limited with the
Account Title “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK BUILDING”. Please note that online transfer facility
shall only be allowed to Meezan Bank Limited customers.
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Please note that third party instruments will not be accepted for Margin Money.

e In case of intra city payment instruments, the bidders shall ensure that the payment instruments
are made “Payable at any Branch”. Intra city payment instruments that are not made “Payable at
any Branch” will not be accepted.

The Book Runners shall collect an amount of 100% of the Application Money as Margin Money in respect of
bids placed by Individual Investors.

The Book Runners shall collect an amount of not less than 25% of the Application Money as Margin Money
in respect of bids placed by Institutional Investors.

The Bidder shall provide a valid email address in the Registration Form so that the relevant ID and password
can be emailed to them upon registration.

The Bidders can use the User ID and Password to independently place and upward revise their bids online.

The successful Bidders shall be issued shares only in the form of book-entry to be credited in their
respective CDS accounts. All the bidders shall, therefore, provide their CDC account numbers in the
bid application and Registration form.

The successful Bidders shall be paid cash dividend, if any announced by the Company, only through direct
credit in their respective International Bank Account Number (IBAN). All the Bidders, therefore, must
provide their IBANs in the Bid Application and Registration Forms.

12.1.14 Procedure for Bidding

1. A standardized Bidding Form has been prescribed by the Issuer.

2. Registered Investors can submit their bids in person or through representatives at the Bid Collection Centers
during the bidding dates or can place their bids online at https://bkb.psx.com.pk using the user ID and
Password received by them over email upon registration with the Book Runner.

3. The bidding procedure under the Book Building process is outlined below:

Bids can be placed either at the “Limit Price” or as a “Step Bid”. The minimum size of a Limit Bid by an Eligible
Investor shall not be less than PKR 1,000,000/- (Rupees One Million) and in case of a Step Bid, the
amount of any step shall also not be less than PKR 1,000,000/- (Rupees One Million).

The investors may place their bids through any of the Bid Collection Centers established pursuant to the
requirements of sub-regulation 10 of regulation 8 of the PO Regulations. Please see Section 12.1.6 for
addresses and contact detail of persons at the Bid Collection Centers.

The persons at the Bid Collection Centers shall vet the bid applications and accept only such bid applications
that are duly filled in and supported by pay order, demand draft or a bank receipt evidencing transfer
of the bid money into the Issuer designated bank account.

On receipt of bid application in accordance with the aforementioned regulation, the Book Runner shall enter
Bid into the System and issue to the Bidder an electronic receipt bearing name of the Book Runner,
name of the bidding center, date and time.

The bidding shall commence from 09:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m. on all days of the Bidding Period. The
bids shall be collected and entered into the system by the Book-Runner till 05:00 p.m. on the last day
of the bidding period.

The Bidders shall have the right to revise their bids upwards any time either manually through the Bid
Collection Centers or electronically through direct access to the system till 05:00 p.m. on the last day
of the Bidding Period.

The Bidders shall NOT make downward revision both in terms of Bid Price and Bid Volume provided that
in case of upward revision of the Bid Price, the number of shares Bid for i.e. Bid Volume may be
adjusted ensuring that the bid amount or bid money remains the same.

The Bidders shall not withdraw the Bids.
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The Book Runner shall collect full amount of the Bid Amount as Margin Money in respect of bids placed by
the High Net worth Individual and not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of the Bid Amount as Margin
Money in respect of bids placed by the Institutional Investors.

Payment of Margin Money shall be accepted only through demand draft, pay order or online transfer and
third-party payment instruments shall not be accepted.

The Book Runner may on its own discretion accept a bid without Margin Money, provide the Book Building
Portion is fully underwritten at least at the Floor Price by the Book Runner.

The Book Runner may reject any bid for reasons to be recorded in writing provided the reason of rejection
is disclosed to such bidder. The decision of the Book Runner shall not be challengeable by the Bidder or
its associates.

PSX shall, through the system, display live throughout the bidding period an order book in descending order
showing demand for shares at various prices and the accumulated number of shares bid for along with
percentage of the total shares issued (the “Order Book”). The Order Book should also show the revised
bids and the bids withdrawn. The Order Book shall be accessible through websites of PSX.

At the close of the Bidding Period, the Strike Price shall be determined on the basis of the Dutch Auction
Method.

Once the Strike Price is determined, all those Bidders whose bids are found successful shall become entitled
for allotment of shares.

The Bidders who have made bids at prices above the Strike Price shall be allotted shares at the Strike Price.

In case all the bids made above the Strike Price are accommodated and shares are still available for
allotment, such available shares will be allotted against the bids made at the Strike Price on
proportionate basis as per regulation 9(12) of PO Regulations. The procedure for allotment of shares to
successful Bidders is mentioned in Section 12.1.22 of the Prospectus.

The Bidders who have made bids below the Strike Price shall not qualify for allotment of any Ordinary Shares
and the Book Runner shall intimate their respective banks for unblocking their Bid Money within One
(1) working day of the close of the bidding period.

Successful bidders shall be intimated, within one (1) working day of the closing of the bidding period, the
Strike Price and the number of shares provisionally allotted to each of them. The successful bidders
shall be intimated by the Book Runner of their final allocation after subscription of the retail portion of
the Issue.

In case the retail portion of the Issue is not fully subscribed, the unsubscribed shares shall be allotted to the
successful bidders on pro-rata basis.

In case the retail portion of the Issue is oversubscribed, the allotment shall be made in the manner given in
Section 13.1.12.

Upon intimation by the Book Runner of final allocation, successful institutional bidders shall deposit their
balance margin within (3) days of such intimation. Where a successful Bidder defaults in payment of
shares allotted to it, the Margin Money deposited by such Bidder shall be forfeited to the Book
Runner.

Final allotment of shares out of the Book Building Portion shall be made after receipt of full subscription
money from the successful Bidders; however, shares to such Bidders shall be credited at the time of
credit of shares out of the retail portion.

The successful Bidders shall be issued shares only in Book Entry Form to be credited in their respective CDS
Accounts. All the bidders shall, therefore, provide their CDS Account Numbers in the Registration Form.

The Designated Institution shall continue to display on its website, the data pertaining to the Book Building
and determination of the Strike Price for a period of at least three working days after closure of the
Bidding Period.

The Book-Runner shall ensure that subscription money received against the bids accepted shall not be
released to the Issuer by the Banker to the Book Building Portion until:
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e credit of all shares allotted to retail investors; and
e issuance of NOC by the PSX.

12.1.15 Payment for Book Building Portion

The Issuer has opened a bank account for collection of applications” money related to Book Building Portion.

The Bidders shall draw demand draft or pay order in favor of “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK
BUILDING” or online transfer of the Bid money into the respective Book Building account and submit the
demand draft, pay order or bank receipt at the designated Bid Collection Centers either in person or through
facsimile along with a duly filled in Registration Form.

For online transfer the payment shall be made into the Account “0111155617” being maintained at Meezan
Bank Limited with the Account Title “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK BUILDING”. Please note that online
transfer facility shall only be allowed for Meezan Bank Limited customers.

CASH MUST NOT BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BIDDING FORM/REGISTRATION FORM AT THE BID COLLECTION
CENTER NOR DEPOSITED DIRECTLY OR VIA ONLINE TRANSFER IN THE ISSUER’S DESIGNATED BANK ACCOUNT.
BID AMOUNT MUST BE PAID THROUGH PAY ORDER, BANK DRAFT OR ONLINE TRANSFER DRAWN / TRANSFER
IN FAVOR OF “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK BUILDING” IN A MANNER ACCEPTABLE TO THE BOOK
RUNNER. PLEASE NOTE THAT THIRD PARTY PAYMENT INSTRUMENTS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED.

The Collection Banks shall keep and maintain the bid money in the said account. Once the shares allotted under
the retail portion have been credited, the Lead Manager, after obtaining NOC from PSX, may request in writing
to the Banker to the Book Building Portion for transfer of the money of the successful and accepted applications
to the Issuer’s account(s).

PAYMENT PROCEDURE
The payment procedures for a Limit Bid or a Step Bid are explained below:
PAYMENT FOR LIMIT BID

If investors are placing their bids as a Limit Bid, then they shall deposit the Margin Money based on the number
of shares they are bidding for at their stated bid price.

For instance, if an investor is applying for 1 Mn shares at a price of PKR 13.00/- per share, then the total
Application Money would amount to PKR 13.00 Mn. In such a case, (i) Individual Investor shall deposit PKR 13.00
Mn in the Book Building account as the bid amount which is 100% of PKR 13.00 Mn; and (ii) Institutional Investor
shall deposit at least PKR 3.25 Mn in the Book Building account as the Margin Money which is 25% of PKR
13.00Mn.

PAYMENT FOR STEP BID

If an investor is placing a Step Bid which is a series of Limit Bids at increasing prices, then he/she/it shall deposit
the Margin Money / bid money based on the total number of shares he/she/it is bidding for at his/her/its stated
bid prices.

For instance, if the investor bids for 1 Mn shares at PKR 13.00/- per share, 0.6 Mn shares at PKR 13.31/- per
share and 0.5 Mn shares at PKR 13.55/- per share, then in essence the investor has placed one Step Bid
comprising three limit bids at increasing prices. The Application Money would amount to PKR 27.61 Mn, which
is the sum of the products of the number of shares bid for and the bid price of each limit bid. In such a case, (i)
Individual Investors shall deposit PKR 27.61 Mn in the Book Building Account as Margin Money which is 100% of
PKR 27.61 Mn and (ii) Institutional Investors shall deposit at least PKR 6.94 Mn in the Book Building Account as
Margin Money which is 25% of PKR 27.61 Mn.

12.1.16 Payment by Foreign Investors

Companies are permitted under paragraph 6 (with specific reference to sub para (B) (l)) of Chapter 20 of the
State Bank of Pakistan’s (“SBP”) Foreign Exchange Manual (the “Manual”) to issue shares on repatriation basis
to non-residents who are covered under paragraph 6 (A) of Chapter 20 of the Manual, i.e. (I) A Pakistan national
resident outside Pakistan, (Il) A person who holds dual nationality including Pakistan nationality, whether living
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in or outside Pakistan, (Ill) A foreign national, whether living in or outside Pakistan and (IV) A firm (including a
partnership) or trust or mutual fund registered and functioning outside Pakistan, excluding entities owned or
controlled by a foreign government, provided the issue price, is paid in foreign exchange through normal banking
channel by remittance from abroad or out of foreign currency account maintained by the subscriber/purchaser
in Pakistan.

Non-residents who wish to bid for the subscription of shares being offered via book building can remit the
subscription money through an Authorized Dealer directly to the book building accounts opened by the
Company as given in of this Prospectus, however, those non-residents who wish to subscribe shares out of the
general public portion may contact any of the bankers to the Issue (retail portion) for taking instructions
regarding payment of subscription money against shares offered to general public / retail investors. List of
bankers to the Issue for retail portion is available on page 1 of this Prospectus.

The shares issued to non-resident shareholders shall be intimated by the Company to the designated Authorized
Dealer, along with the documents prescribed in the Manual within 30 days of issue.

Non-residents who are covered under paragraph 6 (A) of Chapter 20 of the Manual do not require SBP’s approval
to invest in the shares being issued in terms of this Prospectus. Furthermore, under paragraph 7 (vii) of Chapter
20 of the Manual the Authorized Dealer shall allow repatriation of dividends, net of applicable taxes and
proceeds on sale of listed shares (i.e. divestment proceeds) not exceeding the market value less
brokerage/commission on provision of prescribed documents.

Payments made by non-residents shall be supported by proof of receipt of foreign currency through normal
banking channels. Such proof shall be submitted along with the Application by the non-residents.

12.1.17 Procedure for Rejection of Bids

In terms of regulation 9(7) of the PO Regulations, the Book Runner may reject any Bid placed by a Bidder for
reasons to be recorded in writing provided the reason of rejection is disclosed to such Bidder. Decision of the
Book Runner shall not be challengeable by the Bidder or any of its associates.

12.1.18 Time Frame for Upward Revision of Bids by the Bidders

The registered investors may revise their Bids upwards any time either manually through the Bid Collection
Centers or electronically through direct access to the system till 05:00 p.m. on the last day of the Bidding Period.

An investor will not be allowed to place or revise a bid with a price variation of more than 10% of the prevailing
indicative strike price. NO DOWNWARD REVISION BOTH IN TERMS OF BID PRICE AND BID VOLUME IS
ALLOWED PROVIDED THAT IN CASE OF UPWARD REVISION OF THE BID PRICE, THE NUMBER OF SHARES BID
FOR L.E. BID VOLUME MAY BE ADJUSTED ENSURING THAT THE BID AMOUNT OR BID MONEY REMAINS THE
SAME. HOWEVER, NO WITHDRAWAL OF BID IS ALLOWED.

12.1.19 Ten Percent (10%) Price Variation

An investor will not be allowed to place or upward revise a bid with a price variation of more than ten percent
(10%) of the prevailing Indicative Strike Price subject to Floor Price and Price Band i.e. Bid Price must not be
below the Floor Price and must not exceed 40% of the Floor Price which is upper limit of Floor Price. Please note
that the Indicative Strike Price may not be constant and may keep on changing during the bidding period.
Therefore, the 10% range will also change with the changing Indicative Strike Price.

For Example, if the Floor Price is PKR 13.00/- per share and Indicative Strike Price at any given point in time
during the bidding period is PKR 13.00/- per share, registered bidders may place or revise their bids at/to any
price between PKR 13.00/- per share to PKR 14.30/- per share. If at any given point in time during the bidding
period, the Indicative Strike Price changes from PKR 13.00/- per share to PKR 14.3/- per share, the registered
bidders may place or upward revise their bids at/to between PKR 14.3/- per share to PKR 15.73/- per share.

Please note that the 10% range on the lower side cannot go below the floor price and cannot exceed the upper
cap of 40% of the floor price i.e. PKR 18.31/- per share. The price range of 10% applicable at any given point in
time during the bidding period will also be displayed on the bid screen available at the website of PSX.
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12.1.20 Restriction on Downward Revision or Withdrawal of Bids by the Bidder

Under regulation (10) (2)(vi) of the PO Regulations the Bidders shall not make downward revision both in terms
of Bid Price and Bid Volume provided that in case of upward revision of the Bid Price, the number of shares Bid
for i.e. Bid Volume may be adjusted ensuring that the bid amount or bid money remains the same.

Under regulation (10) (2)(vii) of the PO Regulations the Bidders shall not be allowed to withdraw Bids.

12.1.21 Procedure for Withdrawal of Issue

1. In accordance with regulation 8(16) of the PO Regulations, in case the Issuer does not receive bids for the
number of shares allocated under the Book Building Portion at the Floor Price, the Issue shall be cancelled
and the same shall be immediately intimated to the Commission and PSX and the Margin Money shall be
refunded to the bidders immediately but not later than three (3) working days of the closing of the Bidding
Period.

2. In accordance with regulation 8(17) of the PO Regulation, the Book Building process will be considered as
cancelled if the total number of bids received is less than forty (40).

12.1.22 Basis of Allotment of Shares

Bidders shall be allowed to place bids for one hundred percent (100%) of the Issue size and the Strike Price shall
be the price at which one hundred percent (100%) of the Issue is subscribed via the Dutch Auction Method.

Once the Strike Price is determined, all those Bidders whose bids have been found successful shall be
provisionally allotted 75% of the Issue size i.e. 50,801,250 Ordinary Shares.

In order to be a successful Bidder in the Book Building process, the bid price would either be higher than the
Strike Price or at the Strike Price.

For allocation of shares via Book Building, priority shall be given to the bids placed at the highest price. The
bidders, who have made bids at prices above the Strike Price, will be provisionally allocated 75% of the shares
successfully bid for, at the Strike Price. The differential between the bid price and Strike Price, would be refunded
based on the total number of shares bid for.

Bidders who had placed Bids at the Strike Price will be provisionally allotted seventy-five (75%) of the shares
successfully bid for, at the Strike Price, on proportionate basis.

Bids made below the Strike Price shall not qualify for allotment of shares and their Margin Money will be
refunded.

Final allotment of shares to the successful bidders would be determined after determination of the public
response to the Retail Portion of the Issue.

In the event the retail portion is undersubscribed, the unsubscribed portion would be allotted to the successful
bidders, on a pro-rata basis as per regulation 11(5) of the PO Regulation. Excess funds, if any, would be refunded
to the bidders after allotment of the unsubscribed shares.

Final allotment of shares out of the Book Building portion shall be made after subscription of the retail portion
and receipt of full subscription money from the successful Bidders; however, shares to such Bidders shall be
issued simultaneously with issuance of shares to retail investors, in the form of book-entry to be credited in their
respective CDS Accounts. All the Bidders shall, therefore, provide number of their respective CDS Accounts in
the Bid application as required under regulation 9(16) of the PO Regulations.

12.1.23 Refund of Margin Money

The Bidders who have made Bids below the Strike Price shall not qualify for allotment of securities and the Book
Runner shall intimate their respective banks for unblocking, where required, their Bid Money within one (1)
working day of the close of the bidding period as required under regulation 9(13) of the PO Regulations and
under regulation 8(16) the refunds, where required to such bidders shall be made not later than three (3)
working days from the close of the bidding period.
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The bid money of bidders who have undertaken to subscribe the unsubscribed retail portion shall remain
deposited or blocked till allotment of shares of unsubscribed retail portion, if any, to them on pro-rata basis.

12.1.24 Publication of Supplement to the Prospectus

In accordance with regulation 11(1) of the PO Regulations of the closing of the Bidding Period, Supplement to
the Prospectus shall be published at least in all those newspapers in which the Prospectus was earlier published
and also disseminated through PSX within one working day

The Supplement to the Prospectus would contain information relating to the Strike Price, the Offer Price and
Category-wise breakup of the successful Bidders along with the number of shares provisionally allocated to
them. Format of the Supplement is given on page 2 of this Prospectus.

Public subscription for the shares shall be held at any date(s) within thirty days (30) of the publication of the
Prospectus but not earlier than seven (7) days of such publication.
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13. APPLICATION AND ALLOTMENT INSTRUCTION FOR RETAIL PORTION

13.1.1 Eligible Investors Include:
1. Pakistani citizens resident in or outside Pakistan or Persons holding dual nationalities including a Pakistani
nationality;
2. Foreign Nationals whether living in or outside Pakistan

3. Companies, bodies corporate or other legal entities incorporated or established in or outside Pakistan (to
the extent permitted by their constitutive documents and existing regulations, as the case may be);

4. Mutual Funds, Provident / Pension / Gratuity Funds / Trusts, (subject to the terms of the Trust Deed and
existing regulations); and

5. Branches in Pakistan of companies and bodies corporate incorporated outside Pakistan.

APPLICATION MUST BE MADE ON SECP’s APPROVED APPLICATION FORM OR A LEGIBLE PHOTOCOPY THEREOF
ON A PAPER OF A4 SIZE WEIGHING AT LEAST 62 GM

13.1.2 Copies of Prospectus

Copies of this Prospectus and Applications Forms can be obtained from members of PSX, the Bankers to the
Issue and their branches, the Lead Manager, the Book Runner to the Issue and registered office of the Company.
The Prospectus and the Application Form can also be downloaded from the following websites:

http://www.arifhabibltd.com, https://barkatfrisian.com/, www.cdceipo.com, and http://www.psx.com.pk

Shares against the successful and accepted applications shall be issued in the Book Entry Form only and will
be credited into the Applicants CDS Account mentioned in the Application. The applicants, therefore, must
provide detail of their CDS Account (investors Account or Sub-Account) in the Shares Subscription Form.
Investors who do not have CDS account may visit www.cdcpakistan.com for information and details.
For further guidance and queries regarding opening of CDS account, investors may contact CDC at
phone Number: 0800 — 23275 (CDCPL) and e-mail: info@cdcpak.com.

NAMES(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) MUST BE WRITTEN IN FULL BLOCK LETTERS, IN ENGLISH AND SHOULD NOT BE
ABBREVIATED.

ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BEAR THE NAME AND SIGNATURE CORRESPONDING WITH THE ONE RECORDED
WITH THE APPLICANT’S BANKER. IN CASE OF DIFFERENCE OF SIGNATURE WITH THE BANK AND
COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD (CNIC) OR THE NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD FOR OVERSEAS
PAKISTANI (NICOP) OR PASSPORT, BOTH THE SIGNATURES SHOULD BE AFFIXED ON THE APPLICATION FORM.

13.1.3 Opening and Closing of the Subscription List

The subscription list will open at the commencement of banking hours on February 24, 2025 and will close on
February 25, 2025 at the close of banking hours. Please note that online applications can be submitted 24
hours during the subscription period which will close at 12:00 midnight on February 25, 2025

13.1.4 E-IPO System

In order to facilitate investors, PSX has developed an e-IPO System (“PES”) through which electronic applications
can be filed for subscription of securities offered to the general public. PES can be accessed through the web
link (https://eipo.psx.com.pk). 1Link through Memo dated August 22, 2024 has instructed all its member banks
to remove the limits on transfer of funds for transactions executed through e - IPO platforms. There is no
transaction limit on E- banking channels for e applications
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Investors can register themselves online at any time 24/7. On behalf of an investors, registration can also be
done by:

¢ the TREC Holder with whom the investor has a sub-account, or

e the Bank with whom the investor has a bank account.
An e-IPO application can be filed by an investor during the public subscription period which shall close at
midnight on February 25, 2025. On behalf of investors, e-IPO applications can also be filed by:

e the TREC Holder with whom the investor has a sub-account, or

e the Bank with whom the investor has a bank account.
Subscription money can be paid by the investor through 1LINK or NIFT. On behalf of investors, subscription
money can also be paid by:

e the TREC Holder with whom the investor has a sub-account, or

e the Bank with whom the investor has a bank account.
In case of queries regarding PES, investors may contact Mr. Farrukh Shahzad at phone number: 111-001-122 or

(021)-35274401-10, and email: itss@psx.com.pk Tutorial for PES can be found on the weblink i.e.,
https://eipo.psx.com.pk/EIPO/home/index.

(i) Centralized E-IPO System (CES):

CES can be accessed through the web link (www.cdceipo.com). Payment of subscription money can be made
through 1LINK’s member banks available for CES.

For making application though CES, investors must be registered with CES. Registration can be done under a self-
registration process by filling the CES registration form, which is available 24/7 all throughout the year.

In addition to the above, investors/sub-account holder(s) can request their respective TREC Holders who are
Participants in Central Depository System (CDS) to make electronic subscription on their behalf for subscription
of securities of a specific company by authorizing (adding the details of) their respective Participant(s) in CES.
Consequently, authorized Participants will electronically subscribe on behalf of their sub-account holder(s) in
securities offered through Initial Public Offerings and will also be able to make payment against such electronic
subscriptions through all the available channels mentioned on CES only after receiving the subscription amount
from the sub-account holder(s). To enable this feature, the CDS Participant may request CDC to activate his ID
on the CES portal. For queries regarding CES, investors may contact CDC at phone number: 0800 — 23275 (CDCPL)
and e-mail: info@cdcpak.com or contact Mr. Owais Anwer at Phone 021-111-111-500 Ext 500 and email:
owais_anwer@cdcpak.com.

13.1.5 Applications made by Individual Investors

1. In case of individual investors, an attested photocopy of CNIC (in case of Resident Pakistanis) / NICOP or
Passport (in case of Non-Resident Pakistanis) as the case may be, should be enclosed and the number of
CNIC / NICOP / Passport should be written against the name of the applicant. Copy of these documents can
be attested by any Federal / Provincial Government Gazette Officer, Councilor, Oath Commissioner or Head
Master of High School or bank manager in the country of applicant’s residence.

2. Original CNIC / NICOP / Passport, along with one attested photocopy, must be produced for verification to
the Banker(s) to the Issue and the applicant’s banker (if different from the Banker to the Issue) at the time
of presenting the application. The attested photocopy will, after verification, be retained by the bank branch
along with the application.

Aforementioned requirements pertaining to CNIC/NICOP only applies to physical applications and would
not be required in E-IPO facility.

13.1.6 Applications made by Institutional Investors
1. Applications made by companies, corporate bodies, mutual funds, provident / pension / gratuity funds /

trusts and other legal entities must be accompanied by an attested photocopy of their Memorandum and
Articles of Association or equivalent instrument / document. Where applications are made by virtue of
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10.

Power of Attorney, the same should also be submitted along with the application. Any Federal / Provincial
Government Gazette Officer, Councilor, Bank Manager, Oath Commissioner and Head Master of High School
or bank manager in the country of applicant’s residence can attest copies of such documents.

Attested photocopies of the documents mentioned in Section 13.1.5 must be produced for verification to
the Banker(s) to the Issue and the applicant’s banker (if different from the Banker(s) to the Issue) at the
time of presenting the application. The attested copies, will after verification, be retained by the bank
branch along with the application.

13.1.7 Additional Instructions for Investors

Only one application will be accepted against each account, however, in case of joint account, one
application may be submitted in the name of each joint account holder.

Joint application in the name of more than two persons will not be accepted. In case of joint application
each applicant must sign the application, form and submit attested copies of their CNICs / NICOP / Passport.
The share certificates will be dispatched to the person whose name appears first on the application form
while in case of CDS, it will be credited to the CDS account mentioned on the face of the form and where
any amount is refundable, in whole or in part, the same will be refunded by cheque or other means by post,
or through the bank where the application was submitted, to the person named first on the application
form, without interest, profit or return. Please note that joint application will be considered as a single
application for the purpose of allotment of shares.

Subscription money must be paid by cheque drawn on applicant’s own bank account or pay order/bank
draft payable to one of the Bankers to the Issue (Account Titles given below) and crossed “A/C PAYEE
ONLY”.

fl:) Bank Name Account Title

1 Meezan Bank Limited BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LTD-GENERAL PUBLIC
SUBSCRIPTION

5 Faysal bank Limited BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LTD-GENERAL PUBLIC
SUBSCRIPTION

3 Habib Bank Limited BFAL - GENERAL PUBLIC SUBSCRIPTION

4 Habib Metropolitan Bank BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LTD -GENERAL PUBLIC
Limited SUBSCRIPTION

S BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LTD -GENERAL PUBLIC
5 Bank Al Habib Limited SUBSCRIPTION

For the applications made through pay order / bank draft, it would be permissible for a Bankers to the Issue
to deduct the bank charges while making refund of subscription money to unsuccessful applicants through
pay order / bank draft individually for each application.

The applicant should have at least one bank account with any of the commercial banks. The applicants not
having a bank account at all (non-account holders) are not allowed to submit application for subscription of
shares.

Applications are not to be made by minors and / or persons of unsound mind.

Applicants should ensure that the bank branch, to which the application is submitted, completes the
relevant portion of the Application Form.

Applicants should retain the bottom portion of their Application Forms as provisional acknowledgement of
submission of their applications. This should not be construed as an acceptance of the application or a
guarantee that the applicant will be allotted the number of shares for which the application has been made.

Making of any false statements in the application or willfully embodying incorrect information therein shall
make the application fictitious and the applicant or the bank shall be liable for legal action.

Bankers to the Issue are prohibited to recover any charges from the subscribers for collecting subscription
applications. Hence, the applicants are advised not to pay any extra charges to the Bankers to the Issue.

Page 181 of 196



Prospectus | Barkat Frisian Agro Limited @

11. It would be permissible for a Bankers to the Issue to refund subscription money to unsuccessful applicants
having an account in its bank by crediting such account instead of remitting the same by cheque, pay order
or bank draft. Applicants should, therefore, not fail to give their bank account numbers.

12. Submission of false and fictitious applications is prohibited and such applications’ money may be forfeited
under Section 87(8) of the Securities Act, 2015.

13.1.8 Additional Instructions for Foreign / Non-Resident Investors

1. In case of foreign investors who are not individuals, applications must be accompanied with a letter on
applicant's letterhead stating the legal status of the applicant, place of incorporation and operations and
line of business. A copy of Memorandum of Association or an equivalent document should also be enclosed,
if available. Where applications are made by virtue of Power of Attorney, the same must be lodged with the
application. Copies of these documents can be attested by the bank manager in the country of applicant's
residence.

2. Foreign / Non-resident investors should follow payment instructions given in Section 12.1.16 of this
Prospectus.

13.1.9 Code of Occupation of Investors/Applicants

01 Business

02 Business Executive
03 Service

04 Housewife

05 Household

06 Professional

07 Student

08 Agriculturist

09 Industrialist

10 Other

13.1.1 Nationality Code

Name of Country

001 US.A

002 U.K

003 U.A.E

004 K.S.A

005 Oman

006 Bangladesh
007 China

008 Bahrain
009 Other

13.1.10 Minimum Amount of Application and Basis of Allotment of Shares of the Issue

The basis and conditions of transfer of shares to the General Public shall be as follows:

1. Application for shares must be made for 500 shares or in multiples of 500 shares only. Applications which
are neither for 500 shares nor for multiples of 500 shares shall be rejected.

2.  The minimum amount of application for subscription of 500 shares is the Issue Price x 500 shares.
3. Application for shares below the minimum amount shall not be entertained.

4. SUBMISSION OF FALSE AND FICTITIOUS APPLICATIONS IS PROHIBITED AND SUCH APPLICATIONS’ MONEY
MAY BE FORFEITED UNDER SECTION 87(8) OF THE SECURITIES ACT, 2015.
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5. If the shares offered to the general public are sufficient to accommodate all applications, all applications
shall be accommodated.

6. If the shares applied for by the general public are in excess of the shares allocated to them, the distribution
shall be made by computer balloting, in the presence of the representative(s) of PSX in the following
manner:

If all applications for 500 shares can be accommodated, then all such applications shall be accommodated
first. If all applications for 500 shares cannot be accommodated, then balloting will be conducted among
applications for 500 shares only.

If all applications for 500 shares have been accommodated and shares are still available for allotment, then
all applications for 1,000 shares shall be accommodated. If all applications for 1,000 shares cannot be
accommodated, then balloting will be conducted among applications for 1,000 shares only.

If all applications for 500 shares and 1,000 shares have been accommodated and shares are still available
for allotment, then all applications for 1,500 shares shall be accommodated. If all applications for 1,500
shares cannot be accommodated, then balloting will be conducted among applications for 1,500 shares
only.

If all applications for 500 shares, 1,000 shares and 1,500 shares have been accommodated and shares are
still available for allotment, then all applications for 2,000 shares shall be accommodated. If all
applications for 2,000 shares cannot be accommodated, then balloting will be conducted among
applications for 2,000 shares only.

After allotment in the above-mentioned manner, the balance shares, if any, shall be allotted in the following
manner:

e If the remaining shares are sufficient to accommodate each application for over 2,000 shares,
then 2,000 shares shall be allotted to each applicant and remaining shares shall be allotted on
pro-rata basis.

e If the remaining shares are not sufficient to accommodate all the remaining applications for over
2,000 shares, then balloting shall be conducted for allocation of 2,000 shares to each successful
applicant.

7. If the Issue is over-subscribed in terms of amount only, then allotment of shares shall be made in the
following manner:

First preference will be given to the applicants who applied for 500 shares;

Next preference will be given to the applicants who applied for 1,000 shares;

Next preference will be given to the applicants who applied for 1,500 shares;

Next preference will be given to the applicants who applied for 2,000 shares; and then

After allotment of the above, the balance shares, if any, shall be allotted on pro rata basis to the applicants
who applied for more than 2,000 shares.

8. Allotment of shares will be subject to scrutiny of applications for subscription of shares.
9. Applications, which do not meet the above requirements, or application which are incomplete, will be
rejected.

13.1.11 Basis of Allotment

The basis and conditions of transfer of shares to the General Public shall be as follows:

1. The minimum value of application will be calculated as Issue Price x 500 shares. Application for amount
below the minimum value shall not be entertained.

2. Application for shares must be made for 500 shares or in multiple of 500 shares only. Applications which
are neither for 500 shares nor for multiples of 500 shares shall be rejected.
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3. Allotment / Transfer of shares to successful applicants shall be made in accordance with the allotment
criteria / instructions disclosed in the Prospectus.

4. Allotment of shares shall be subject to scrutiny of applications in accordance with the criteria disclosed in
the Prospectus and / or the instructions by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

5. Applications, which do not meet the above requirements, or applications which are incomplete will be
rejected. The applicants are, therefore, required to fill in all data fields in the Application Form.

6. The Company will credit shares in the CDS Accounts of the successful applicants.

13.2 REFUND/UNBLOCKING OF SUBSCRIPTION MONEY TO UNSUCCESSFUL APPLICANTS

As per the regulation 11(4) of the PO Regulations, within five (5) working days of the close of public subscription
period the Shares shall be allotted and issued against the accepted and successful applications and the
subscription money of the unsuccessful applicants shall be unblocked/ refunded.

As per sub-section (2) of Section 68 of the Companies Act, if refund as required under sub-section (1) of Section
68 of the Companies Act is not made within the time specified hereinabove, the directors of the company shall
be jointly and severally liable to repay that money with surcharge at the rate of two percent (2%) for every
month or part thereof from the expiration of the fifteenth day and, in addition, shall be liable to a penalty of
level 3 on the standard scale as defined in Section 479 of the Companies Act. Provided that the directors of the
Company shall not be liable if it proves that the default in making the refund was not on their own account and
was not due to any misconduct or negligence on their part.

In case retail portion of the Issue remains unsubscribed, the unsubscribed shares shall be allotted to the
successful bidders at the strike price on pro-rata basis.

13.3 ISSUE AND CREDIT OF SHARES

Within five (5) working days of the closing of public subscription period, the shares shall be allotted, issued and
credited against the accepted and successful applications and the subscription money of the unsuccessful
applicants shall be unblocked/refunded, as required under regulation 11(4) of the PO Regulations. Shares will
be issued only in the book-entry form and will be credited into the respective CDS Accounts of the successful
applicants. Therefore, the applicants must provide their CDS Account Number in the Shares Subscription
Applicant.

If the Company defaults in complying with the above requirements, it shall pay PSX a penalty of PKR 5,000 per
day for every day during which the default continues. PSX may also notify the fact of such default and name of
the Company by notice and also by publication in its ready-board quotation of the Stock Exchange.

Name of the Company will also be notified to the TRE Certificate Holders of the PSX and placed on the web site
of the PSX.

13.4 TRANSFER OF SHARES

The shares shall be transferred in accordance with the provisions of Section 74 of the Companies Act read with
Section 75 thereof and the Central Depositories Act, 1997 and the CDCPL Regulations.

13.5 LIST OF BANKERS TO THE ISSUE

01 Habib Bank Limited

02 Meezan Bank Limited

03 Faysal Bank Limited

04 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
05 Bank AL Habib
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13.6 MINIMUM AMOUNT OF APPLICATION

As per PO Regulations, the minimum amount of application shall not be less than the “Issue Price x 500 shares”.

13.7 INTEREST OF SHAREHOLDERS

None of the holders of the Issued shares of the Company have any special or other interest in the property or
profits of the Company other than their capacity as holder of Ordinary shares except from the shareholders who
are also the Director of the company. Directors of the Company have interest in receiving remuneration for their
role as Directors.

13.8 ELIGBILITY FOR DIVIDEND

The ordinary shares issued shall rank pari-passu with the existing shares in all matters of the Company, including
the right to such bonus or right issues, and dividend as may be declared by the Company subsequent to the date
of issue of such shares.

13.9 DEDUCTION OF ZAKAT

Income distribution will be subject to deduction of Zakat at source, pursuant to the provisions of Zakat and Ushr
Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) as may be applicable from time to time except where the Ordinance does not
apply to any shareholder or where such shareholder is otherwise exempt or has claimed exemption from
payment / deduction of Zakat in terms of and as provided in that Ordinance.

13.10 CAPITAL GAINS TAX

Capital gains derived from the sale of listed securities are taxable in the following manner under section 37A of
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 effective from July 1, 2024:

Investors Appearing Investors Not Appearing
0%

Where the securities are acquired before 0%
the first day of July, 2013.
Where the securities are acquired on or
2 after the first day of July, 2013 but on or 12.5% 25.0%
before the 30th day of June, 2022.
Where the securities are acquired on or after the first day of July, 2022 but on or before the 30"
day of June, 2024, below reduced rates of tax on capital gain arising on disposal shall apply:
1. Where holding period does not exceed

one year 15.0% 15.0%
2. Where holding period exceed one year 12.5% 12.5%
but does not exceed two years
3. Where holding period exceed two 10.0% 10.0%
years but does not exceed three years
4. Where holding period exceed three 75% 75%
years but does not exceed four years
5. Where holding period ex?eed four 5.0% 5.0%
years but does not exceed five years
6. Where holding period exc.eed five 25% 25%
years but does not exceed six years
7. Where holding period exceed six years 0.0% 0.0%
4 Where the securities are acquired on or after the first day of July, 2024 onwards:
Where the securities are acquired on or As per rates specified in
after the first day of July, 2024 and 15.0% First Schedule, Part 1,
onwards. Division 1 for individuals

and association of persons
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and Division Il for
companies.

Provided that the rate of
tax for individuals and
association of persons shall
not be less than 15% in any
case.

13.11 WITHHOLDING TAX ON DIVIDENDS

Dividend distribution to shareholders will be subject to withholding tax under section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 as specified in Part Ill Division | of the First Schedule of the said ordinance or any time-to-time
amendments therein. In terms of the provision of Section 8 of the said ordinance, said deduction at source, shall
be deemed to be full and final liability in respect of such profits in case of persons only. Applicable withholding
tax rate on dividend is 15% for filer and 30% for non-filer.

13.12 TAX ON BONUS SHARES

As per section 236 of the Finance Act 2023, bonus shares shall only be issued to shareholder, if a Company
collects from shareholder, tax equal to 10% of the value of the bonus shares issued.

13.13 INCOME TAX

The income of the Company is subject to Income Tax under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

13.14 DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, carry forwards of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority.

13.15 SALES TAX

General Sales Tax is applicable as per Sales Tax Act, 1990 on supplies and services. Sales tax is applicable on
services as per Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012 by Punjab Revenue Authority. Sales tax is applicable on
services as per Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011 by Sindh Revenue Board.

13.16 SALES TAX ON SALE / PURCHASE OF SHARES
Under the Constitution of Pakistan and Articles 49 of the 7th NFC Award, the Government of Sindh, Government
of Punjab, Government of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa and Government of Baluchistan have promulgated the Sindh
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Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Sales Tax on
services through Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Finance Act, 2013 and the Baluchistan Sales Tax on services Act, 2015
respectively. The Sindh Revenue Board, the Punjab Revenue Authority, and the Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Revenue
Authority and the Baluchistan Revenue Authority administer and regulate the levy and collection of the Sindh
Sales Tax (“SST”), Punjab Sales Tax (“PST”), Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Sales Tax (“KST”) and Baluchistan Sales Tax
(“BST”) respectively on the taxable services provided or rendered in Sindh, Punjab or Khyber Pakhtunkhwa
provinces respectively.

The value of taxable services for the purpose of levy of sales tax is the gross commission charged from clients in
respect of purchase or sale of shares in a Stock Exchange. The above-mentioned Acts levy a sales tax on
Brokerage at the rate of 15% in Sindh, 16% in Punjab and in Baluchistan and Khyber Pakhtunkhwa the rate is
15%. Sales tax charged under the aforementioned Acts is withheld at source under statutory requirements.
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14. SIGNATORIES TO THE PROSPECTUS

SIGNATORIES TO THE PROSPECTUS

-~ Johan Stuiver
Charman/Non-Executive Director

C{&cm-—'"‘"‘ Q?

Anwar Ali
Non-Executive Director

WON

Nadia Ishtiag
Indegendent [\irector

M-S

Wagas, Guizar
Necn-Executive Director

WITNESSES

ChlefF ancial Officer

Ceniﬁed by:

N Mo Q
Muﬁ{:m‘ad AlvAns /

Company Secretary —:

un
307 Deleanmey 2

JES)I

Muhammad Adil Ali

CEQ/= Dife}tﬂ)

Mchmood Arshali O

independent Director

.(- :

PaulEttema

Non-Exscutive Director

A&&k

Ahsan Ahmed Khan
Assistant Manager Firance
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15. MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

> MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION COMPANY
LIMITED BY SHARES

BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED
1. The name of the Company is Barkat Frisian Agro Limited
2. The registered office of the Company witl be situated in the Province of Sindh.

3. (i} The priocipal line of business of the company shail be to set up and cary on the
business of poultry egg pasteurization and processing facilities. cold chaln storaga,
distribution centers and all allied matters (in one or more phases), The company can

lurther engage in any business related to agnculture and livestock which it deems fil
along with any lawful business it ¢an conduct,

)] Except for the business mantioned In sub-clause {iily hereunder, the Company shall
engage in all the lawful businesses and shall be authorized to take all necessary stops
and actions in connection therewith and ancillary thereto,

(i) Notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing sub-clauses of this clause nathing
contained herein shall be construed as empowering the Company to undedake or
indulge. direclly or indirectly in the businass of a Banking Company, Non-banking
Finance Company (Mutual Fund, Leasing. Investment Company, Investment Advisor,
Real Estate Investment Trust Company. Housing Finance Company, Venture Capital
Company, Discounting Services, Microfinance or Microcradit business), Insurance
Business, Modaraba management Company, Stock Brokerage business. forex. real
estate business, managing agency, business of providing the services of security
guards or any other business restricted under any law for the time being in feece or as
may be specified by the Commission.

(iv)  Itis hereby undentaken that the Company shall not:

(2) engage In any of the business mentioned in sub-clause {iti) above or any uniawtul
operation;

() Iaunch multi-level marketing (MLM). Pyramid and Ponzl schemes, or other related
activitiesibusinesses or any lotlery business:

(¢} engage in any of the permissible business unless the requisite appraval,
permission, consent or ficense is obtained from competent authority as may be
required under any lavs for he time being in force,

4, The liabiiity of the members is limited.

5 The authorized capital of the Company is PKR 310,000,000 (Pakistani Rupees Three
Hundred and Ten Million) divided into 310.00G.00D Ordinary Shares (Three Hundred and Ten
Miflion shares) of PKR 1 {Pakistani Rupee One ) sach, with the rights, privileges and
conditions altaching thereto as are provided by requlations of the Company for the time being,
with power o increase and reduce the Capital of the Company and to consoldate and divide
the shares in the Capital for the lime being 8 may be determined by or in accordance with
the ragulations of the Company and to vary, modify. or abrogate an ts. privileges or
conditions in such manner as may for the time being be provided by
Company and subject to any permission required under the
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We the several persons whose names and addresses are subscribed below,
formed into a Company, in pursuance of this Memarandum of Association, a

ara desirous of being -
nd we “espectively

agree to lake the number of shares in the capital of the Company as set opposite our respeclive
names.
Name and | NIC Neo. | Father's/ [NationalitiOccupati  Usual Number r&gnat
Surname {in case [Husband's | es with on Residential |of shares| ures
{present and of Name in former Address in full| taken
former) in full foraigner| Full Nationality| or the
(in Block 7 registered
Letters)  |passport |principal office
number) address for a
subscriber
other than
natural person
Muhammad Adil| 42201- so Pakistani |Business| Hougse No. M- [4000 (four NIFT
Al 7280142.| Muhammad man [74/1, Khayaband trousand
3 Ali Ansari e-Ittehad, Pl
7, DHA, Karachi
Muhammad | 42201- slo Pakistani |Business| Houss No. M- |2000 (two] NIFT
Yasir Al 529999 1-| Muhammad man [74/1, Khayaban thousand
5 Al Ansar| fe-lttehad, Phasel
7. DHA, Karachi
Naheed Al 42201- wia Pakistani [Business| House No. M- | 10000 | NIFT
0533780-| Muhammad man  [74/1, Khayaban-
a Al Ansari lttehad, Phasel thousand
7. DHA, Karachi
Mohammad Ali | 42201- | sio Barkat | Pakistani |Business| House No. M- | 23990 | NiFT |
~ Ansari 0621677- Al man |74/1, Khayaban- (twenty
] fe-lttlehad, Phase{ three
s | 7, DHA, Karachi| thousand
/ hundred
and ninety
42301- | slo Anjum | Pakistani |Business House # 44A, | 10 (ten [ NIFT
A272067-|Tarig Gulzar man Sth Sunset
1 Street, Phase 2,
Extension, DHA,
Karachi
Rabia Ali 42201- wio Pakistani |Business| House # 8-19, | 10000 NIFT
1164 389-| Muhammad man Block 2,
8 Babar Hanif Gulistan-e- | thousand
Jauhar, Karach
|
sohan Stuiver [BWICBP| sto Jacob |Netherland| Business Patersberg 23, | €1 (one | NIFT
693 Sluiver man 8241, WK
Wijnjewoude,
The
Netherlands
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- Frisian Egg [01093284  sio Netherland Postbus 226, | 49898 | NiFT |
International Dominicus 9200 AE {foty cine
{through Mr. Eltema Bracihien, The | thousand
Paul Ettema) Netherlands nine

| hundred
and ninety|
eight onfy )
Paul Ettema  |BVLA499K slo 1Nethorland Business| Berdigne 13, | 01 {one | NIFT
B Dominicus man 8532 CE only)
Etterma Lemmer, The
Netherlands

Telal No.of | 100.000
Shares {ong
hundred
thousand
only)

Dated the 27" Day of Decemnber 2016

Witness:
Nift {Pwv1) Limited
5th Floor, AWT Plaza, Il Chundrigarh Road, Karachi

Certified to be Frue Copy

—

i c';—-:n(u‘
. 30 1vi>4
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16. REGISTRATION FORM

REGISTRATION FORM
Book Runner

Tick One

DEHI R[] 158 DPS-H I:Imth

ARIF HABIB | [Jovr az[] suvaar[ ] aaw ]
AﬂLIMlTED [Jeso i | sir [J e []

Registration Dates 137 14™ 17" and 158™ February,

Barkat Frisian Agro Limited 2025
NTN mo: 7370740 Bidding Dated 17" - 18" Februsry, 2025

Bidding Form Mo.

INITIAL PUBLIC DFFERING OF ORDINARY SHARES OF BARKAT FRISIAN AGRD UMITED THROUGH BODK BUILIMNG PRDCESS AT & FLOOR
PRICE OF PER 13.00/- PER SHARE (INCLUDING A PREMEUM OF PKR 12.00/- PER SHARE}

PLEASE FILL THE FORM IN BLOCK LETTERS. PLEASE PROVIDE ACCURATE DETAILS TO AVOID ANY INDONVEMNIENCE.

ELIGIBELE INVESTORS MUST SUBMIT ONLY ONE PAYORDER ALONG WITH THE REGISTRATION FDRM.

CNIC/CUIN &
Name
NTN®
cell
Address
Land Line #
E-mail Fax i
IBAN
Numbes i Bank Marme
PLEASE TICK THE APPROPRIATE BOX Natianality
L] vocat institutional inveszor [ mesident [If ather than Pakistani|
] Foreign institutional investor [] won Resident
(] mdividuat ivestor [] roreignes

"INVESTORS ARE ENCOURAGED TO DISCLOSE THEIR NTHN NUMBERS TO FACILITATE THE COMPANY TO CHECK STATUWS OF THE SHAREHOLDERS

5 14 ] ] B K Al 5y [u] 1 ] e A
APPLIES TO FILERS INSTEAD DF 30.0% FOR MON-FILERS OB PAYMENT OF CASH MVIDEND DECLARED, IF ANY, BY

Payment Details: Payrments to be made in favor of “BARKAT FRISIAN AGRD LUMITED-BDOK BUILDING"
Amount in Figures Instrument i
Instrument Date Margin %age

Banker's Mame, Address & Branch

COC Detafs for Sub AfC B House &)C

COC Participant Name CDC Participant 1D
Sub ASC No. House AT No.

COC Details for Investor AJC
COoC Inwestor Service ASC (D CDC Investar A/C No.

| UNDERTAKE TD SUBSCRIBE TO SHARES UNSUBSCRIBED IN THE RETAIL PORTION WHICH ARE ALLOCATED TO ME ON A PRO-RATA BASIS.
| ALST LUNDERTAKE THAT MY Bilk MOMNEY SHALL REMAIN DEFOSITED OF BLOCKED TILL ALLOTMENT OF UNSUBSCRIBED SHARES IN THE
RETAIL PORTIOMN.

| DECLARE THAT | have réad all the terms and conditions stated in the Prospectus and the Instructions Page of the Bidding Form. The
same termis and conditions would be applicable on the Registration Form.

Skgnature of Bidder:
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17. BIDDING FORM

BIDDING FORM

Book Runner Tick One

[]xs wr["] s8] psu [ Jerw [ |
AE ARIF H#%!B [Jaur mzx[ ] eurfeer[ | aaw []

D
Barkat Frisian Agro Limited D il [ e D " D

NTN no: 7370740 Bidding Dates 17"~ 18" February, 2025

Bidding Form Mo.

IMITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING OF ORDINARY SHARES OF BARKAT FRISIAM AGRO LIMITED THROWGH BOOK BUILDING PROCESS AT A FLOODR
PRICE OF PKR 13.00/- PER SHARE {INCLUDING A PREMIUM OF PKR 12.00/- PER SHARE)

PLEASE TICK THE APPROPRIATE BOX
Name D Local D Foreign D Individual
Institutional Investor Institutional Imeestor Inwvestor
- Nationality
Cell § Resident
ik [] {If other than Pakistani)
Mddress Non-Resident |:|
Land Line &
Foreigner I:l
CNIC #
Fax # E-mail:
an mai NTHN®

“INVESTORS ARE OURAGED TD DISCLOSE THEIR NTH NUMBERS TD FACILITATE THE COMPANY TO CHECK STATUS OF THE SHAREHDLDERS
A5 TAX RETURN FILER DR M-FILER FROM THE ACTIVE TAXPAYERS LIST (ATL} AVAILABLE OM THE WEBSITE OF FBR. PLEASE NOTE THAT

REDUCED TAX RATE OF 15.0% APPLIES TO FILERS INSTEAD OF 30.0¢% FOR NON-FILERS ON PAYMEMNT OF CASH DIVIDEND DECLARED, IF ANY, BY
THE CORPAMIES.
Dividend Mandate: Mark tick [¥] In the appropriate boxesYes| | No| |
In case the Applicant intends that if Shares applied for are lssued to him/it and the dividend declared by the Company, If amy, is credited
directly in his/it bank account, instead of lssued of dividend warrants, then please fill in the following boxes:

Title of Account
Aocount Number

Bank Name

Branch Name & Address
The Directors of Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

Office No: 601, 6th Floor, Balad Trade Center-Ill {BTC-3), Plot Mo, O, 75, Zone C, Block 7, Khayaban-e-lami, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan

Dear Sir,
On the basis of Prospectus by Barkat Frisian Agro Limited for the Initial Public Offer of its Ordinary Shares, |fwe hereby bid for subscription of
Shares of the Company as under:

Bid Details
MNo. of Shares Bid Price Per Share Total Amount
Bid Option (Please tick) {In Figures) {In Figures) {Im Figures)
Limit Order
Step Order:
Option (1)
Option {2)
Option (3)
Option [4)
Total (Shares and Price)
Important Instructions:
1) Bids shoubd be placed for a minimum amount of PKR 1,000,000/-. It showld also be noted that no. of shares bid for shouwld be rounded and fractional
shares will not be acceptablie. Please enswre that after rounding the number of shares multiplied by your bid price, is at least PKR '1,000,000/-.
2 Ehgible Investors who want 1o place a 5tep Bid, must ensure that each step amounts to PKR 1,000,000/ at least.
3)  Any Bid recelved below the Floor Price will nat be accepted by the Book Runmer,
4)  An investor shall not make downward revision both in terms of Bid Price and Bid Volume; Provided that in case of upward reviston of the Bid Price,
the number of shares Bid for Le. Bid Volume may be adjusted ensuring that the bid amount or bid money remains the same.
5)  An investor shall mot make a bid with price variation of more than 10% of the prevailing indicative strike price ect bo 40% maximum Price
Band i.e. the strike price must not exceed 40% upper limit of floor price.

Signature of Bidder:
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In terms of the Listing of Companies and Securities Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange ("P5SX"), I/we amjare eligible to bid in this Initial
Public Offer of Ordinary Shares. The amount payable on bidding is remitted herewith which is the applicable margin amount. |/We agree to pay the
balance amount of application money, if any, upon successful allocation of shares. In case no shares are allotted to mefus you are hereby authorized
to return to mefus by demand draft/pay order application money, within three (3) working days of the close of the bidding period.

I/'We agree that this is a binding agreement to accept the number of shares as may be allocated to me/us subject to the terms of the Prospectus,
the bidding form and other applicable laws. |/ we undertake that 1/we will sign all such other documents and do all such acts, if mecessary on my/four
part to enable mefus to be allocated/fallotted/transferred the shares and to pay for the same. |fwe authorize you to place myfour name{s) on the
register of the members of the Company as holder(s) of the shares that will be allocated/allotted/transferred to mefus and to register my/our
address as given below. I/ We noted that the Book Runner is entitled, in its absolute discretion to accept or reject this Bidding Application for
reason(s) to be recorded in writing and the reason(s) should be disclosed to us forthwith. |/ We have no objection if there are necessary changes
made in the Prospectus for filling of the same with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan |"SECP™).

I understand that the Issuer, the Book Runner, SECP and the Stock Exchange reserve the right of legal action against me under the law, if | submit a
fictitious bid and/or my the instrument deposited by me for margin money is bounced.

| DECLARE THAT: i) | AM/WE ARE MATIOMAL(S) AND RESIDENT(S) OF PAKISTAM; i) FORIEGMNER; iii) | AM/WE ARE NOT MINOR[S); iw) If WE HAVE NOT
MADE NOR HAVE I/WE INSTRUCTED ANY OTHER PERSON{S)/INSTITUTION{S]) TO MAKE ANY OTHER APPLICATION(S) IM MY /OUR NAME|S) OR IN THE
NAME OF ANY OTHER PERSON ON MY/ OUR BEHALF OR IN ANY FICTITOUS NAME, IN CASE OF ANY INFORMATION GIVEN HEREIM BEING INCORRECT
I'WE UMDERSTAND THAT I\WE SHALL MOT BE ENTITLED FOR ALLOCATION/ALLOTMENT,/TRANSFER OF SHARES.

Important Instructions:

1) Bids shall only be entered for those Eligible Investors who have submitted a duly filled Registration Form as prescribed by the Book Runner.

) Bid money / margin money shall be deposited through demand draft, pay order in favor of "BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-BOOK
BUILINNG". For online transfer facility (pay order or demand draft may be deposited at any branch of Meezan Bank Limited and evidence
to be submitted to the Book Runner) the payment shall be made into AFC 01111556177 in favour of BARKAT FRISIAN AGRO LIMITED-
BOOK BUNLDING maintained at Meezan Bank Limited — Pakistan Stock Exchange Branch.

3) Fordeposit of margin money, only Pay Orders, Demand Drafts, or online transfer will be accepted. Each eligible investor shall only submit
a single pay order, demand draft or evidence of online transfer of money along with the Registration Form. It may also be noted that only
a single pay order, demand draft or evidence of online transfer of money shall be accepted by the Book Runner along with each Additional
Payment Form.

4) In case of intercity instruments, only Pay Orders "payable at any branch” will be accepted. For the purpose of expediting the clearing of
the instruments it is highly recommended that the Pay Order should be made from online branches of the respective banks.

5) Eligible Investors can register themselwes till 3:00 pm on the last day of Book Building after which no new investors shall be registered.

6) Inwestors can only upward revise their bids online. Please visit www.bkb.psx com.pk to access online. User name and password will be
emailed to you on email address provided in the form. Please ensure that you provide correct email address. Online access will be available
for upward bid revisions during the bidding period from 9:00 am to 5:00. An investor will not be allowed to place or upward revise a bid
with a price variation of more than 10% of the prevailing indicative strike price subject to a maximum price band of 40% of the floor price.
However, the bidder shall not make downward revision both in terms of bid price and bid volume; provided that in case of upward
revision of the bid price, the number of shares bid for Le. bid wolume may be adjusted ensuring that the bid amount or bid money
remains the same. No withdrawal of bid shall be allowed.

Yours Faithfully,

Signature of Bidder:

To be filled in by the Book Runner:

Time of Receipt Date Location Amount Pay Order Mo. [ Demand Stamp
Draft No.
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18. GENERAL SUBSCRIPTION FORM
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